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STATE OF OHIO

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR 88 East Broad Street
- P.O.Box 1140
v PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140
Telephone 614-466-4514
800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

Board of Trustees
The Ohio State University

We have reviewed the independent auditor's report of The Ohio State University, Franklin County,
prepared by Deloitte & Touche LLP for the audit period July 1, 1998 through June 30, 1999. Based
upon this review, we have accepted these reports in lieu of the audit required by Section 117.11,
Revised Code. The Auditor of State did not audit the accompanying financial statements and,
accordingly, we are unable to express, and do not express an opinion on them.

Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected by
the Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the Auditor of
State, regulations and grant requirements. The Ohio State University is responsible for compliance
with these laws and regulations.

January 5, 2000



Deloitte &
Touche

I\ ' Deloitte & Touche LLP Telephone: (614) 221-1000
- 155 East Broad Strest Facsimile: (814} 229-4847
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3611

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of
The Ohio State University
Columbus, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of The Ohio State University, a component unit of The
State of Chio, as of June 30, 1999, and the related statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in
fund equities for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the University.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
The Ohio State University as of June 30, 1999, and the revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
equities for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

The year 2000 supplementary information on pages 40 — 43 is not a required part of the financial
statements, but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
and we did not audit and do not express an opinion on such information. Further, we were unable to
apply to the information certain procedures prescribed by professional standards because of the
unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue and its effects, and the fact that authoritative measurement
criteria regarding the status of remediation efforts have not been established. In addition, we do not
provide assurance that The Ohio State University is or will become year 2000 compliant, that The Ohio
State University’s year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with
which The Ohio State University does business are or will become year 2000 compliant.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 4, 1999
on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants.

h‘m & \Q"‘WQ‘, LLp
October 4, 1999
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Financial Statements

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 1999, with Comparative Financial Information for 1998

(in thousands)
CURRENT
UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED
1899 1998 1999 1698
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivaients $ 15,092 3 31,181 3 7,893 $ 3,601
Accounts receivabile, net 181471 138,558 538,197 50,747
State and federai receivables - - 2,850 7,838
Notes receivable, net - - - -
Accrued interest receivable 5,166 5,325 3,212 3,037
inventories and prepaid expenses . 44758 43,696 714 699
Investments 490,491 486053 20474 18,522
Investment in piant : - - - -
Interfund accounts {158,406) (158,138) 87,985 74,623
TOTAL ASSETS $ 878573 $ 546885 $ 182325 $ 159087
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITIES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 203487 $ 188,597 $ 39,550 $ 35,955
Deposits and deferred crediis 72,721 69,774 18,253 16,943
Bonds, notes, and lease obligations payable - - - -
Total lizbilities 276,208 266,371 57,803 52,898
Fund equities:
Unrestricted 302,365 280314 - -
Restricted - - 124,522 108,169
U.S. Government granis - - - -
Net investment in plant - - - ) .
Total fund equities 302,365 280,314 124522 106,169
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITIES $ 578573 $ 545,885 $ 182325 $ 159,067

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ENDOWMENT
LOAN & ANNUITY PLANT AGENCY
1899 1998 1989 1998 1999 1998 1999 1998

$ 3626 § 5774 5 3357 0§ 9654 0§ - $ - § 1455 0§ 1453
. - - - 1,149 549 880 832

56,813 53703 - - - - - -

5804 5,078 - - - 23 - -

- - . - 1433 1568 - -

- - 1,079,370 936,266 11,545 10,704 . -

- - - - 2,690,619 2445 678 - .

50 37 {13,407) (4,037) 83478 87 515 . -

§ 66293 § 64592 § 1099830 § 941883 3 2788224 § 25461137 3 233 § 2,285

$ - $ - $ 23233 % 23305 % 12,889 $ 11300 0§ 234 3§ 249
- - 8,084 1311 - - 2,101 2,045

- - - - 309,208 232707 - -
- - 31,297 24616 322,087 244 007 2,335 2,285

2,211 2,074 £6,363 47588 33928 60,373 - -

8,790 8,338 1002170 869,679 47807 10,500 - -

55292 54,180 - - - - - -

- - - - 2,384,591 2,231,257 - -

56,293 54,552 1,068,533 917,267 2,466,127 2,302,130 - -

$ 68293 5 84592 § 1009830 § 041883 § 2788224 § 2546137 § 233 % 2,286
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THEOHO STATEUNIVERSITY

STATEM ENT OF REV ENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITIES

Year ended June 30, 1999, with Comparative Financial information for 1998

{in thousands}

REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS
Educational and general:
Tuition, fees and other student charges
State appropriations
Federal support
Cther state support
Local support
Private support
nvestment income
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments
Sales and services
Other sources
Total educational and general current fund revenues
Auxiliary enterprises
Hospitals
Interest and penalties on loans receivable
Plant fund additions
Retirement of indebtedness
TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS
Educational and general expenditures
Auxiiary enterprises expenditures

Hospitals expenditures

Administrative and collection

ndirect costs recovered

Refunded to grantors

Provision for uncollectible foans

Payment to annuitants

Expended for plant facliies

Retirement of indebtedness (including interest)
Disposal of plant facilities

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS

TRANSFERS AMONG FUNDS
- ADDITIONS/(DEDUCTIONS}

Mandatory
Non-mandatory

TOTAL TRANSFERS
NET INCREASE FOR THEYEAR
FUND EQUITY, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND EQUITY, END OF THE YEAR

CURRENT
UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED
1999 1598 1999 1998
$§ 32576 § 308180  § - -
333,365 322710 75,629 74,248
26,854 25128 167,814 157,614
3128 3273 24,201 28416
. 10 19,224 15,578
15,645 16,069 159,508 132,338
19,985 28,994 5,609 14,661
- - 300 408
47475 47933 - -
11,752 10,825 - .
784,460 763,197 452,285 423,362
137,682 123,156 12,368 8,052
494,182 457217 12,789 12416
1,416,324 1,343,500 377 472 443330
741,856 703,348 405,205 391,098
122,187 106,131 10,766 6,882
471,007 419,202 11,183 12,401
- - 39,503 36,867
. - ) 24
1,335,050 1228681 466,676 347300
(25,176) {25,285) (6.103) (8.044)
(34,047) {20,282) © 16,660 17,162
(59,22%) 145,577} 7,557 11,118
22,051 69,242 18,353 7,648
250,314 211,072 108,169 98,521
5 302365 § 280314 § 124,522 106,168

The accompanying nofes are an infegral part of these financial stafements.
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LOAN _ ENDOWMENT AND ANNUITY PLANT
1899 1998 1899 1998 1989 1998
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ .
. . - - 63.088 86,211
78 137 - - - 203
- - - - - 27
29 8 w510 34,551 10,446 10,343
419 388 i1 201 4,995 3,490
- - 121,744 134,384 24 (46}
2619 2,488 - - - -
- - - - - 276,881 258,204
- - - . - N 24,358 19477
3,145 3,001 161974 169,146 378,772 357,999 )
1,118 1,089 - - - -
- - - - 229 120
300 230 . - : .. o
- - 479 437 - -
- - - - 203,960 217,656
. - - - . 34025 29,550
- - . - 38,584 53,720
1416 1318 479 437 277,698 301,116
12 16 - - 34,267 31323
(40) - {10,229) (6.616) 27,656 9,738
(28) 16 (10.228) (6.616) 61,823 4108
1,701 1,698 151,286 162,093 163,897 97,942
64,592 62,894 917,267 755,174 2,302,130 2.204,188

66283 § 64582 § 1088533 § 917267 § 2466127 0§ 2302130
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Notes to Financial Statements — Year Ended June 30, 1999 (dollars in thousands)

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING POLICIES
Organization

The Ohic State University is a land grant institution created in 1870 by the Ohio General
Assembly under provisions of the Morrill Act. The University is one of several state-
supported universities in Ohio. |t is declared by statute to be a body politic and corporate
and an instrumentality of the State. The University is governed by a nine member Board of
Trustees which is granted authority under Chio law to do alt things necessary for the proper
maintenance and continual successful operation of the Universily. The Trusiees are
appointed for staggered nine year terms by the Governor with the advice and consent of the
State Senate. in addition, two non-voting student members are appointed {o the Board of
Trustees for staggered two year terms.

Basis of Presentation
The accompanying financial statements present the accounts of the following entities:

The Ohio State University and its hespitals and clinics;
The Ohio State University Foundation, a not-for-profit organization operating
exclusively for the benefit of The Ohio State University;

Two separate statutory entities for which the University has special responsibility
+« Ohio Agricultural Research and Development Center
« Ohio Supercomputer Center

Eight legally independent corporations engaged in activities related fo the University
» The Ohio State University Research Foundation

The Ohio State University Student Loan Foundation, Inc.

Transportation Research Center of Ohio, Inc.

Campus Partners for Community Urban Redevelopment, inc.

University Affiliates, Inc.

Reading Recovery and Early Literacy, Inc.

Ohio State University Retirees Association

OSU Managed Health Care Systems, Inc.

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14,
The Financial Reporting Entity, the University's financial statements are included as a
discrete entity in the State of Ohio's Consolidated Annual Financial Report.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the University have been prepared on the accrual basis in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for state-assisted colleges and
universities. Depreciation is not recognized for plant and equipment as it is not required for
state-supported universities. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
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Fund Equities represents the financial activities of funds related to the current reporting
period.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures during the reporting
period. Disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
may also be affected. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fund Accounting

Resources are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into funds that reflect the
specific activities, objectives or restrictions of the resources. Separate accounts are
maintained within each fund.

In the accompanying financial statements, funds ihat have similar characteristics are
combined into fund groups, and all financial {ransactions have been recorded and reported
by fund group. Fund equities restricted by outside sources are so indicated and are
distinguished from unrestricted funds.

Description of Funds
Each of the following fund groups is a self-balancing set of accounts:

Current Funds include those resources that are available for current operations. These
funds can be either unrestricted or restricted and are used for educational and general
purposes, auxiliary enterprises, or University Hospitals, Current funds are considered
unrestricted uniess donors or external agencies restrict their use to specific purposes,
programs, cofleges, departments, or schoois.

Educational and general purposes include instruction, research, public service, academic
support, student services, institutional support, scholarships, fellowships, and operation and
maintenance of plant facilities.

Auxiliary enterprises are those activities designed to be substantially self-supporting. These
activities primarily provide services for students, facuity and staff. Auxiliary enterprises
include, but are not limited to, residence halls, food services, bookstcres and intercollegiate
athletics.

The Board of Trustees has responsibility for all the University's financial affairs and assets.
The University operates largely on a decentralized basis by delegating this authority to its
academic and support departments. The Board must approve the annual budgets for
unrestricted academic and support functions, departmental earnings operations and
restricted funds operations, but these budgets are managed at the department level. The
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balances resulting from these operations are used by the individual departments to support
working capital needs, fund refated academic programs and internally sponsored research,
and provide for unanticipated shorifalls in revenues and deviations in enroliment.

Loan Funds include resources available for loans to students. These funds are primarily
composed of federal Perkins loans. As these loans are repaid, the principal and
accumulated interest are available for further student icans.

Endowment and Similar Funds include endowment funds and quasi-endowment funds.
Characteristics of these funds are as follows:

Endowment Funds
Principal is not expendable per donor's or external agency's
instructions. Investment income may be expended or added to
pringipal.

Quasi-Endowment Funds
Funds are University designated to be retained and invested.
Principat and income may be utilized at discretion of Board of
Trustees subject to any donor-imposed restrictions on use.

For all types of endowment funds, the principal includes the original gift value of the
endowment, subsequent additions, reinvestments of income, and realized gains/losses
resulting from invasions of endowment principal.

Annuity and Life Income Funds consist primarily of life income funds which are resources
acquired by the University provided that periodic income be paid during the lifetime of the
income beneficiary per the donor’s instructions.

Plant Funds consist of four self-balancing sub-groups whose characteristics are as follows:

Unexpended Funds
Resources are derived from various sources to finance the
acquisition of long-life assets.

Renewais and Replacements Funds

Resources are set aside for future renewal and replacement of
current assets. The University maintains a program of regularly
estimating future requirements for major maintenance  and
renovation of buildings and equipment. The cost of meeting those
requirements is provided through regular transfers from current
operating funds to funds reserved for renewals and replacements
of plant.

For the year ended June 30, 1998, non-capitalized expenditures for plant facilities for the
Unexpended and Renewals and Replacements funds are $7,104.

8 The Ohio State University



Retirement of Indebtedness Funds
Resources are specifically accumulated for payment of principal
and interest on debt incurred in connection with the acquisition  of
properties.

Investment in Plant Funds
All  long-life assets in the service of the University and
construction in progress are accounted for in this fund. Physical
properties, which include land, buildings, improvements, equipment
and library books, are principally stated at cost. In accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles for state-assisted
colleges and universities, depreciation is not provided.

To the extent current funds are used to finance plant assets, the
amounts are accounted for during the year ended June 30, 1999 as
(a) expenditures of current funds and additions to property and
equipment in the plant fund of $76,021, (b) mandatory transfers in
the case of required provisions for debt amoriization and interest,
and (c} transfers of a non-mandatory nature in other cases,
principally provisions for renewals and replacements.

Agency Funds include resources held by the University on behalf of others in the capacity of
custedian or fiscal agent. Resources owned by academic or scholarly journals but
managed by faculty who serve as the publications’ editors are one type of agency fund.

Cash and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of petty cash, demand deposit accounts,
money market accounts, and savings accounts.

Investments are carried at market value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certfain Investmenis and for External Investment
Pools. The weighted average method is used for purposes of determining gains and losses
on the sale of investments. The specific identification method is used for purposes of
determining gains and losses on the sale of gifted securities.

Investment in real estate is carried at cost, if purchased, or appraised value at the date of
the gift. The carrying and market values of real estate at June 30, 1999 are $32,041 and
$57,614 respectively.

Investment income is recognized on an accrual basis. Interest and dividend income is
recorded when earned.

1998 Financial Report 9



Inventories

The University's inventories, which consist principally of the bookstores, central food stores
and general stores, are vajued at the lower of moving average cost or market. The
inventaries of the hospitals, which consist principally of pharmaceuticals and operating
supplies, are valued at cost on a first-in, first-out basis.

Deferred Credits

Deferred credits in the current unrestricted fund primarily consist of receipts relating to
tuition, room, board, and athletic events received in advance of the services to be provided.
Tuition and fees relating to the summer academic quarter are recorded as revenue in the
following fiscal year. The University will recognize unrestricted revenue to the extent these
services are provided over the coming fiscal year.

Gifts and Pledges

The University does not report pledges in the financial statements until the gifis are
collected. The University's gift records indicate that approximately $110,088 in pledges are
outstanding at June 30, 1989. Since those pledges are often payable either at the
discretion of the donors or through their estates, neither the realizable value nor the period
of collection can be determined prior fo actual receipt.

Government Grants and Contracts

Government grants and contracts normally provide for the recovery of direct and indirect
cosis and are subject to audit by the appropriate government agency. Federal funds are
subject to an annual OMB Circular A-133 audit. The University recognizes revenue
associated with direct costs as the related costs are incurred. Recovery of related indirect
costs is generally recorded at fixed rates negotiated for a pericd of one to three years.

Hospital Revenue

Revenue received under third-party cost reimbursement agreements (primarily the federal
Medicare and Medicaid programs) are subject to examination and retroactive adjustments
by the agencies administering the programs. In the normal course of business, the
hospitals coniest certain issues resuiting from examination of prior years' reimbursement
reports. The accompanying financial statements include provisions for estimated retroactive
adjustments arising from such examinations and contested issues. The hospitals recognize
settlements of protested adjustments or appeals upon resolution of the matters.

Newly Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Effective July 1, 2000, the University will adopt GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions. in general, GASB No. 33 establishes
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accounting and financial reporting standards for nonexchange transactions involving
financial or capital resources.

Effective July 1, 2001, the University will adopt GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Govermiments, as a component of the State of Ohio. In general, GASB No. 34 establishes a
new financial reporting model for state and local governments. Currently, GASB No. 34 is
not applicable to separately issued financial statements of public colleges and universities.
However, GASB has proposed that Statement No. 34 be amended to include these
separately issued financial statements as well.

The provisions of these Statements, which are effective for fiscal years beginning after June
15, 2000 and 2001, respectively, will be reflected in the University's financial reports for the
years ended June 30, 2001 and June 30, 2002. University management has not yet
determined the impact that implementation of GASB Nos. 33 and 34 will have on the
University's financial statements.

Other

The University is exempt from income taxes as a non-profit organization under internal
Revenue Code §115 and Internal Revenue Service regulations. Any unrelated business
income is taxable.

The financial information for the year ended June 30, 1998 has been presented for
comparative purposes oniy and is not intended fo be a complete presentation in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. Certain reclassifications have been made to
the 1998 comparative information to conform with the 1899 presentation.

NOTE 2 — ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable at June 30, 1999 are net of allowances for doubtful accounts in current
unrestricted and current restricted funds of $83,116 and $955, respectively.

Notes receivable at June 30, 1999 consist primarily of Perkins Loans and are net of an
allowance for doubtful accounts of $6,300. The fund equities related to this and other
federal loan programs principally represent advances which are ultimately refundabie to the
federal government.

NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS

At June 30, 1999, the carrying amount of the University's cash and cash equivalents for all
funds is $61,633 as compared to bank balances of $111,113. The differences in carrying
amount and bank balances are caused by outstanding checks and deposits in transit. Of
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the bank balances, $1,799 is covered by federal deposit insurance and $109.314 is
uninsured but collateralized by pools of securities pledged by the depository banks and held
in the name of the respective banks.

The University’s investment policy authorizes the Umversuty to invest non-eﬂdowment funds
in the foliowing investments:

s Obligations of the US Treasury and other federal agencies and
instrumentalities

Municipal and state bonds

Certificates of deposit

Repurchase agreements

Mutual funds and mutual fund pools

Money market funds

The University's investment policy authorizes the University to invest endowment funds in
the following investments:

s Obligations of the US Treasury and other federal agencies and
instrumentalities

Municipat and state bonds

Certificates of deposit (domestic and eurodollar)
Repurchase agreements

Mutual funds

Commercial paper

Banker's acceptances

Corporate bonds and notes

Commoen and preferred stock

Real estate

Guaranteed investment contracts

Collateralized mortgage obiigations
Asset-backed securities

e & & 5 & 5 5 0 " 9>

Statement No. 3 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board requires government
entities to categorize investments to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the
entity at year end. These categories of risk are summarized below.

Category 1 Insured or registered investments held by the University or its agent
in the name of the University.

Category 2 Uninsured and unregistered investments for which securities are

held by the broker's or dealer's trust department or agent in the name of
the University.
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Category 3 Uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities
are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust department or agent but not
in the University's name.

The values of investments at June 30, 1998 are as follows:

US Govemment securities $570,293
Common stocks 895,651
Corporate bonds 43,284
Real estate 32,041
Mconey market - deposit with trustee 2,848
Mutual funds 45,928
Other 11,935

Total Investments $1.601,880

The US Government securities are invested through trust agreements with banks who keep
the securities in their safekeeping accounts at the Federal Reserve Bank in "book entry”
form. The banks internally designate the securities as owned by or pledged to the
University {Category 2). Common stocks, corporate bonds, money market instruments,
mutual funds and other investments are invested through frust agreements with banks who
keep the investments in their safekeeping accounts at the Depository Trust Company, Bank
One or National City Bank in “book eniry" form. The banks internally designate the
securities as owned by or pledged to the University (Category 2).

Approximately $468,333 of the investments are accounted for on a pooled basis and are
recorded in the unrestricted educational and general fund. A portion of these investments is
due to other fund groups and is reflected on the interfund accounts line of the balance
sheet.

Approximately $1,037,182 of the investments are accounted for on a pooled basis and are
recorded in the endowment and annuity funds. The University employs the share method of
accounting for pooled investments and for proportionate distribution of income to each fund
which participates in the pool and reflects the ownership of such shares through the use of
the interfund accounts. Based on this method, undistributed gains of $22,307 from prior
years were transferred from the endowment fund to current resiricted funds.

Net appreciation in the fair value of investments inciudes both realized and unrealized gains
and losses on investments. During the year ended June 30, 1999, the University realized a
net gain of $73,300 from the sale of investments. The calculation of realized gains is
independent of the net appreciation in the fair value of investments held at year-end.
Realized gains and losses on investments that have been held in more than one fiscal year
and sold in the current year includes the net appreciation (depreciation) of these
investments reported in the prior year. The net appreciation in the fair value of investments
during the year ended June 30, 1999, was $122,068. This amount includes all changes in
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fair value, both realized and unrealized, that occurred during the year. The unrealized
appreciation during the year on investments held at year-end was $48,768.

The components of the net appreciation of investments by fund group are as follows:

Realized Net Appreciation/

Gains/ Losses Unrealized (Depreciation)
On Sale of Appreciation/ in Market Value

Investments (Depreciation) of Invastments
Unrestricted E&G $- $- $-
Hospitals - - -
Restricted - 300 300
Endowment 73,497 48 527 122,024
Annuity (203) (77) (280)
Renewals and Replacements - 18 18
Retirement of Indebtedness 6 - 6
Total 1999 $73.300 348,768 ) $122.088
Total 1998 $76,108 ~ $58,638 $134.747

NOTE 4 — INVESTMENT IN PLANT

Investment in plant at June 30, 1999 is composed of the following assets:

Land $34,722
Improvements other than buildings 147,771
Buildings and fixed equipment 1,474,648
Movable equipment and furniture 708,630
Library books 131,121
Construction in progress ~ 193,727

Total $2,680,619

NOTE § — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The University may finance the construction, renovation and acquisition of certain facilities
through the issuance of debt obligations which may include general receipts bonds,
certificates of participation, commercial paper, capital lease obligations and other

borrowings.

14 The Ohic State University



Bonds and Notes Payable

Bonds and notes payable at June 30, 1999 consist of the following:

Interest Rate Amount
Commercial Paper 2.4%-3.4% $91,000
Ohio Board of Regents Note, due through 2006 0.00% 1,488
Ohio Board of Regents Note, due through 2001 0.00% 230
Ohio Department of Development, due through 2004 4.115% 750
Capital One Funding Corporation, due through 2014 57% 3,149
General Receipts Bonds:
Series 19858, due serially through 2002 Variable 2,800
Series 1986B, due serially through 2007 Variable 27,200
Series 1892A1, due serially through 2012 4.55%-5.88% 41,490
Series 1992A2, due serially through 2009 4.55%-5.75% 45,805
Series 1997, due serially through 2027 Variable 74,340
Total $288,252

General receipts bonds are backed by the unrestricted receipts of the University, excluding
certain items as described in the bond indentures.

The bond indentures provide for mandatory reserves of $5578 for future payment of
principal and interest. At June 30, 1988, the University is in compliance with these

requirements. In addition, the University has set aside $38,578 for future debt service which
is included in unrestricted fund equities within the plant fund.

in prior years, the University defeased various bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds

into an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds.
The defeased bonds are as follows:

Amount
Amount Cutstanding at
Defeased June 30, 1999
Revenue Bonds:
Series A, C,Eand | $5,951 $3,655
Fixed Rate General Receipts Bonds:
Series 1990 92,710 -
General Receipts Bonds:
Series 1981 and 19383 28.080 950
Total $126.741 $4 605

Neither the outstanding indebtedness nor the related trust account assets for the above
bonds are included in the University's financial statemenits.
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Series 1985B, 1986B, and 1997 variable rate demand bonds bear interest at rates based
upon Yield evaluations at par of comparable securities. The maximum interest rate
allowable and the effective average interest rate from issue date to June 30, 1999 are as
follows:

Interest Rate Not Effective Average
Series: to Exceed Interest Rate
1985B 15% 4.07%
1986B 15% 4.02%
1997 12% 3.20%

At the discretion of the University, the interest rate on the bonds can be converted to a fixed
rate. The bonds may be redeemed by the University or sold by the bondholders to a
remarketing agent appointed by the University at any time prior to conversion to a fixed rate
at a price equal {o the principal amoun{ plus accrued interest. For the 1985B and 19868
bonds, a standby bond purchase agreement provides backup support in the event of a
failed remarketing. For the 1897 bonds, the University will provide backup support in the
event of a failed remarketing. In connection with the issuance of the bonds and the
execution of the previously mentioned agreements, the University has agreed to certain
restrictive covenants.

Total interest expense incurred on indebtedness for the year ended June 30, 1998 is
$10,051 and is reflected in the total retirement of indebtedness fund deduction of $34,825.
Interest of $4,004 was capitalized in the investment in plant fund.

Transportation Research Center of Chio, Inc. (TRC) eniered into a promissory note
agreement (Note) for $3.2 million with Capital One Funding Corporation in January, 1999
The Note bears interest at a floating rate which is adjusted weekly by the lender. The lender
financed the note from proceeds received from the sale of the lender’s Floating Rate Option
Notes, which are secured by a $3.2 million letter of credit. TRC simultaneously entered into
a reimbursement agreement with the bank that issued the letter of credit (LOC). TRC is
required to make monthly principal and interest payments into a sinking fund account
through 2014. The sinking fund is owned by TRC, but in order to secure the payment of the
amounts due under the reimbursement agreement, TRC assigned its interest in certain
assetfs to the issuer of the LOC. In 1988, TRC also entered into an interest rate swap
agreement with a bank for $3.2 million to mitigate potentia! interest rate fluctuations on the
variable rate long-term debt.

Commercial Paper

The University established a $120,000 tax-exempt commercial paper program during fiscal
year 1999. The General Receipts Commercial Paper Notes {the “Notes”) are limited
obligations of the University secured by a pledge of the General Receipts of the University.
The Notes are not debts or bonded indebtedness of the State of Ohio and are not general
obligations of the State of Ohio or the University, and neither the full faith and credit of the
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State of Ohic nor the University are pledged to the payment of the Notes. The Notes have
heen issued to provide for interim financing of various projects approved by the Chio Board
of Regents.

The term of each Note is established at the time of issuance, but may not exceed 270 days
and may not mature after January 15, 2000. It is the University's intention to roll each
maturity into new Notes as they mature and to issue addilional Notes as project
expenditures are incurred. [t is the University’s intention ultimately to roll the Notes into
permanent tax exempt bonds.

Commercial paper outstanding as of June 30, 1889 and the average interest rates are as
foliows:

Amount Average

Series: Ouistanding interest Rate
A $62,000 3.102%
B $29,000 3.839%

Capital Leases

Computer equipment and the facilities for child care, stores/receiving and ATl residence hall
are financed as capital leases. The original cost and lease obligations related to these
capital leases as of June 30, 1999 are $26,658 and $20,956 respectively.

Debt and Lease Obligations

Obligations outstanding at June 30, 1999 are as foliows (capital leases include principal and
interest):

Bonds, Commercial Capital

Year Ending June 30, Notes Paper Leases
2000 $21,058 $91,000 $3,844
2001 20,173 - 4,154
2002 20,945 - 3,225
2003 16,083 - 3,244
2004 13,644 - 2,243
2005 and thereafter 105,339 _ - 10,388
Total future debt service 197,252 91,000 27,096
Less: interest - - (6,140}
Principal portion of future payments $197.262 $91,000 320,956

NOTE 6 — OPERATING LEASES

The University leases various buildings, office space, and equipment under operating lease
agreements. These facilities and equipment are not recorded as assets on the balance
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sheet. The total rental expense under these agreements was $11,457 for the year ended
June 30, 1899.

Future minimum payments for afl significant operating leases with initial or remaining terms
in excess of one vear as of June 30, 1999 are as follows:

Year Ending June 30,
2000 . $8,431
2001 6,368
2002 5,150
2003 1,423
2004 1,230
2005 and thereafter 8,704

Total minimum lease payments $29,306

NOTE 7 — ENDOWMENT AND ANNUITY FUNDS

The fund equities comprising the endowment and annuity funds at June 30, 1999 are as
follows:

Endowments $827,781
Quasi-endowments 236,615
Annuity 4137

Total $1,068,533

NOTE 8 — STATE SUPPORT

The University is a state-assisted institution of higher education which receives a student
enroliment-based instructional subsidy from the State of Ohio. This subsidy, which is based
upon a formula devised by the Ohio Board of Regents, is determined annually and is
adjusted to State resources available.

The State also provides line-item appropriations which partially support the current
operations of various activities which include clinical teaching expenditures incurred at The
Ohio State University Hospitals and other health sciences teaching facilities, The Ohio State
University Extension, The Ohio Agricultural Research and Development Center, and the
Center for Labor Research.

In addition to current operating support, the State of Ohio provides the funding for and
constructs major plant facilities on the University's campuses. The funding is obtained from
the issuance of revenue bonds by the Chio Public Facilities Commission (OPFC) which, in
turn, initiates the construction and subsequent lease of the facility by the Ohio Board of
Regents.
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Such facilities are reflected as buildings or construction in progress in the accompanying
balance sheet. The staie appropriations for these facilities are recognized as fund additions
in the plant funds of the financial statements when expended by the state. Neither the
obligations for the revenue bonds issued by OPFC nor the annual debt service charges for
principal and interest on the bonds are reflected in the University's financial statements.
Debt service is funded through approptiations {o the Ohio Board of Regents by the General
Assembly.

These facilities are not pledged as collateral for the revenue bonds. Instead, the bonds are
supported by a pledge of monies in the Higher Education Bond Service Fund and future
payments to be received by such fund, which is established in the custody of the Treasurer
of State.

NOTE 9 — CURRENT FUNDS REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
Unrestricted revenues and other additions are considered revenue when earned. Restricted
revenues and other additions are considered revenue when earned by satisfying the

requirements for expenditure.

The current funds restricted revenues earned through expenditure for the year ended June
30, 1989 are as follows:

State appropriations $80,762
Federal support 139,480
Other state support 24612
Local support 18,226
Private support 140,124
Endowment and investment income and realized gains 23,958

Total $427.162
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Current funds expenditures for the year ended June 30, 1999 are as follows:

Unrestricted Restricted

Educational and general:
Instructional and departmental research $402,038 $73,399
Separately budgeted research. 27,580 185,951
Public service 15,695 76,479
Academic support 81,548 11,087
Student services 45 056 1,078
Institutional support 78,756 7.576
Operation and mainienance of plant 51,223 6,624
Scholarships and fellowships 39,060 43.008
Total educational and general 741,856 405,204
Auxiliary enterprises 122,187 10,766
Hospitals 471,007 11,182
Total $1,335,050 . $427.162

NOTE 10 — RETIREMENT PLANS

During fiscal year 1997, the Ohio General Assembly enacted legislation that authorized the
creation of an Aliernative Retirement Plan (ARP) for certain employees of Ohio public
universities and colleges. The University’'s Board of Trusiees approved the ARPFP on
February 5, 1998. ARP adds a defined coniribution pension plan to the existing defined
benefit pension plans currently available to University employees. Employees meeting
certain criteria were allowed during fiscal year 1999 fo elect participation in ARP in lieu of
the existing defined benefit plans.

Defined Benefit Plans

The University faculty is covered by the State Teachers Retirement Sysiem of Chic (STRS).
Substantially all other employees are covered by the Public Employees Retirement System
of Ohio (PERS). These retirement programs are statewide cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plans. STRS and PERS provide retirement and disability benefits,
annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits fo plan members and beneficiaries.
Benefits are established by state statute. Both STRS and PERS issue separate, publicly
available financial reports that include financial statements and required supplemental
information. These reports may be obtained by contacting the two organizations.

STRS PERS

275 East Broad Street 277 East Town Street
Columbus, OH 43215-3771 Columbus, OH 43215-4642
(614) 2274080 (614) 466-2085

(800) 222-PERS (7377)
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In addition to the retirement benefits described above, STRS and PERS provide
postemployment health care benefits.

PERS currently provides postemployment health care benefits to retirees with ten or more
years of qualifying service credit and to primary survivors of those retirees. PERS
determines the amount, if any, of the associated health care costs that will be absorbed by
PERS. Under Ohio Revised Code (CRC), funding far medical costs paid from the funds of
PERS is inciuded in the employer contribution rate. For the fiscal year ended December 31,
1998, PERS allocated 4.2% (4.2% for law enforcement) of the employer contribution rate to
fund the health care program for retirees. The contributions allocated to retiree health
benefits, along with investment income on allocated assets and periodic adjustments in
health care provisions are expected to be sufficient to sustain the program indefinitely.

During 1997, the Retirement Board adopted a new calculation method for determining
employer contributions applied to other postemployment health benefits. Under the new
method, effective January 1, 1998, employer contributions, equal to 4.2% of member
covered payroll, are used to fund health care expenses. Under the prior methed, accrued
liabilities and the normal cost rates were determined for retiree health care coverage.

PERS expenditures for postemployment benefits during 1998 were $440.6 milion. The
unaudited estimated net assets available for these benefits at December 31, 1998 were
$9.4 billion. There were 115,579 benefit recipients eligible for postemployment benefits at
that date.

STRS currently provides comprehensive health care benefits to retirees and their
dependents. Coverage includes hospitalization, physician fees, prescription drugs, and
reimbursement of monthly Medicare premiums. Pursuant o ORC, STRS has discretionary
authority over how much, if any, of the associated health care costs will be absorbed by
STRS. Most benefit recipients pay a portion of the health care cost int the form of monthly
premiums. Under ORC, medical costs paid from the funds of STRS are included in the
employer contribution rate. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, STRS allocated
employer contributions equal to 3.5% of covered payroll to a Health Care Reserve Fund
{HCRF) from which payments for health care benefits are paid. The balance in the HCRF
was $2.16 billion at June 30, 1898. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1989, STRS
allocated employer contributions equal to 8.0% of covered payroll to the HCRF.

STRS expenditures for postemployment benefits during the year ended June 30, 1998 were
$218 million. There were 91,999 benefit recipients eligible for postemployment benefits at
that date.

Defined Contribution Plan
The Alternative Retirement Plan (ARP) is a defined contribution pension plan. Fulldime

administrative and professional staff and facuity with less than five years of service (those
not vested in the existing defined benefit plans) as of ARP's implementation date were
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allowed to choose enroliment in ARP. Classified civil service employees are not eligible to
participate in ARP. For those employees selecting participation in ARP, prior employee
contributions to STRS and PERS were transferred from those plans and invested in
individual accounts established with selected external providers.

ARP does not provide disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, postretirement
health care benefits or death benefifs to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits are
entirely dependent on the sum of contributions and investment retums earned by each
participant’s choice of investment options.

Funding Policy

ORC provides STRS and PERS statutory authority to set employee and empioyer
contributions. Contributions equal to those required by STRS and PERS are required for
ARP. For employees enrolling in ARP, ORC requires a portion (which may be revised
pursuant to pericdic actuarial studies) of the employer contribution be contributed to STRS
and PERS to enhance the stability of those plans. The required contribution rates (as a
percentage of covered payroll) for plan members and the University are as follows:

STRS PERS ARP

Faculty: ’ '

Plan Member 9.3% 9.3%

University 14.0% 14.0%*
Staff:

Plan Member 8.5% 8.5%

University 13.31% 13.31%*
Law Enforcement Staff:

Plan Member 9.0% 9.0%

University 16.7% 16.7%*

* Employer contributions include 6.0% paid to STRS or PERS.
The remaining amount is credited to employee’s ARP account.

The University’s contributions, which represent 100% of required employer contributions, for
the year ended June 30, 1899 and for each of the two preceding years are as follows:

Year STRS PERS ARP
Ended Annual Required Annual Required Annual Required
June 30, Contribution Contribution Contribution
1997 $33,800 $59,216 $ -
1998 $35,307 $62,697 $ -
1999 $36,364 $64,204 $1.274
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NOTE 11 — COMPENSATED ABSENCES
University employees earn vacation and sick leave on a monthly basis.

Classified civil service employees may accrue vacation benefits up to a maximum of three
years credit. Administrative and professional staff and faculty may accrue vacation benefits
up to a maximum of 240 hours. For all classes of employees, any earned but unused
vacation benefit is payable upon termination. '

Sick leave may be accrued without limit. However, eamned but unused sick leave benefits
are payable only upon retirement from the University with ten or more years of service with
the State. The amount of sick leave benefit payable at retirement is one fourth of the value
of the accrued but unused sick leave up to a maximum of 240 hours.

The University accrues sick leave liability for those employees who are currently eligible to
receive termination payments as well as other employees who are expected to become
eligible to receive such payments. This liability is calculated using the “termination payment
method” which is set forth in Appendix C, Example 4 of the GASB Statement No. 16,
Accounting for Compensated Absences. Under the termination method, the University
calculates a ratio, Sick Leave Termination Cost per Year Worked, that is based on the
University's actual historical experience of sick leave payouts to terminated employees.
This ratio is then applied to the total years-of-service for current employees.

The liability for the cost of vacation and sick leave benefiis is approximately $49,537 as of
June 30, 1988.
NOTE 12 — CAPITAL PROJECT COMMITMENTS

At June 30, 1999, the University is committed to future contractual obligations for capital
expenditures of approximately $135,171.

These projects are funded by the following sources:

State appropriations $35,972
Internal and other sources 89,199 3
Total $135.171

NOTE 13 — SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAMS

The Hospitals have established a tfrusteed self-insurance fund for professional liability
claims. The estimated liability and the related contributions to the fund are based upon an
independent actuarial determination as of June 30, 1999.
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The Hospitals' estimate of professional malpractice liability includes provisions for known
claims and actuarially determined estimates of incurred but not reporied claims and
incidents. This liability af June 30, 1998 of the anticipated future payments on gross claims
is estimated at its present vaiue of $13,604 discounted at an estimated rate of 6.0%.

Although actuai experience upon the ultimate disposition of the claims may vary from this
estimate, the self-insurance fund assets of $23,274 are in excess of the recorded liability at
June 30, 1998, and the excess of $3,670 is included in the Hospitals' fund equity.

The University is also self-insured with a stop-loss ceiling of $75,374 for employee health
insurance. As of June 30, 1999, $9,000 is recorded as a liability relating to both claims
received but not paid and estimates of claims incurred but not yet reported.

Changes in the reported liabilities since June 30, 1997 result from the following activities:

Malpractice Health
18399 1998 1999 1988
Liability at Beginning of Fiscal Year $13,262 $12,198 $8,948 $9,091
Current Year Claims, Changes in Estimates 416 1,302 52,157 53,134
Claim Payments {74} (238) (52,105)  (63.277)
Balance at Fiscal Year End $13.604 $13.2862 $ 9.000 $ 8948

NOTE 14 — CONTINGENCIES

The University is a party in & number of legal actions. While the final outcome cannot be
determined at this time, management is of the opinion that the liability, if any, for these legal
actions will not have a material adverse effect on the University's financial position.

NOTE 15 — FUNDS HELD IN TRUST BY OTHERS

The University is the beneficiary of and annually receives income from funds held in trust by
other trustees. These funds are administered by outside trustees and are neither in the
possession nor under the control of the University. The principal amount of these funds is
not determinable at the present time.
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Deloitte &
Touche

/\ Deloitte & Touche LLP Telephone: {614} 221-1000
- 155 East Broad Strest Facsimile: {(614) 229-4647

Columbus, Ohio 43215-3611

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

To the Board of Trustees of
The Ohio State University
Columbus, Ohio

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as
a whole. The supplemental information listed in the Table of Contents is presented for the purpose of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. This additional information
is the responsibility of the University’s management. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

DA T "

October 4, 1999
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Supplemental Information ,

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 1999

ASSETS

CURRENT FUNDS
Unrestricted:
Educational and general:

Cash and cash equivalents
Real estate - at cost or contributed value
Investments
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $4,748,413
Due from piant unexpended funds
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges

Total educational and general

Auxiliary enterprises:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivabie, less aliowance of $1,132,733
Due from unrestricted educational and general funds
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges

Total auxiliary enterprises

Hospitais:
Cash and cash equivalents
investments
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $77,233,559
Due from unrestricted educational and general funds
Due from restricted funds
inventories
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges
Total hospitals

Total unrestricted

26 The Ohio State University

2,336,081
287,500
468,332,848
5,168,451
34,180,287
18,248,630
9,056,240

22,385,245

560,994,382

250,111
3,896,533
31,988,810
4,123,587
139,604

40,398,645

12,505,703
21,869,650
143,394,014
18,653,122
46,375
7,014,458
2,039,360

205,522,682

806,915,709




LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITIES

CURRENT FUNDS
Unrestricted: .
Educational and general:

Accountis payable 38,181,709
Accrued liabilities 77,621,163
Due to unrestricted auxiliary funds 31,988,810
Due to unrestricted hospital funds 18,653,122
Due to restricted funds 83,657,492
Due io loan funds 49,891
Due to plant renewal and replacement funds 27,098,327
Due to plant retirement of indebtedness funds 84,959,134
Deposits 936,185
Deferred credits 45 552,097
Deposits held in custody for others 790,040
Fund equities 171,506,412

Total educational and general 560,994,382

Auxiliary enterprises:

Accounts payable 2,820,156
Accrued liabilities 4,654,948
Deposits 845,790
Deferred credits ‘ 24,596,666
Due to plant unexpended 123,364
Due to plant renewals and replacements funds 308,060
Due to plant retirement of indebtedness funds 1,505,476
Fund equities 5,544 184

Total auxiliary enterprises 40,398,645

Hospitals:

Accounts payable 27,668,248
Accrued liabilities 52,539,358
Fund equities 125,314,076

Total hospitals 205,522,682

Total unrestricted 808,915,709
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THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
BALANCE SHEET, Continued

June 30, 1999

ASSETS

CURRENT FUNDS, Continued
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Restricted:

Cash and cash equivalents 7,892,592
Real estate 40,000
Investments 20,434,088
Accrued inferest receivable 3,211,871
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $954,967 59,186,533
State and federal receivables 2,850,456
Due from unrestricted educational and general funds 83,657,492
Due from endowment and similar funds 4,373,629
Inventories S,087
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 705,151

Total restricted 182,370,959

Total current funds 989,286,708

LOAN FUNDS

Cash and cash equivalents 3,626,176
Accrued interest receivable 5,804,345
Due from unrestricted educational and generatl funds 49,891
Notes receivable, less allowance of $6,300,000 56,812,812

Total loan funds 66,293,224




LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITIES

CURRENT FUNDS, Continued'
Restricted:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Advances - sponsored programs

Due to unrestricted hospitals funds
Fund equities

Total restricted

Total current funds
LOAN FUNDS

Fund equities:

U.8. Government loan fund grants:

Perkins loan
Other federal
University funds:
Unrestricted

Restricted

Total loan funds

$ 6,028,529
33,520,977
18,252,991

46,375
124,522,127

$ 182,370,999

$ 989,286,708

$ 35,238,222
20,054,125

2,210,855
8,790,022

$ 66,293,224
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THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
BALANCE SHEET, Continued

June 30, 1999

ASSETS
ENDOWMENT AND SIMILAR FUNDS
Cash and cash equivalents . $ 32,573,651
Real estate - at cost or contributed value 31,713,232
Investments 1,041,259,820
Total endowment and simiiar funds $ 1,105,546,813
ANNUITY AND LIFE INCOME FUNDS
Cash $ 993,709
Investments 6,396,585
Total annuity and life income funds $ 7,390,304
PLANT FUNDS
Unexpended:
Deposits with trustees $ 2,106,848
Due from unrestricted auxiliary funds 123,364
Total unexpended % 2,230,012
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LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITIES

ENDOWMENT AND SIMILAR FUNDS

Accrued liabilities
Due to restricted funds
Due to plant retirement of indebtedness funds
Deposits held in custody for others
Fund equities:
Unrestricted quasi-endowment
Restricted quasi-endowment
Restricted endowment
Total endowment and similar funds

ANNUITY AND LIFE INCOME FUNDS

Accrued liabilities
Fund equities:
Restricted

Total annuity and life income funds

PLANT FUNDS

Unexpended:
Lease obligations payable
Bonds payable
Due to unresiricted educational and general funds
Due to plant retirement of indebtedness funds
Due to investment in plant funds
Fund equities:
Unrestricted

Totat unexpended

19,979,946
4,373,629
8,733,360
8,063,909

66,363,228
170,252,011
827,780,730

1,105,546,813

3,253,260

4,137,044

7,380,304

847,931
2,231,868
19,249,630
1,273,739
5,043,282

(26,516,438)

2,230,012
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THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
BALANCE SHEET, Continued

June 30, 1999

ASSETS
PLANT FUNDS, Continued

Renewals and replacements:
Investments
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $0
Due from unrestricted educational and general funds
Due from unrestricted auxiliary funds

Total renewals and replacements

Retirement of indebtedness:
Deposits with trustees
Accounts receivable, gross
Bue from unrestricted educational and general funds
Due from unrestricted auxiliary funds
Due from endowment and similar funds
Due from unexpended plant
Due from renewals and replacements funds
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges
Total retirement of indebtedness

Investment in plant:
Due from plant unexpended funds
Due from renewals and replacements funds
Land
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings and fixed equipment
Movable equipment, furniture, library books
Construction in progress
Total investment in plant

Total plant funds
AGENCY FUNDS
Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, gross
Total agency funds
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517,636
735,551
27,088,327
308,060

28,859,574

8,920,311
413,750
64,959,134
1,605,476
8,733,360
1,273,739
672,964
1,434,118

87,912,852

5,043,282
4,144,714
34,721,844
147,770,777
1,474,648,242
839,751,511
193,726,047

2,689,807,317

2,818,609,755

1,454,138
880,183

2,334,321




LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITIES

PLANT FUNDS, Continued

Renewals and replacements:
Accounts payable

Due to plant retirement of indebtedness funds

Due ta investment in plant funds
Fund equities:

Unrestricted

Total renewals and replacements

Retirement of indebtedness:
Accrued interest
Fund equities:
Unrestricted
Restricied

Total retirement of indebtedness

Investment in plant:
Accounts payable
Notes payvable
Lease obligations payable
Bonds payable
Net investment in plant

Jotal imvestment in plant

Total plant funds
AGENCY FUNDS

Accounts payable

Deposits held in custody for others
Total agency funds

2,974,479
672,954
4,144,714

20,867,417

28,659,574

727,672

39,578,032
47,607,148

87,912,852

9,187,996
95,616,678
20,008,544

189,403,132
2,384,590,967

2,899,807,317

2,818,609,755

233,736
2,100,585

2,334,321
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THEOQHIQ STATEUNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BEQUITIES

Year Ended June 30, 1583
UNRESTRICTED CURRENT FUNDS
Educational Auxitary Yotal
and Ganaral Entarprisas Hospitals Unrastricted

REVENUES AND OTHER ACDITIONS
Unrestrictad current funds revenues $ 784,459,245 $ 137.882.085 s 494,182,319 $ 1,416,323,649
State appropriations - . - .
Federal appropriations - - - -
Local appropriations - - - -
Federal grants and contracts - - . - -
State grants and contracts - - - .
Locai grants and contracts - .- . .
Private grants and confracts - N - -
Endow ment income - - - -
hvesiment income - - - -
nteresi and penalties on loans receivable . - - .
Expended for plant faciities {including $76,020,894 .
charged to current funds expenditures) - - - -
Retirement of indebtedness - - - -
Net appreciation / {depreciation} of market value of nvestments - - - -
TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS 784,459 245 137,682,085 494,182,319 1,416,323 649

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS
Educational and general expengiiures 741,856,636 - - 741855638
Auxifiary enterprises expenditures - 122186686 - 122,196,686
Hospials expendifures - - 471,007,180 471007,180
ndirect costs recovered - - - -
Refunded to grantors - - - - - . . R
Loan canceliations and write-offs - - - -
Administrative and collection cosis - - - -
Provision for uncollectible joans - - - R
Annuities paid - - - -
Expended for plant faciities {including

non-capitaiized expenditures of $7,103,537) . - - . - .
Bond administrative expenditures - - - .
Retirement of indebtedress - - - .
nterest on indebtedness {including capitalized interest of $4,003,537) - - - .
Disposal and w rite-offs of plant facifities - - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS 741,855,836 122,186,686 471,007,180 1,335,049,502

TRANSFERS AMONG FUNDS - ADDITIONSH{DEDUCTIONS)
Mandatory
Principal and interest (15,130,359} {4,189,514) {5.844.209) {25,164.082)
Matching grants {11,471} - - {11.471)
Non-mandatory:
Support to auxiliary enterprises. (1,684,812) 1,684 812 - -
Debt service 860,408 {206,582) - 653,826
Capital improvements {8,648,507) {5.544,908) {10.551.819) (25,146,234}
Endew ment principal [3,688.447) - {30.000) {3,719.447)
nterfund 8,541,605 {5, 144,241) {8,233.243} {5,835,879)
TOTAL TRANSFERS {19,763,583) {13,800,433) {25,6589.271) (59,223,287}

NET INCREASE/ {DECREASE; FOR THEYEAR 22,840,026 ~1,694,968 (2,484,132} 22.050,850

FUND EQUITY, BEGINNING CF THEYEAR 148,666,386 B 3,849,218 127,708,208 280,312,812

FUND EQUITY, END OF THE YEAR H 171,506,412 s 5,544 184 $ 125,314,078 3 202,364,572
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RESTRICTED CURRENT FUNDS .
Educational Auxiliary Total Total Current
and Ganeral Entarprises Hog pitals Rastricted Funds
$ - - - - s 1,4158,323.,649
75,628,924 - 9,490,242 85,120,166 i 85,120,168
15,286,744 - - 15,286,744 _ 15,286,744
16,988,085 - . - 16,588,085 16,988,085
152,528,118 £9,900 18,678 152,636,696 152,636,698
24,200,516 . - - 24,200,516 24,200,516
2,235,416 - - 2235416 2,235416
159,507,793 11,832,344 1,928,988 173,276,125 173,276,125
4,845,386 467,745 1,350,775 6,663,907 6,663,907
763,708 - - 753,706 763,706
288,658 - - 299,858 289,668 +
452,285,345 12,396,990 12,788,683 477,471,019 1,893,794,668
405,203,636 - - 405,203,636 1.147,069,272
- 10,785,985 - 10,765,985 132,952,871
- - 11,182,571 11,192,571 482,188,751
39,504,041 - - 39,504,041 39,504,041
8,513 - - 8,513 8,513
444.716,190 10,765,985 11,192,571 466,674,746 1.801,724,248
(1,155,226) (7,947.807) - {9,102,833) {34,266,915)
- - - - (11.471)
- (117,127} - (117,127} 538,699
1,541,885 (160,000} {185,000} 1,186,885 (23.959,349)
{12,183,922} (142 455) {265 965) {12,592,342) {16,311,789)
26,725,904 2,420,567 32,073 28,182,550 22,346,671
13,932,641 (5,846 622} (428 886) 7,567,133 {51,666,154)
21,501,797 (4,315,617} 1,167,226 18,353,408 40,404,266
101,492,068 1,545,145 3,131,507 106,158,721 288,482,533
] 122,992,865 (2,770,472} 4,298,733 124,522,127 3 426,886,788
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THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND EQUITIES

Yaar Ended June 30, 1889

Endowment Annulty and
Lean and Similar Life income
Funds Funds Funds

REVENLES AND OTHER ADDITIONS

Untestricted current funds revenues . s _ . - 3 - s -
State appropriations - - -
Federal appropriations - - .
Local appropriations - - -
Federal grants and contracts 78,231 - - -
State grants and contracts - - -
Local grants and contracis - - -

Private grants and contracts 29,183 38,611,832 6,508
Endow ment income 206,702 - 500,037
Investrant income 212,446 111,382 -
Interest and penaities on loans receivable 26818416 - -

Expended for plant facilties (including $76,020,894

charged to current funds expenditures) - - -
Retirement of indebtedness B - ) - -
Net appreciation / {(depreciation) of markst value of investments - 122,023,272 {280,303)
TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS 3.144,958 161,746,486 226 642

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS

Educational and general expenditures - - -
Auxiliary enterprises expenditures - - -
Hospitels expenditures - - -
Indirect costs recovered - - -
Refunded fo grantors - - -

Loan cancellations and write-offs 255,661 - -
Administrative and collection costs 860,197 - -
Provision for unceliectible loans 306,000 - - - -

Annuities paid - - 478,556
Expended for plant facilities (including - -
non-capitalized expenditures of $7,103,537) - - -
Bond administrative expenditures - - -
Retirement of indebtedness - - -
nterast on indebtedness {including capitalized interest of $4,003,537) - - -
Disposal and w rite-offs of plant facilities - . .
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS 1,415,858 - 478,558

TRANSFERS AMONG FUNDS - ADDITIONS/{DEDUCTIONS)

Mandatory:
Principal and interest - - -
Matching granis 11,471 - -
Non-mandatory:
Support to auxiliary enterprises - - -
Debt service - - -
Capital improvements - (4,233,747 -
Endeow ment principal - 17,498,226 {1.184,437)
Interfund (39,775} (22,306,896) -
TOTAL TRANSFERS (28,304) {9.044,417) (1,184,437}
NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) FOR THE YEAR 1,700,796 152,702,069 £1.435,351)
FUND BQUITY, BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 64,592,428 911,693,500 5,573,395
FUND BEQUITY, BND OF THE YEAR s 66,293,224 $ 1,064,395,969 $ 4,137,044
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PLANT FUNDS
Renewals and Ratiremsant of Investment
Unexpesnded Replacemaents indebtedness in Plant
- - s - 3 - 3 -
10,173,173 52,885,733 - -
1,402,387 8,385,570 848,182 -
1,123,319 (358,108) 4,229,657 -
- - - 276,380,835
- - - 24,358,420
- 17.636 5,937 -
12,698,879 60,950,333 4,883,788 301,239,255
38,592 190,679 - -
38,410,718 165,549,223 - -
- - 516,411 -
- - 24 358,421 -
- - 10,050,628 -
- - - 38,584,204
38,449,310 185,738,802 34,925 460 38,584 204
{675.545) {87.796) 35,040,256 -
- - {536,699) -
4 681,400 26,650,824 - (3,148,928)
1.168,513 65,253,354 38,750,001 {106,171,868)
5,174,268 91,816,182 74,253,558 {109,320,798)
(20,576,063} (12,872,887} 44,211,884 153,334,255
(5,940,375} 33,840,304 42 973,296 2,231,258,712
$ (26,516,438) $ 20,867,417 % 87,185,180 $ 2,384,590,967
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THEOHO STATE UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF CURRENT FUNDS REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND OTHER CHANGES

Year Ended June 30, 1999
UNRESTRICTED
Educational Auxiliary Total
and General Enterprises Hospitals Unrestricted
REVENUES
Tulion, fees and other student charges s 326,575,828 $ - H - % 326,575,828
State appropriations 333,365,888 - - 333365886
Federa! appropriations - - - - -
Local appropriations - ' - . -
Federal grants and cordracis 26,854,141 - - 26,854,141
State grants and contracts 3,127,563 - - 3,127,563
Loeal grants and contracis - - - -
Private grants and contracts 15,644,870 - - 15,644,870
Endow ment income 4,396 628 - - 4,396,628
Temporary investment income 15,568,008 - - 15,588,089
Sales and services 47174718 126,685,151 456,893,207 630,764,074
Other sources 41,751,514 10,985,934 37,288,112 80,626,560
TOTAL REVBENUES .. 784458245 137,682,085 424,182,319 1,418,323 648
EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS
Educational and general,
nstructional and departmentat research 402 937,663 - - 402 937,663
Separately budgeted research 27,580,401 - - 27.580,401
Public servics 15,695,431 - - 15,685,431
Academic support 81,547,832 - - 81,547,832
Studsn! sarvices 45055 844 - - 45,055644
nstitutional support 78,756,279 - - 78,786,273
Operation and maintenance of plant 51,223,068 - - 51,223,068
Scholarships and fellow ships 25,058,318 - , - 39,059,318
Totat educational and generaf 741855636 - - 741,855,635
Auxiiary enterprises - 122,186,686 - 122,186,686
Hospitals - - 471,007,180 471,007,180
Mendatory transfers:
Frincipal and interest 15,130,359 4,189.514 5,844,209 25,164,082
Renew als and replacements - - - -
Matching grants 11,471 - - 11,471
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS 756,597 465 126,376,200 476,851,389 1.360,225,055
NON-MARDATORY TRANSFERS AND OTHER
ADDITIONS/{DEDUCTIONS)
Non-mandatory {ransfars:
Suppoert to auxifiary enterprises {1,684,812) 1684812 - -
Dett sarvice ] 860,408 {206,582) - 653,826
Capital improvements (8,548,507 {5.944,508) (10,551,819} (25,145,224)
Endow ment principal {3.689.447) - {30,000) {3,719.447)
nterfund 8,541,805 (5,144,241} (9,233,243} {5,835,879)
Excess of restricted receipts over fransfers {a revenus - - . .
Refunded ip grantors - - . . R
ndrect costs recoverad - - -
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) FORTHEYEAR $ 22,840,025 H 1,684,956 $ {2484132) % 22,350 880
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RESTRICTED
Educational Auxiliary Total Total
and General Enterprises Hospitals Resftricted Current Funds

$ - 13 - - - H 326,575,828
71,271,358 - 9,490,242 80,761,601 414,127 487
14,567,152 - - 14,587,152 14,567,152
16,055,543 - - 16,055,543 16,055,543
124,804,400 85,800 18,678 124,912,878 151,767,118
24511917 - - 24 611,817 27,739,480
2,170,386 - - 2,170,388 2,170,386
128,569,128 10,394,163 1.180.775 140,124,086 155,768,936
23,153,751 281,822 522,876 23.958,54% 28,355,177

- - - - 15,568,099

- - - - 630,764,074

- - - - 60,026,560
405,203,635 10,765,985 11,182,571 427,162,192 1,843,485841
73,398,224 < B 73,399,224 476,336,887
185,950,623 - - 185,950,623 213,531,024
76,473,333 - - — 76,479,333 82 174,764
11,088,775 - - 11,086,775 92,634,607
1,078,661 - - 1,078,661 46,134,305
7,576,152 - - 7.578,152 88,332,431
6,824,273 - - 8,624,273 57,847,341
43,008,595 - - 43,008,595 82,067,913
405,203,636 - - 405,203,636 1,147,050,272

- 10,765,985 - 10,765,885 132,852,671

- - 11,182,571 11,192,57% 482,199,751

1,155,226 7,947,807 - 9,102,833 34,266,915

- - - - 14,471
406,358,862 18,713,592 11,192,571 436,285,025 4,796,490,080

- {117,127) - {(117.127) 536,899
1,541,885 {180,000} (185,000} 1,186,885 © (23,959,349)
{12,183,922) (142,455) (265,955) (12,592,342) (16,311,789)
25,725,904 2,420,567 32,079 28,182,550 22,346 671
47.081,710 1,631,005 1,596,112 50,308,827 50,308,827
{8,513) - - (8,513) {8,513
{39.504,041) - - (39,504,047) (39,504,041)
$ 21,501,797 5 {4,315.617) 1,167,226 18,353,406 $ 40,404,266
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N
YEAR 2000 SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Summary of GASB Technical Bulletin

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Technical Bulletin 98-1, Disclosures about
Year 2000 Issues, was issued in October 1998, and amended as Technical Bulletin $8-1
in March 1999. The technical bulletins state in part that:

+ The Year 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in many electronic data processing
systems and other equipment that may adversely affect a government’s operations as
early as fiscal 1989.

e Problems affecting a wide range of governmental activities will likely result if
computers and other electronic equipment which are dependent upon date-sensitive
coding are not corrected.

» These problems have a potential for causing a disruption to some government
operations and may temporarily increase the cost of these operations.

In accordance with the requirements of Technical Bulletins 98-1 and 99-1, the University
makes the following disclosures about the Year 2000 issue.

Summary of the University's Plan for Y2K Readiness

The University has been involved in Y2K preparation for several years. In general, the
University is taking a risk reduction approach to Y2K readiness. The University will use a
combination of remediation and contingency planning steps in its risk reduction plan. The
remediation steps will reduce risk by ensuring that mission critical systems will operate as
expected. The contingency planning involves preplanned steps to continue operations
and recover, should the systems not operate as expecied. A Y2K task force has been
established to: .

¢ Provide recommendations for policies and procedures to the Coordinating Council
{which consists of the president, provost, vice presidents and select deans)

+ Provide monthly reports to the Coordinating Council and quarterly reports io the Board
of Trustees

» Provide expertise and tools to assist the administrative units and colleges

* Provide quality assurance for reporting

The Y2K task force has identified five priority institutional processes. Within each of these
processes are imbedded the University’'s mission critical systems. The pricrity institutional

processes are as follows: Health Care Delivery Services, Safe and Healthy Environment,
Teaching and Leaming, Research, and University Administration.
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YEAR 2000 SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Stages of Work Necessary to Make the Processes Y2K Compliant

The University is submitting the mission critical systems to the following stages of work to
address Year 2000 issues:

s Awareness Stage — Establishing a budget and project plan for dealing with the Year
2000 issue

e Assessment Stage — ldentifying the systems and components for which Year 2000
compliance work is needed

o Remediation Stage — Making changes fo systems and equipment

« Validation / Testing Stage — Validating and testing the changes that were made during
the remediation stage

The University’'s Year 2000 remediation work for its mission critical systems {defined as
human life threatening, health hazard or critical o carrying out the University’s mission)
are in the following stages of work as of June 30, 1999; A — heeds to be addressed, P —
process, C — completed.

Priority Institutional Process /
Mission Critical Systems Awareness | Assessment | Remediation | Validation /
Requiring Year 2000 Remediation Stage Stage Stage Testing Stage

Health Care Delivery Systems
OARDC Animal Care
OSUMC BioMedical Engineering
OSUMC Dietetics
OSUMC Facilities
OSUMC Hospital Lab Services
OSUMC Patient Care Services
OSUMC Pharmacy
OSUMC Radiology
Patient Record Keeping
Patient Support Services
Praviding Studt Crisis Counseling
Student Health Care Services

QOIOIOIOIOI OO O|O[O
OO T OO OIO[OO
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YEAR 2000 SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Safe and Healthy Environment

Alarms C P A A
Electricity C P A A
Enhanced 911 services C C C C
Facility Operations C P A A
Lima — Physical Facilities C P A A
Lima — Security c c cC C
Lima — Telephone Services C C C P
Maintaining Conf Event Facilities c C P A
Maintaining Food Sve Operations C C P A
Maintaining Housing Operations C P A A
Maintaining Safe Housing Facilities C C P A
Mansfield - Physical Facilities C C C P
Mansfield — Security C C [o C
Mansfield — Telephone Services C C C C
Marion — Physical Facilities c c C C
Marion — Security C C C C
Marion — Telephone Services C 04 P A
Natural Gas C P A A
Newark — Physical Facilities C C C c
Newark ~ Security o} C Cc C
Newark — Telephone Services c [ P A
Nuclear Reactor Lab P P P P
OARDC Public Safety C c C C
OARDC Radiation Safety C C C C
OS8U Airport Operations P A A A
Provide Building Security C C C C
Provide EMS Response Cc C C P
Provide Fire Response C C C P
Provide Police Service c C C P
Providing BUCKID Card Services C C P A
Providing Food Services ’ C C P A
Providing Housing Food Services C P A A
Steam-Heating Hot Water C P A A
Telecommunications C c C C
Transportation Traffic Signals C C c P
UNITS information systems C c C c
Water C P A A
Water-Chilled C P A A

C C P A

Work Management System
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YEAR 2000 SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

University Administration
Admissions Application Process

ARMS HR - Benefits

ARMS HR - Payroll

Fed Student Fin Aid Process
Mainframe hardware

Mainframe Software
Procurement — ARMS

Recruit Prospective Students Proc
SONNET Backbone

Student Fee Collection

Student Loan Services

Student record maintenance
University General Ledger — FAS

OOIOIOIOIOIOIOIOIO| 0| OO
OOOOO(’?OOOOOOO
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The University believes that its mission crifical systems are in managed or acceptable
stages of readiness as of June 30, 1999, and believes that it will be able to operate and
provide mission critical services as of January 1, 2000. Because of the unprecedented
nature of the Year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related remediation efforts
will not be fully determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Management cannot
assure that the University is or will be Year 2000 ready, that the University’s remediation
efforts will be successful in whole or part, or that parties with whom the University does
business will be Year 2000 ready.

As of June 30, 1998, the University has not entered into any significant contractuai
agreements with respect to making computer systems year 2000 compliant.
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THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 1889

Sponsor LD. 1998
Federal Agency Number Expenditures
Research and Development Cluster:
Funds received directly from the following federal agencies:
Environmental Protection Agency 30020000 $ 1,358,193
National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) 30030000 1,285,452
Langley Research Center 304036102 294,224
Ames Research Center 30030163 233,764
L ewis Research Center 30030104 1,224,233
NASA Headquarters 30030105 (533)
Marshall Space Flight Center 30030261 175,612
Johnson Space Center 30030202 46,248
Kennedy Space Center 30030203 47,857
Goddard Spacs Flight Center 30030301 2,470,119
National Endowmert For The Humanities 30040100 28,516
National Science Foundation (NSF) 30050000 121,922
NSF Biological Sciences 30050101 594,406
NSF Integrative Biology & Neuroscience 30050102 889,106
NSF Molecular & Cellular Biosciences 30050103 1,016,446
'NSF Environmental Biology . 30050104 506,747
NSF Computer & Information Science & Engineeting ’ ) ) 30050200 379,059
NSF Cross Disciplinary Activities ) ’ 30050201 40,337
NSF Computer & Computation Research 30050202 721,366
NSF Information Robotics & Intelligent Systems 30050203 54,044
NSF Microelectronic Information Processing Systems 30050204 3,303
NSF Advanced Scientific Computing 30050205 100,787
NSF Networking & Communications Res & Infrastructure ’ 30050206 131,064
NSF Engineering 30050300 302,720
WSF Engineering, Education & Centers 30050302 344,828
NSF Chemical & Transport Systems 30050303 332,582
NSF Civil & Mechanical Structures 30050304 226,233
NSF Electrical & Communications Systems . 30050305 . 216,605
NSF Design, Manufacture, Industrial 30050306 463,779
NSF Div Bicengineering & Environmental 30050307 132,114
NSF Atmospheric Sciences 30050401 129,834
NSF Earth Sciences - 30050402 226,808
NSF Ocean Sciences 30050403 230,659
NSF Polar Programs 30050404 1,459,817
NSF Mathematical Sciences 30050501 745,641
NSF Physics 30050502 1,033,115
NSF Chemistry 30050503 2,081,905
NSF Materials Research 30050504 1,462,675
NSF Astronomical Sciences . 30050505 610,146
NSF Education & Human Resources 30050500 4,491
NSF Undergraduate Education 30050605 466,610
NSFDivGradED &R D . 30050611 270,661
NSF Social, Behavioral & Economic Sciences 30050800 1,437
NSF Social, Behavioral & Economic Research 30050801 971,699
NSF International Programs’ 30050803 37,520
Appalachian Regulatory Commission 30070100 15,400
U.8. Arms Control & Disarmament Agency 30120000 (588)
Veterans Administration 30170000 30,591
Veterans Administration Outpatient Clinic N 30170101 (778)
U.S. Information Agency (USIA) 30260000 168,581
Agency For International Development (AID) 30300100 165,766
Central Intelligence Agency 30350100 52,409

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards,

. {Continned)



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Federafl Agency

Research and Development Cluster:
Funds received directly from the following federal agencies:

Natjonal Research Courncil

Transportation Research Board

Degt. of Agriculture

United States Department of Agriculture (USDA)-Forest Service

USDA-Science & Education

USDA-Coop State Res Education & Extension Service

USDA-North Central Regional Integrated Pest Management Program

USDA-Agricultural Research Service

USDA-Natural Resources Conservation Service

USDA-Animal & Plant Health Inspection Service

Office of International Cooperation & Development

Economic Research Service

National Agricultural Statistics Service

1J.S. Department of Commercs (DC)-National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration (NOAA)

DC-National Institute of Standards & Technology

Air Force Material Command (AFMC)

Air Force Office of Scientific Research

1.5, Department of Defense (DOD)-Electronic Systems Center

AFMC-Phillips Laboratory

DOD-Wright Laboratory

DOD-Amy

DOD-Army Corps of Engineers

DOD-Amy Cold Regions Research & Engineering Lab

Humphredys Eng CSA

DOD-Army Natick Research & Development Labs

DOD-Army Medical Research & Development Command

DOD-Army Research Office

DOD-Naval Air Systerns Command

DOD-Naval Air Systems Command

DOD-Space & Naval Warfare Systems Center

DOD-Naval Surface Weapon Center

DOD-Naval Facility Energy Command

DOD-Office of Naval Research

DOD-Naval Research Lab

DOD-Naval Medical Reserve Instate

DOD-National Imagery & Mapping Agency

Defense Logistics Agency

National Security Agency

Maryland Procurement Office

Defense Supply Service

Uniformed Services University Health Services

U.S. Department of Education (DE)

DE-Office Of Educational Research & Improvement

DE-Inst Museum Services

DE-Fund Improvement Postsecondary Education

DE-Office of Postsecondary Education

DE-Center for Infernational Education

DE-Office of Special Education

DE-Office of Special Education

DE-Rehebilitation Services Administration

DE-Naticnal Institute of Disability & Rehabilitation Research

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards,

Sponsor LD.
Number

31020100
31020102
40000000
40020000
40040000
40040100
40040102
46040200
40060000
40070000
40100000
40120000
40160000

42020000
42040000
50016100
50010105
30010110
5001012%
50010800
50020000
350020160
50020103
50020106
50020213
50020300
50020400
50040000
50040101
50040110
50040112
50040114
50040300
50040301
50041602
50080000
50130000
50140000
50170000
50180000
50190000
53000000
53020000
53020100
53020300
530406000
53040200
53050000
53050100
53050200
53050300

1899
Expenditures

3 (3,304)

4,000
82,494
134,408
65,438
2,154,399
17,673
579,819
115,442
32,363
42,611
125,085
34218

1,532,286
70,410
173,753
3,338,671
678
31,883
284,092
135,853
71,113
36,309
117,173
25754
548,876
995,282
373,489
(722
431,861
22,105
10,178
1,622,002
96,378
28,323
52,620
158,073
165,545
12,325
239,571
25,848
315,099
5,158,188
210
154,891
504,738
832,991
3,370
316,975
173,366
616,809

(Continued)



THE QHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1958

. Sponsor LD. 1999
Federal Agency Number Expendituras
Research and Development Cluster:
Funds received directly from the following federal agencies:
DE-Office of Vocational & Adult Education Programs 53060000 5 545,749
Department of Energy (DOE) 55000000 5,670,518
Department of Health & Human Services §0000000 161,924
Public Health Services (PHS)-Food & Drug Administration £0040200 264,408
PHS-National Institute of Health 60040400 955,317
PHS-National Cancer Institute 60040402 12,721,475
PHS-National Heart, Lung, and Blood Institute 60040403 4.185,472
PHS-National Institute of Allergies & Infiotious Disorders 60040404 6,079,976
PHS-National Institute of Diabetes & Digestive & Kidney Diseages 50040405 2,293,437
PHS-National Instituts of Child Health & Human Development 60040406 1,280,677
PHS-National Institute of General Medical Sciences 60040407 5,162,789
PHS-National Institute of Neurological Disorders & Stroke 60040408 2,678,381
PHS-National Library Medicine 60040409 79,401
PHS-National Center for Research Resources 60040410 620,106
PHS-National Eye Institute 60040411 3,109,350
PHS-National Institute of Dental Research 60040412 2,098,837
PHS-National Institute on Environmental Health Services 60040414 349,321
PHS-National Institute of Aging 60040415 1,189,804
PHS-National Institute of Health Clinic Center 60040416 3,851
PHS-National Institute of Nugsing Research 60040418 705,038
PHS-National Institute of Arthritis and Musculo-skeletal and Skin Diseases 60040419 1,247,490
PHS-National Institute of Deafhess and Other Comnmnication Disorders 60040420 1,685,572
PHS-National Institute of Mental Health 60040421 3,308,230
PHS-Nationai Instifute of Drug Abuse : 60040422 736,296
PHS-National Institute of Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism 60040423 280,663
PHS-Health Resources & Services Administration 60040500 95,658
PHS-Bureau of Health Professions 50040501 236,942
PHS-Centers for Diseass Control & Prevention 60040600 126,756
PHS-National Institute of Occupational Safety & Health 60040601 631,743
PHS-Office of Population Affairs : 60041100 70,017
PHS-Agency for Health Cars Policy & Research 60041200 19,111
Administration Children & Families . 60070000 50,738
Department of Housing & Urban Development T6000000 1,900
U.8. Department of Interior (DI}-Fish & Wildlife Service - T2030060 274,752
DI-Geological Survey 72040000 237,080
DOL-~Bureau of Labor Statistics 76050000 7,600,252
Department of Statistics 80000000 (35,015)
DOT-Federal Highway Administration 82010000 70y
DOT-Federal Aviation Administration ' : : 82030000 134,486
DOT-National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 82040000 430,718

Subtotal of fiunds received directly from federal agencies $113,307,038

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUKE 30, 1989

Federal Sponsor
Agency 1.D. Pass-Through 1899
Pass-Through Sponsor Sponsor Number 1.D. Number Expenditures
Research and Development Cluster {cantinued):
Funds received directly fom the following

pass-through sporisors: -
Nozth American Assoc. For Environmental Education Environmental Protection Agency 30020000 20021322 s 98,085
University of Wisconsin Environmental Protection Agency 30020000 22000006 168,395
West Virginia University Esnvironmental Protection Agency 30020000 22000032 . 7,644
Yale University Environments! Protection Agency 30020000 22000088 27,783
New Jersey Institute of Technology Estvironmental Protection Agency 30020000 22000216 L102
Chio Environmenta Protection Agensy Environmental Protection Agency 30020000 26340000 75,891
Ohio OFC LK Erie Prote Environmental Protection Agency 30026000 26590000 : 19,367
Alliedsignal, Inc MNASA 30030000 10011751 284,287
Bssential Research, Inc. NASA 30030000 10011898 3,624
Positive Light Ine. NASA 30030000 10012131 7,875
Cleveland Clinic Foundation X NASA 30030000 20010421 68,572
Universities Space Research Association NASA 30030000 20020887 43,360
Space Telescope Science Institute NASA 30030000 20021006 140,781
Carnegie-Mellon University NASA 30030080 22000051 99,753
California Institute of Technology NASA 30030000 22000054 77,824
Geaorgia Institute of Technology NASA 30030000 22000189 18,677
University of Texas-Austin NASA i 30030008 22000270 75,111
Physical Research, Inc. NASA Langley Research Center 30030102 10012138 9,106
BG &G, Ine. Goddard Space Flight Center 30030301 10011343 33,246
University of Hlinois National Endowment for the Humanities 30040100 22000009 25,178
Ohio Humanities Council ‘MNational Endowment for the Humanities 30040100 26250000 11,990
Systran Corporation NSF 30050000 10011833 18,377
Anatrace, Ins. NSF 30050000 10020034 27,124
Computing Rescarch Association NSF 30050000 20021373 192
Rutgers University NSBF 36050000 22000003 45,831
University Medical & Dental New York NSF 30050000 22000004 3,388
University of Hiinois NSF . 30050000 22000003 325912
Indiens University NSF 30050000 22000012 29,056
University of California Davis NSF 30050000 220000013 {6,545)
Pennsylvania State University NSF 30050000 22000030 47
Miarni University NSF 30050000 22000049 79,011
University of Missouri NSF 30050000 22000073 6,172
University of Connecticut ) NSF ‘ 30050000 22000076 26,815
Ofterbein College NSF * 30050000 22000077 8,554
Cormell University NSF 30050000 22000081 25,133
Cohumbia University NSF 30050000 22000135 7,034
William Mazsh Rice University NSF 30050000 22000231 (663)
Drrestel University NSF 30050000 22000246 343,689
University of hMassachusetts/Amherst NSF 30050000 22000274 9,902
Development Alternatives Inc. AD 30300100 10011316 5,166
Foundation International Common Asst AL 30300108 20010510 78,217
Midwest University Consortium

for Intemational Activities ATD 30300100 20020401 {31.282)
University of Wisconsin AD 30300100 mQOUOS 145,586
Virginia Polytechnic Institute AID 30300100 22000023 8,254
U.5.-Egypt S&T Joint Board AID o 30300100 28610001 56,027
Chio Emergency Management Agency Federal Emergency Management Agency 30330000 256560000 10,110
University of Texas of Austin Corporation for National & Community Service 31040001 22000270 1,875
Dairy Management Ins, Depertment of Agriculture 40000000 20020911 43,459
Midwest Ady Food Man Department of Agriculture 40000000 20021278 21,933
Purdue University Department of Agriculture 40000000 22000002 24,883
Rutgers University Department of Agriculture 40000000 22000003 25,108
University of [llinois Department of Agriculture 40000000 22000009 13,381
Virginia Polytechnic Institute Department of Agriculture 48000000 22000023 5,753

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDlTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1589

Pass-Through Sponsor

Research and Development Cluster {continued):
Funds received directly from the following
pass-through sponsors:
Michigan State University
Towa State University
Texas A & M University
Southern linois University
University of Minnesota
Comell University
University of Nebraska
Untversity of Florida
North Carolina St. University
University of Delaware
University of Michigan,
Franklin Co. Human Services
University of South Carolina
Caterpiilar Inc.
Imaticn Corporation
Lockheed Martin Corporation
E-Systems Corporation
Mission Research Corporation
Logicon Technical Services
Nichols Research Corporation
Extruzde Hone Corporation
Polychip
Battelle Memorial Institute
University of Dayton
University of Arizona
Lockhkeed Martin Corporation
Veridian-SRL
Mission Research Corporation
General Electric Aircraft Engines
Demaco, Inc.
Computer Science & Applications, Inc.
Coretek, ne.
‘Thermaceors, Inc. R
Dynamic Engineering, Inc.
TFransmap Corporation
LSP Technologies, Ine.
Sverdrap Technologies, Inc.
Technical Management Concepts, Inc.
CC Technologies Lab
Battelle Memoris] Institute
Guide Consortium
Northeast Consortium Engineering Education
" Penn State University
Camegis-Mellon University
University of Cincinnati
University of Virginia
Princeton University
Research & Development Labogatory
Loral Defense Systems
Coretek, Inc.
Frontier Tach, Ine.
University of Chicago
Lackheed Martin Corporation
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federat awards.

Faderal

Agency
Sponsor

Department of Agriculture
Department of Agriculture
Department of Agriculture
Department of Agriculture
Department of Agriculture
Department of Agriculture
Department of Agriculture
Department of Agriculture
Department of Agriculture
Department of Agriculture
Department of Commerce
Department of Commerce

Wational Oceanic & Atmospheric Administration

National Institute of Standards & Technology
National Institute of Standards & Technology
BoR

|»le)3;

DOp

DOD

oD

bCo

oD

Do

DoD

LoD

Air Force
AlrForce
Air Force
Air Force
Air Ferce
Air Foree
Air Force
Air Force
Air Forcs
Air Force
Air Force
Air Force
Air Fores
Air Force
Air Forco
Air Force
Air Fores
AirForce
Air Force
Air Fores
Alr Fores
Air Force Office of Scientific Research,
Air Force Office of Scientific Research

Sponsor
I.D.
Number

40000000
40000000
40000000
40000000
40000000
400600000
40000000
40000000
40000000
40000000
42000000
42000000
42020000.
42040000
42040000
36000000
50000000
50000000
50000000
50000000
50000000
500800000
50000000
50000000
50000000
50010000
56010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010060
50016000
50010000
50010105
50010165
50020000
50020000
50020000

-50028400

50020210
50020400

Pass-Through
1.D. Number

22000044
22000047 -
22000053
20000055
22000067
22030081
22000085
22000108
22000138
22000138
22000005
24000366
22000241
10011704
10012042
10010042
16011157
10011436
10011651
10011948
10011976
10012074
20020012
22000008
22000116
" 10010042
10011383
10011436
10011756
100118593
10011986
10012013
10012035
10020001
10620003
10020012
10020016
10020023
10020033
20020012
20021102
20021188
22000030
22000051
22000074
22000203
2200028%
10011649
10011871
10012013
10020067
22000018
10010042
22000001

1988
Expenditures

$ 73,736
11,543
(21}
4272
47,109
8,756
“138,671
(2,238)
21,584
467
24,291
11
20,022
116,456
115,533
§0,257
642,397
11,973
219,819
1,567,633
6,030
(29,573)
55,839
46,357
76,833
115,132
13,675
37,395
441,945
{703)
55,304
11616
18,501
34,749
5371
63,821
9310 °
110,346
3974
38,495
88,949
3,532
155,654
49,349
57,277
163,935
15412
34,429
23,763
4,000
12,984
16,328
395,278
83,518

(Continued)



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998

Pass-Through Sponsor

Research and Development Cluster (contimued):
Funds received directly fom the following
pass-through sponsors:
Duke University
Edison Welding Institute Inc,
Tracer Appld Sen Inc.
Geo-Centers Inc.
Dynalysis of Princeton
Penn State University
University of Akron
Plastronde, Ine,

Research Foundation of City University of New York

Edueation Development Center, Ing.
Pean State University

Wright State University

University of Maryland

Chio University

University of Delaware

Tiinois State Board of Education

Chio Department of Education

Chio Division of Vocational & Adult Education
Ohio 8choal-To-Work Office
Babcock & Wilcox

Lockheed Martin Corporation

Air Products & Chemicals, Inc.
Westinghouss Electric Corporation
Drave Lime Company

Universities Research Association, Inc,
MSE, Inc.

Rocky Rescarch

Nat Renewable Energy Laboratory
Associated Universities Inc.,
Consortium Plant Bictechnology Research Inc.
Ohic Aerospacs [nstitute

South Carolina Research Authority
Chio Valley Regional Development Commission
Purdue University

University of hiichigan

University of Califomia

University of California-Davis
University of Idsho

University of Chicage

‘Wayne State University

Washington University

Browm University

Area Agency on Aging 7

Children’s Hospital Research Foundation
University of North Carolina

IIT Research Institute

Cleveland Clinic Foundation

Purdue University

Rutgers University

University of Pittsburgh

Health Research Inc.

Cleveland Clinic Foundation

Cancer Therapy & Research Foundation of S Texas

AM College Radiology

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

Federal
Agency
Sponsor

Army Research Office
Nayy

Navy

Office of Naval Research
Office of Naval Research
Qffice of Naval Research
Uniformed Services University for Health
DE

DE

DE

DR

DE

DE

DE

DE

DE

DE

DE

DE

DOE

DOE

DOE

DOB
DOE
DOE
DOE
DOB
DOE
DOE
DOE
DOE
DCE
DOE

DOE
LCE
DCE
DGCE

Department of Health & Humsn Sarvices
PHS -
PHS

Food & Drug Administration
National Institute of Haalth
Wational Institute of [Health
National Institute of Health
National Institute of Health
National Cancer Institute
National Cancer Institufe
National Cancer Instittte
National Cancer Institute

Sponsor
1.D.
Number

50020400
50040000
30040000
50040300
50040300
50040300
50150000
53000000
53000000
53000000
53000000
53000000
53000000
53000000
53000000
53000000
53000000
53000000
53000000
55000000
55000000
55000000

- 55000000

55000000
55000000

' 55000000

35006000
55000000
35000000
33000000
55000000
55000000
55000000
55000000
55000000
55000000
55000000
55000000
55000000
55000000
55000000
55000000
60000008
60040000
60040000
50040200
60040400
60040400
0040400
50040400
60040402
60040402
60040402
60040402

Pass-Through
i.D. Number

22000094
10011218
20021229
10011454
10012108
22000030
22000066
10020005
26010432
200213238
22000030
22000087
22000120
22600130
22000138
24000281
26080000
26080100
26080103
10010026
10010042
10010612
10010381
10011501
10011288
10011972
10012132
20020800
20020801
20021036
20021043
20021319
20021347
22000002
22000005
22000011
22000013
22000016
22000018
22000034
22000209
22000284
20020054
20010182
22000146
20021128
20010421
22000002
22000003
22000036
10010523
20010421
20020743
20020917

1993
Expenditures

13 301,548

33,626
(3,144)
(25,682)
198,661
142,629
33,728
100,464
,344,235
1,334
6,636
42,184
91,545
62,097
“432)
518
989,309
1,175,579
116,640
213)
54,726
253,112
573,096
34,678
175,338
75122
37,259
250,292
40,809
31,956
109,986
325,280
36,938
449,405
59,105
101,855
(1,274)
25,538
379
247
1,582
149,374
16,728
5,525
1,845
8,380
25,099
19,327
21,696
(553)
5,948
33,973
114,033
1,539

{Continued)



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

SCHEBULE OF EXPENDITURES CF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998

Pass-Through Sponsor

Research and Development Cluster (continued):
Funds received directly from the following
pass-throngh sponsors:
Amegican Hezlth Foundation
University of Kansas Medical Center Research Institute
University of Michigan
Uhiversity of California
Univessity of Chicago
Texas A & M Universily
University of Minnesota
Oregan State University
University of Kentucky
University of Southem California
Washington University
Medical College Ohio
University of Helsinki
Mount Sipal Medical Center
Statisties & Epidemiclogy Research Corporation
Cleveland Clinic Foundation
Johns Hopkins University
Social & Scientific Systems, Inc.
Case Westem Research University
University of Massachusetts/Amherst
FProbiotix, Inc.

Precomp Incorporated
Rand Corporation
Columbia University
University of Tlinois
University of Tennessse
Indiana University
Cobumbia University
New York University
Johns Hopkine University
UES, Inc.

Children’s Hospital Research Foundation

Comell University
Ohio University

Children’s Hospital Philadelphia

Purdue University

University of Mirnesota

Duke University

Unéversity of Florida

University of Tennesses

Virginia Polytechnic Institute

Texas A & M University

Children’s Hospital Ressarch Foundation
Hemophilia Foundation of Michigan
Rehabilitation Institute Research Corporation
University of Maine at Orone

Univessity of California

Ohio Division of Wildlife

Allisnce For Cooperative Justice

Office of Criminal Justics Services

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federsl awards.

Federal
Agency
Sponsocr

Nationsl Cancer Institute
National Cancer Institute
National Cancer Institute
National Cancer Institute
National Caneer Institute
National Cancer Institute
National Cancer Institute
National Cancer Institute
Mational Cancer Institute
Wational Cancer Institute
National Cancer Institute
National Cancer Institute
National Cancer Institute
National Heart, Lung & Blood Institute
National Heart, Lung & Blocd Institute
National Heart, Lung & Bloed Institute
Wational Heart, Lung & Blood Instijute

National Institute Allergies & Infectious Disarders
Wational Institute Allergies & Infectious Disorders
National Instiute Allergies & Infectious Disorders
National Institute of Diabeties & Digestive &

Kidney Disease

National Institute of Child Health & Hurnan Development
Mational Institute of Child Health & Human Development
National Institute of Child Health & Human Development

National Institute General Medical Science
National Institute General Medical Science

National Institute Neurological Disorders & Stroke
National Institute Neurological Disorders & Stroke

National Institute Neurological Disorder
Nationat Eye Institute
National Institute of Dental Research
Mational Institute of Arthritis &
Muscskeletal & Skin Disease
Nationa! Institute of Arthritis &
Muscskeletsl & Skin Disease
National Institute of Arthoitis &
Musecskeletal & Skin Disease
National Institute of Mental Health
National Institute of Mental Health
‘National Institute of Mental Health
National Institute of Merntal Health
Mational Institute of Mental Health
National Institute of Drug Abuse
National Institute of Drug Abuss
National Institute of Drug Abuse
Maternal & Childrens Health Bureau
Maternal & Childrens Health Burean
Centers for Disease Control & Prevention
Centers for Disease Control & Prevention
ol
DI
Depariment of Justice
Department of Justice

Spansor
L.D.
Number

60040402
60040402
60040402
50040402
60040402
50040402
60040402
60040402
60040402
60040402
60040402
60040402
60040402
60040403
§0040403
60040403
60040403
60040404
60040404
60040404

60040405
60040406
60040406
60040406
60040407
60040407
60040408
60040408
60040408
60040411
60040412

60040419
60040419

60040419
60040421
60040421
60040421
60040421
60040421
60040422
50040422
60D40422
60040505
60040305
60040600
60040600
72000000
T2000000
4600000
74600000

Pass-Through
LD. Number

20021172
200213356
22000005
22000011
22000018
220000353
22000067
22000103
22000143
22000206
22000209
22000210
22010007
10011783
10012025
20010421
22000133
10012044
22000238
22000274

10012038
10011803
20021340
22000133
22000009
22000010
22000012
22000135
22000254
22000133
10020049

20010182
22000081

22000130
20020015
22000002
22000067
22000094
22000108
22000010
22000023
22000053
20010182
20021026
20021335
22000048
22000011
26110100
20021321
26140401

1999
Expenditures

s (40,880)

89,465
160,628
39,814
404,321
13,276
207,897
48,082
(3,813
75,540
13,604
35,818
61,168
263
14,605
154,050
239,032
30,711
19,845
3,530

16,351
30,954
20,009
74,890
3,794
10,952
116,477
10,472
(4,307)
25,063
23,767

2,840
58,574

33,303
118,521
5,146
1,729
75,553
24,997
(38,064)
91,123
12,882
51,598
3,066
110,409
3,536
16,277
824,342
31,867
(14,564)

{Countinued)



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

SCHEDUL E OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1598

Pass-Through Sponsor

Research and Development Cluster {continued):
Funds received directly from the following
pess-through sponsors:
Sarn Houston State University
National Opinion Research Center
Gallia, Jackson, Vinton Co Joint Vocationsl School
Chio Department of Education
Chio School-To-Work Office
National Con Burs & E Eur
University of Missouri,
Okhio Department of Transportation
Towa State University
Ohio Department of Public Safety

Subtotal pass-through from other sources

Total Research and Development Cluster

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

Federal
Agency
Sponsor
‘Mational Institute of Justice
DOL
oL
DOL
DOL
Department of State
Department of Transportation
Federal Highway Administzation
Federal Aviation Administration

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration

Sponsor
LD,
Number.

74040100
76060000
75000000
76000000
76000000
80000000
32000000
82010000

820300060
82040000

Pass-Through
1.D. Nursber

22000300
20020932
24000264
26080000
26080103
20020643
22000073
26010000

22006004
26400000

4599
Expenditures

3 31,387
1,496,434
298,201
298,936
178,563
22394
(599

20,250
227,099

5,513

20,573,995

133,881,033

{Continued)



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Sponsor LD./
- CFDA Pass-~Through 1998
Federal Agency Number L.D. Number Expenditures
Student Financial Aid Cluster:
Department of Education:
Federal Supplemental Educational Opporhmity Grant : 84.007 $1,543,736
Federal Work Study Program 84.033 3,734,851
Federal Perkins Loans 84.038 12,503
Federal Pell Grant Program ) 84.053 17,647,580
Department of Health and Human Services: - :
Finsancial Assistance for Disadvantaged Health Professional Students 93.139 64,896
Health Profession Student Loans 93.342 65,728
Scholarship Program for Students of Exceptional Financial Need 93.820 ' 113,306
Scholarship Program for Students of Exceptional Financial Need 93,925 277,931
Total Student Financial Aid Cluster 23,460,531
USDA - Hatch Program ) ] 10.203 5,207,227
USDA. - Cooperative Extension Service 10.500 10,158,947
Subtotal 15,366,174
OTHER PROGRAMS:
Funds received directly from the following Federal agencies:
NSF Education & Human Resources 30050600 153,928
Appalachian Regional Commission 30070100 34,615
US Information Agency 30260000 92,295
National Research Council 31020100 (6,717)
USDA-Coop State Res Education & Extension Service 40040100 313,512
Office of International Cooperation & Development 40106000 4,194
DOD-Unifortmed Services University Health Services 50194000 233,035
U.S. Department of Education (DE) 53000000 381,710
DE-Fund Improvement Postsecondary Education 33020300 : 56,640
DE-Office of Postsecondary Edugation 53040000 119,808
DE-Center for International Education 53040200 77,947
DE-Office of Special Education & Rehabilitative Services 53050000 111,702
DE-Office of Special Education 53050100 1,121,769
DE-Rehsbilitation Services Administration ' T 53050200 87,617
DE-National Institute of Disability & Rehabilitation Research 53050300 560,625
Department of Health & Human Services 60000000 764,294
PHS-National Center for Research Resources 60040410 2,046,410
PHS-Burean of Health Professions 60040501 74,114
PHS-Minority Comm Health Coalition Demonstration ’ 60041300 11,284
PHS-Administration for Children & Familics 60070000 (1,169}
Administration for Children Youth Families 60070100 1,611,674
PHS-Administration on Developmental Disabilities 60070500 269,627
Department of Housing & Urban Development 70000000 108,782
Department of Justice 740600000 _ 48,266
Subtotal funds received directly from other Federal agencics _ 8,275,962

See notes to schedule of expenditures of fedemt awards.

-10-




THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES CF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998%

Federal Agency

OTHER SOURCES:
USDA - Agricultural Marketing Service
USDA - Cooperative Forestry Research
USDA - Animal Health and Disease Research
USDA - Fund Rural America - Res. Educ. Ext Activities
DC - Public Telecommunication Facilities
DI - Fish & Wildlife Management Assistance
DI - Coop Endangered Species Conservation Fund
DI - Wildlife Conservation & Appreciation
DI - Water Quality Assessment Program
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs ~ Veteran’s Outpatient Care
DE - Faculty Research Abroad
DE - Javits Fellowships
DE - Tech - Prep Education
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services ~ Social
Services Block Grant

Total funds received from other sources

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

-11-

Sponsor
LDJ
CFDA
Number

10.155
10.202
10.207
10.224
11.550
15.608
15.615
15.617
15.805

64.011

84.01%
84.170
84.243

93.667

Pass-Through
.. Number

1999
Expenditures

$ 8,657
474,787
111,951

12,678
244,504
(7,975)

965
15,732
717
70,434
(388)
22,550
1,143

192,722

1,148,477

(Continued)



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 1899

Pass-Through Sponsor

OTHER PROGRAMS:
Pass-through:

Ohio Department of Education
Ohio Department of Education
Ohio Depariment of Agriculture
Ohic Burcau of Employee Services
Ohio Department of Education
Ohio Department of Development
Ohio Department of Education
Ohio Depastment of Education
Ohio Rehabilitation Services Commission
Ohio Department of Education
Ohio Department of Education
Ohio Board of Regent

Ohio Department of Rehabilitation and Corrections
Ohio Department of Alechel and Dmg Addiction Services

Ohio Department of Health

Ohio Departeent of Health

Ohio Department of Aging

Ohio Environmental Education Foundation
Arts Midwest

Association of Geront Higher Education

Ohio Govemor's Commuaity Servics Commission

Okio Department of Human Services
Ohio University

Cooperative Educational Service Agency
University of llinois

Ohio Departraent of Public Safety

City of Columbus

Tota] pass-through programs

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS

See notes to schedule of expenditure of federal awards.

Federal
Agency
Sponsor

USDA

DC

USDA

DOL

DOL

SBA

DE

DE

DE

DE

DE

DE

DE

Department of Health and Human Services
Department of Health and Homan Services
Department of Health and Fluman Services
Corporation for National Community Service
Environmental Protection Agency
National Endowment for the Arts
Corporation for National Serviee
Corporaticn for National Service
Department of Agriculture

DE

Department of Health & Human Services
National Library of Medicine

Center for Disease Control & Prevention
Department of Housing & Urban Development

-12-

Sponsor
LD.
Number

10.558
11,559
10.769
17.245
17.24%
59.037
84,002
84.048
84.126
84243
84.276
84.281
84.331
93.959
93.9%1
93,994
94.009
30020000
30040200
31040001
31040001
40000000
53000000
60000000
50040409
60040600

70000000

Pass-Through
1.D. Number

26340100
20020844
20020055
26600000
- 26230000
22000130
20021342
22000009
26090000
24000306

4995
Expenditures

s 56,058
33,562
35,264

. 28272
937,709
3,000
180,975
2,152,069
17,502
714,205
20,000
39,665
7,500
14,912
34,620
44,886
211
35,537
1,500
5771
240,255
1,894,343
16,086
64,761
7,517
3,155

31211

6,621,046

$188,753,223



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation - The accompanying financial schedules include the accounts of The Ohio State
University (the University); its hospitals and clinics; The Ohio State University Foundation, a
not-for-profit organization operating exclusively for the benefit of the University; three separate
statutory entities for which the University has special responsibility - The Ohio Agricultural Research
and Development Center, The Ohio State University Dormitory Revenue Bond Fund, and the Ohio
Supercomputer Center; and four legally independent corporations performing special activities related
to the University - The Ohio State University Research Foundation, The Ohio State University Student
Loan Foundation, Inc., the Transportation Research Center of Ohio, Inc., and the Hospital Helicopter
Consortium of Central Ohio, Inc. Such financial schedules have been prepared on the accrual basis in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for state-assisted colleges and universities.

Subrecipient - Certain funds are passed-through to subgrantee organizations by the University.
Expenditures incurred by the subgrantees and reimbursed by the University are presented in the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

The University is also the subrecipiént of federal funds which have been reported as expenditures and
listed as federal pass-through funds.

2. NONCASH FEDERAL AWARDS
During the year ended June 30, 1999, the University did not receive any nonmonetary assistance.
3. FEDERAL LOAN PROGRAMS ADMINISTERED

Total loan advances and disbursements for federal student financial assistance programs are identified

below:
Year Ended
June 30, 1999

Perkins Loan Program $6,401,162
Nursing Student Loans (NSL) 373,956
Health Professional Student Loans (HPSL) 3,023,906
Loans for Disadvantaged Students 9,656
Total ' $9,808,680

The above expenditures include disbursements and expenditures such as loans to students and
administrative expenditures, During the year ended June 30, 1999, the University disbursed
$162,618,828 in new loans under the William D, Ford Direct Loan Program (which includes Stafford
Loans and Parents Loans for Undergraduate Students).

<13 -



REIMBURSEMENT OF INDIRECT COSTS

U.8. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-21 (A-21), Casts Principles for Educational
Institutions, requires submission of a Certificate of Indirect Costs (Certificate) to an institution’s
cognizant agency. The Certificate is prepared by the University and is used in negotiations with its
cognizant agency, the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), in determining a rate at
which the University and the Research Foundation will be reimbursed for the indirect costs associated
with the completion of sponsored research.

The Research Foundation receives reimbursement of indirect costs as part of the granting agreement at
either the rate negotiated with DHHS or at special rates negotiated with the granting agency. Indirect
costs recovered by the Research Foundation are remitted to the University.

On April 5, 1993, DHHS approved indirect cost recovery rates effective from July 1, 1993 through
June 30, 2000. The indirect cost rate structure, including the rates submitted within the Certificate, are
as follows:

Submitted
) Within Negotiated

Rate Type Certificate Rate
Organized Research:

On-Campus 464 % 46.0 %

Off-Campus 26.0 % 26.0 %
Instruction:

On-Campus 66.9 % 60.0 %

Off-Campus 388 % 26.0 %
Other Sponsored Activities:

On-Campus ' 33.6 % 31.0%

Off-Campus ' 244 % 220 %
General Clinical Research Center:

On-Campus ‘ 213 % 20.0 %

Differences between the rates submitted in the Certificate and the rates negotiated with DHHS result
from DHHS’s review of the underlying support and assumptions used by the University in the
preparation of the Certificate. Despite DHHS’s approval, negotiated rates could be adjusted
retroactively, and reimbursement to granting agencies could be required if costs identified as
unallowable per A-21 were improperly included in amounts included in the Certificate.

* ok & ok ok ok
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Deloitte &
Touche

’\ 7 Deloitte & Touche LLP Telephone: {814} 221-1000
- 3 155 East Broad Street Facsimile: (614) 229-4647
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3611

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED UPON THE AUDIT PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees
The Ohio State University
Columbus, Ohio

We have audited the financial statements of The Ohio State University (the University) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated October 4, 1999. We conducted our audit in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

COMPLIANCE

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not
an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards
as items 99-1, 99-2, 99-3, and 99-4. We also noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance, which we
have reported to the management of the University in a separate letter dated October 4, 1999.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the University’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weaknessina
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce
to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the
financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control
over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted
other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to the management
of the University in a separate letter dated October 4, 1999,

Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu _i5-



This report in intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees and management of the
University, federal awarding agencies, state funding agencies, passthrough entities, and the Auditor of State
of Ohio and is not intended to be and should not by used by anyone other than these specified parties.

OLu ks © Towdec st

October 4, 1999

-16-



Deloitte &
Touche | ‘

/\ Deloitte & Touche LLP Telephone: (614) 221-1000
A 155 East Broad Street Facsimile: (614} 223-4647
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3611

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AND ON
THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

To the Board of Trustees
The Ohio State University
Columbus, Ohio

COMPLIANCE

We have audited the compliance of The Ohio State University (the University) with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Monagement and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1999. The
University’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the
University’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the University’s compliance based
on our audit,

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, dudits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the University’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the University’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the University complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1999, However, the results
of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with those requirements that are required to
be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 99-1, 99-2, 99-3, and 99-4.

Delottte Touche
Tohmatsu o -17-



INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

The management of the University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs.
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the University’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Qur consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design
or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the
risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, may occur and not be detected
within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted
no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

We have audited the financial statements of the University as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, and
have issued our report thereon dated October 4, 1999. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming
an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for the purpose of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is
not a required part of the financial statements. This schedule is the responsibility of the management of the
University. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, when considered in relation
to the financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees and management of the

University, federal awarding agencies, state funding agencies, passthrough entities, and the Auditor of State
of Ohio and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

OM ) Townbe C Lo

October 4, 1999 . _
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THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

SCH
YEA

EDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
R ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

PART I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS® RESULTS

1.

2.

9.

The independent auditors’ report on the financial statements expressed an unqualified opinion.
Our audit of the financial statements did not disclose a reportable condition in internal controls.

No instances of noncompliance considered material to the financial statements were disclosed by the
audit.

Our audit of compliance with the types of compliance requirements applicable to the financial
statements did not disclose a reportable condition in internal control over compliance with requirements
applicable to major federal award programs. ’

The independent auditors’ report on compliance with requirements applicable to major federal award
programs expressed an unqualified opinion.

The audit disclosed findings required to be reported by OMB Circular A-133.

The major programs were the Research and Development Cluster, USDA Cooperative Extension
(CFDA 10.500), USDA Hatch (CFDA 10.203), and Student Financial Aid Claster (CFDA’s: 84.007,
84.033, 84.038, 84.063, 93.139, 93.342, and 93.820), which are included in the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards.

A threshold of $3,000,000 was used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as those
terms are defined in OMB Circular A-133.

The Ohio State University did not qualify as a low risk audit as that term is defined in OMB Circular
A-133.

PART II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS SECTION

No matters are reportable.

PART UI - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST SECTION

99-1:

STUDENT FINANCIAL AID REFUNDS

Grantor: U.S. Department of Education
Sponsor Identification Number: Various

Project Number: Various
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99-2

Criteria:

Section 34 CFR Part 668.22(j)(B) If the student drops out of the institution without notifying the
institution {does not withdraw officially), the student’s withdrawal date is the last recorded date of
class attendance by the student as documented by the institution.

Finding:

One student was identified during our testing that had unofficially withdrawn from the University
without being detected as a withdrawn student by the University.

Effect:

The University did not refund federal funds relative to those funds received after the students
withdrawal date.

Questioned Cost:

The University performed a refund calculation for this student after contacting the student to

determine last date of attendance and determined that the refund owed to the Federal government is
$882.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the University implement additional policies and procedures to ensure that
attendance is being taken by instructional staff and/or alternative policies and procedures to track the
unofficial withdrawal of a student, as any funds received from the Federal government subsequent to
the withdrawal date of a student would be considered a potential liability to the University.

HATCH COMPLIANCE WITH REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Grantor: U.S. Department of Education

Sponsor 1dentification Number: Various

Project Number: Not Applicable

Criteria:

Circular A-133, Compliance Supplement, Part 4, (IIT) Compliance Requirements, (L) Reporting.
Finding: |

The University is not preparing Federal Financial Reports related to the Hatch program on a timely
basis. '

Effect:

Required reports are not being submitted to the Federal Government on a timely basis.

-20-



99-3

99-4

Recommendation:

We recommend that the University implement additional policies and procedures to ensure that the
Hatch program complies with the reporting requirements as they are defined in the OMB Circular
A-133 Compliance Supplemental in order to avoid any penalties associated with noncompliance.
HATCH PERIOD OF AVAILABILITY

Grantor: U.S. Department of Education

Sponsor Identification Number: Various

Project Number: Not applicable

Criteria:

Circular A-133, Compliance Supplement, Part 4, (1Il) Compliance Requirements, (H) Period of
Available Funds.

Finding:

The Hatch program lacks sufficient monitoring controls over the period of availability of a federal
award and the expenditures that are charged.

Effect:

With a lack of sufficient monitoring, it is possible that expenses can be charged against a federal
award where the period of availability has ended.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the University institute policies and procedures to ensure there are controls in
place that will monitor the periods of availability of federal awards and the expenditures that are
charged to them.

SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING

Grantor: Various

Sponsor Identification Number: Various

Project Number: Various

Criteria:

Circular A-133, Subpart D-Federal Agencies and Pass-Through Entities § 400 Responsibilities
(d) Pass-through entity responsibility.
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Finding:

In 9 of 16 subrecipient subcontracts reviewed, the Research Foundation did not perform one or both
of the following: -

As poted in the schedule of findings and questioned costs, the Research Foundation did not perform
the following:

« Identify to the subrecipient a CFDA title and number, award name and number, award year, and
the name of the Federal agency or provide the best information available to describe the Federal

award.

* Require each subrecipient to permit the Research Foundation and auditors to have access to the
records and financial statements as necessary.

Effect:

The Research Foundation may be awarding funds to subrecipients that are not using the federal
awards for authorized purposes in compliance with laws, regulations, or in accordance with the
provisions of the contract or grant agreement.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the subrecipient subcontracts be amended for these provisions.

-22-



STATE OF OHIO
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR

Jim PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

FRANKLIN COUNTY

CLERK'’S CERTIFICATION

88 East Broad Street
P.O.Box 1140
Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone 614-466-4514
800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the
Office of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and

which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

Date: \'AN 1 3 2600
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THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
RESEARCH FOUNDATION

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1989

Sponsor L.D. 1999
Federal Agency Number Expenditures
Research and Development Cluster:
Pass-through from The Ohio State University:

Environmental Protection Agency 30020000 $ 1,358,193
National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) 30030000 1,285,452
Langley Research Center 30030102 294,224
Ames Research Cenfer 30030103 233,764
Lewis Research Center 30030104 1,224,233
NASA Headquarters 30030105 (533)
Marshall Space Flight Center 3003020% 175,612
Johnson Space Center 30030202 46,248
Kennedy Space Center 30030203 47,857
Goddard Space Flight Center 30030301 2,470,119
National Endowment For The Humanities 30040100 28,616
National Science Foundation (NSF) 30050000 121,922
NSF Biological Sciences 30050101 594,406
NSF Integrative Biology & Neuroscience 30050102 889,106
WSF Molecular & Cellular Biosciences 30050103 1,016,446
NSF Environmental Biology 30050104 506,747
NSF Computer & Information Science & Engineering . 30050200 379,059
NSF Cross Disciplinary Activities : 30050201 40,337
NSF Computer & Computation Research 30050202 721,366
NSF Information Robotics & Intefligent Systems 30050203 54,044
NSF Microelectronic Information Processing Systems 30050204 3,303
NSF Advanced Scientific Computing . 30050205 100,787
NSF Networking & Communications Res & Infrastructure 30050206 131,064
NSF Engineering 30050300 302,720
NSF Engineering, Education & Centers ’ 30050302 344,828
NSF Chemical & Transport Systems 30050303 332,582
NSF Civil & Mechanical Structures 30050304 226,233
NSF Electrical & Communications Systems 30050305 216,605
NSF Design, Manufacture, Industrial 30050306 463,779
NSF Div Bicengineering & Environmental 30050307 132,114
NSF Atmospheric Sciences 30050401 129,834
NSF Earth Sciences 30050402 226,808
NSF Ocean Sciences 30050403 230,699
NSF Polar Programs 30050404 1,455,817
NSF Mathematical Sciences 30050561 745,641
NSF Physics 30050502 1,033,115
NSF Chemistry 30050503 2,081,905
NSF Materials Research 30050504 1,462,675
NSF Astronomical Sciences 30050505 610,146
NSF Education & Human Resources 30030600 4,451
NSF Undergraduate Education 30056605 466,610
NSFDivGradED&RD 30050611 270,661
NSF Social, Behavioral & Economic Sciences 30030800 1,437
NSF Social, Behavioral & Economic Research 30050801 971,699
NSF International Programs 30050803 37,520
Appalachian Regulatory Commission 30070100 15,400
U.S. Arms Control & Disarmament Agency 30120000 (588)
Veterans Administration 30170000 30,591
Veterans Administration Outpatient Clinic 30170101 {778)
U.S. Information Agency {(USIA) 30260000 168,581
Agency for Internationat Development (AID) 30300100 165,766
Central Intelligence Agency 30350100 52,409

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
“Z- (Continued)



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
RESEARCH FOUNDATION

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 1398

Federal Agency

Research and Development Cluster:
Pass-through from The Ohio State University:
National Research Council
Transportation Research Board
Dept. of Agriculture

United States Department of Agriculture (USDA)-Forest Service

USDA-Science & Education
USDA-Coop State Res Education & Extension Service

USDA-North Central Regional Integrated Pest Management Program

USDA-Agricultural Research Service

USDA-Natural Resources Conservation Service

USDA-Animal & Plarit Health Inspection Service

Office of International Cooperation & Development

Economic Research Service

National Agricultural Statistics Service

U.S. Department of Commerce {(DC)-National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration (NOAA)

DC-National Institute of Standards & Technology

Air Force Material Command (AFMC)

Air Force Office of Scientific Research

U.8. Department of Defense (DOD)-Electronic Systems Center

AFMC-Phillips Laboratory

DOD-Wright Laboratory

DOD-Ammy

DOD-Army Corps of Engineers

DOD-Army Cold Regions Research & Engineering Lab

Humphredys Eng CSA

DOD-Amy Natick Research & Development Labs

DOD-Amny Medical Research & Development Command

DOD-Amny Research Office

DOB-Naval Air Systems Command

DOD-Naval Air Systems Command

DOD-Space & Naval Warfare Systems Center

DOD-Naval Surface Weapon Center

DOD-Naval Facility Energy Command

DOD-Office of Naval Research

DOD-Naval Research Lab

DOD-Naval Medical Reserve Instate

DOD-National Imagery & Mapping Agency

Defense Logistics Agency

National Security Agency

Maryland Procurement Office

Defense Supply Service

Uniformed Services University Health Services

U.8. Department of Education (DE}

DE-Office Of Educational Research & Improvement

DE-Inst Museum Services

DE-Fund Improvement Postsecondary Education

DE-Office of Postsecondary Education

DE-Center for International Education

DE-Office of Special Education

DE-Office of Special Education

DE-Rehabilitation Services Administration

DE-National Institute of Disability & Rehabilitation Research

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

Sponsor LD.
Number

31020100
31620102
400600000
40020000
400640000
40040100
40040102
40040200
400560000
40070000
40100000
40120000
40160000

42020000
42040000
50010100
50010105
50610110
50010121
50010800
50020000
50020100
50020103
50020106
50020213
50020300
50020400
50040000
50040101
50040110
50040112
50040114
50040300
50040301
50041002
50080000
50130000
50140000
50170000
50180000
50150000
53000000
53020000
53020100
53020300
53040000
53040200
33050000
53050100
53050200
53050300

1399
Expenditures

8 (3,304)
4,000
82,494
134,408
65,438
2,194,399
17,673
579,819
115,442
32,363
42,611
125,085
34,218

1,532,286
70,410
173,753
3,338,671
678
31,883
284,092
135,853
71,113
36,309
117,173
25,754
548,876
995,282
373,489
(722)
431,861
22,109
10,178
1,622,002
96,378
28,323
52,620
158,073
165,545
12,525
239,571
25,848
315,099
5,158,188
210
154,891
504,738
832,991
3,370
316,975
173,366
616,809

{Continued)




THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
RESEARCH FOUNDATION

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1995

Sponsor LD. 1999
Federat Agency Number Expenditures
Research and Development Cluster:
Pass-through from The Ohio State University:
DE-Office of Vocational & Adult Education Programs 33060000 3 545,749
Department of Energy (DOE) 55000000 5,670,518
Department of Health & Human Services 40000000 161,924
Public Health Services (PHS)-Food & Drug Administration 60040200 264,408
PHS-Nationa! Institute of Health 60040400 955,317
PHS-National Cancer Fastitute 60040402 12,721,475
PHS-National Heart, Lung, and Blood Institute 60040403 4,186,472
PHS-National Institute of Allergies & Infections Disorders 60040404 6,079,976
PHS-National Institute of Diabeties & Digestive & Kidney Diseases 60040405 2,293,437
PHS-National Institute of Child Health & Human Development 60040406 1,280,677
PHS-National Institute of General Medical Sciences 60040407 5,162,789
PHS-National Instifute of Neurological Disorders & Stroke 60040408 2,678,381
PHS-National Library Medicine 60040409 79,401
PHS-National Center for Research Resources 60040410 620,106
PHS-National Eye Institute 60040411 3,109,350
PHS-National Institute of Dental Research 60040412 2,098,837
PHS-National Institute on Environmental Health Services 60040414 349,321
PHS-Nationat Institute of Aging 60040415 1,185,804
PHS-National Institute of Health Clinic Center 60040416 3,851
PHS-National Institute of Nursing Research 60040418 705,038
PHS-National Institute of Arthritis and Musculo-skeletal
and Skin Diseases 60040419 1,247,490
PHS-National Institute of Deafhess and Other Communication Disorders 60040420 1,685,572
PHS-National Institute of Mental Health 60040421 3,308,230
PHS-National Institwte of Drug Abuse 60040422 736,296
PHS-National Institute of Alcohol Abuse and Alccholism 60040423 280,663
PHS-Health Resources & Services Administration 60040500 95,658
PHS-Bureau of Health Professions 60040501 236,942
PHS-Centers for Disease Control & Prevention 60040600 126,756
PHS-National Institute of Occupational Safety & Health 60040601 631,743
PHS-Office of Population Affairs 60041100 70,017
PHS-Agency for Health Care Policy & Research 60041200 19,111
Administration Children & Families 60070000 60,738
Department of Honesng & Urban Development 70000000 1,900
U.S. Department of Interior (DI)-Fish & Wildlife Service 72030000 274,752
DI-Geological Survey 72040000 237.080
DOL-Burzau of Labor Statistics 76050000 7,600,252
Department of Statistics 80000000 (35,015)
DOT-Federal Highway Administration 82010000 - (70)
DOT-Federal Aviation Administration 82030000 134,486
DOT-National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 82040000 430,718
Subtotal pass-through from The Ohio State University $113,307,038

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
-4- (Continzed)




THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
RESEARCH FOUNDATION

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Federal Sponsor
Agency 1.D. Pass-Through 1939
Pass-Through Sponsor Sponsor Humber LD. Number Expenditures
Research and Development Cluster (continued):
Pass-through fram other sources:
North American Assoc. For Environmental
Education Environmental Protestion Agency 30020000 20021323 b 98,085
University of Wisconsin Envirommnental Protection Agency 30020000 22000006 168,395
West Virginia University Environmental Protection Agency 30020000 22000032 7644
Yale University Environmental Protection Agency - 30020000 22000088 27,783
New Jersey Institute of Technology Environmental Protection Agency 30020000 22000216 L1062
Ohio Environmental Protection Agency Environmental Protection Agency 30020000 26340000 75,891
Ohio OFC LK Erie Prote Environmental Protection Agency 30020000 26590000 18,367
Alliedsignal, Inc NASA 30030000 106011761 284,287
Essential Research, Inc. NASA 30030000 10611858 3,624
Positive Light Inc, NASA 30030000 10012131 7,875
Cleveland Chinic Foundation NASSH 30030000 20010421 68,572
Universities Space Research Association NASA 30030000 20020887 43,860
Space Telescope Science Institute NASA 30030000 20021006 140,781
Camegie-Mellon University MNASA 30030000 22000051 98,753
Californis Institute of Technology NASA 300306000 22000054 77,824
Georgia Institute of Technology MNASA . 30030000 22000189 18,677
University of Texas-Austin NASA 30036000 22000270 75,111
Physical Research, Inc. NASA Langley Research Center 30030102 10012138 9,106
EG &G, Inc. Goddard Space Flight Center 30030301 10011343 33,246
University of Hllinois Mationa! Endowment for the Humanities 30040100 22000009 25178
Ohio Humanities Council National Endowment for the Humanities 30040100 26290000 11,950
Systran Corporation NSF 30050000 10011833 19377
Anatrace, Inc. NSF 30050000 10020034 27,124
Computing Research Association NSF 30059000 20021373 192
Rutgers University NS¥ 30050000 22000003 45,831
University Medical & Dental New York NSF 30050000 22000004 3,388
University of lilinois NSF 30050000 22000009 325,912
Indiana University NSF 30050000 22000012 29,096
University of California Davis NSF 30050000 220000013 (6,545)
Pennsyivania State University NSF 30056000 22000030 47
Miami University MNSF 30056000 22000049 75,011
University of Missouri NSF 30050000 22000073 8,172
University of Connecticut NSF 30050000 22000076 25,815
Ottetbein College NSF 30050000 22000077 8,554
Cornell University NSF 30030000 22000081 25,133
Columbia University NSF 36050000 22000135 7034
Williar Marsh Rice University NSF 306050000 22000231 {663}
Drexel University NSF 30050000 22000246 343,689
University of Massachusetts/Amherst NSF 30050000 22000274 9,502
Development Alternatives Inc. AID 30300100 16011316 5,166
Foundation Intemational Common Asst AID 30300100 20010510 78,217
Midwest University Consortium
for International Activities AID 30300100 20020441 {31,282)
University of Wisconsin AID 30300100 22000006 149,686
Virginia Polytechnic Institute AID 30300100 22000023 8,254
U.S.-Egypt S&T Joint Board AID 30300100 28510001 56,027
Ohio Emergency Management Agency Federal Emergency Management Agency 30330000 26560000 19,110
University of Texas of Austin Corporation for National & Community Service 31040001 22006270 1,875
Dairy Management Inc, Departient of Agriculture 40000000 20020911 48,499
Midwest Adv Food Man Department of Agriculture 40000000 20021278 21,933
Purdue University Department of Agriculturs 40000000 22000002 24,883
Rutgers University Department of Agricultare 40000000 22000003 25,108
University of Ilinois Department of Agriculture 40600000 22000009 11,381

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
-5. {Continued}



THE OHIC STATE UNIVERSITY

RESEARCH FOUNDATION

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Pass-Through Sponsor

Research and Development Cluster (continued):

Pass-through from other sources:
Virginia Polytechnic Institute
Michigan State University
Towa State University
Texas A & M University
Southem Hlinois University
University of Minnesota
Comell University
University of Nebraska
University of Florida
North Carolina St. University
University of Delaware
University of Michigan
Franklin Co. Human Services
University of Sauth Carolina
Caterpillar Inc.

Imation Corporation

Lockheed Martin Corporation
E-Systems Corporation

Mission Research Corperation
Logicon Technical Services

Nichols Ressarch Corporation
Extrude Hone Corporation

Polychip

Battelle Memorial Institute
University of Dayton

University of Arizona

Lockheed Mastin Corporstion
Veridian-SRL

Mission Research Corporation
General Electric Aircraft Engines
Demaco, Inc,

Computer Science & Applications, Inc.
Coretek, Inc.

Thenmacore, Inc.

Dynamic Engineering, Inc.
Transmap Corporation

LSP Technologies, Inc.

Sverdrup Technologies, Inc.
Technical Managerent Concepts, Inc.
CC Technologies Lab

Battelle Memorial Institute

Guide Consortium

Northeast Consortium Engincening Education
Penn State University
Carnegie-MeHon University
University of Cincinnati

University of Virginia

Frinceton University

Research & Development Laboratory
Loral Defense Systems

Coretek, Inc.

Frontier Tech, Ins.

University of Chicago

Lockheed Mastin Corporation

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

Federal

Agency
Sponsor

Department of Agriculture
Department of Agriculture
Department of Agriculture
Department of Agriculture
Department of Agriculture
Department of Agriculture
Department of Agiculture
Department of Agriculture
Department of Agriculture
Department of Agriculture
Department of Agriculture
Departrment of Commerce
Deepartment of Commerce

NMational Ceeanic & Atmospheric Administration

National Institute of Standards & Technclogy
National Institute of Standards & Technology
DoD

DoD

DoD

DOD

oD

oD

boD

DOD

DOD

DoD

Alr Force

Adr Force

Air Force

Axr Force

Air Force

Adr Force

Air Force

Asir Force

AT BOrCe

Adr Force

Air Force

Ait Force

Air Force

Air Force

Adr Force

Air Force

Air Force

Air Force

Air Force

Air Foree

Alr Force

Alr Foree Office of Scientific Research
Adr Force Office of Scientific Research
Amy

Amy

Amy

Army

Army Research Laboratory

Sponsor
1.D.
Number

40000G00
400000C0
40000060
40000060
40000000
40005000
40000000
40000000
40000000
40000000
406006000
42000000
42000000
42020000
42049000
42040000
56000000
50000000
56000000
50000000
40000000
50000000
50000000
50000000
50000000
50000000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
40010000
40010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
50010000
0010105
50010105
50020000
50020000
50020060
50020400
50020210

Pass-Through
LD, Numhber

22000023
22000043
22000047
22000053
20000055
22000067
22000081
22000085
22000108
22000136
22000138
22000605
24000366
22000241
10011704
10012042
10010042
10011157
10011436
10011651
- 10011948
10011976
10012074
20020012
22000008
22000116
10010042
16011383
10011436
10011756
10011893
10011985
10012013
10012035
16020007
10020003
10020012
10020016
10020023
10020033
20020012
20021102
20021188
22000030
22000051
22000074
22000203
22000289
10011649
10011871
10012613
10020067
22000018
10010642

1999
Expenditures

3 5,753

75,736
11,543
(€2))]
4272
47,109
8,756
138,671
(2,238)
21,584
467
24,261
111
20,022
116,456
119,333
60,257
542,397
11,973
219,819
1,567,633
6,030
£29,573)
55,839
45,357
76,833
115,132
13,675
37,895
441,945
(703)
55,394
11,616
18,501
34,749
5371
63,821
9,910
116,546
3,974
18,495
38,949
3,532
155,654
49,849
57277
163,935
15,412
34,426
23,763
4,800
12,984
16,328
395278

{Continued)



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
RESEARCH FOUNDATION

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 19398

Federal Sponsor
Agency 1D, Pass-Threugh 195%
Pass-Through Spensor Sponsor Number 1.D. Number Expenditures
Research and Development Cluster (continued):
Pass-through from other sources:

Massachusetts Institute of Technology Army Research Office 30020400 22000001 5 83,518
Duke University Array Research Office 50020400 22000094 301,548
Edison Welding Institute Inc. Navy 30040000 10011218 33,626
Tracor Appld Scn Inc. Navy 50040000 20021229 (3.148)
Geo-Centers Inc. Office of Naval Research 50040300 10011454 (25,682)
Dynalysis Of Princeton Office of Naval Research 30040300 10012109 158,861
Penn State University Office of Naval Research 50040360 22006030 142,629
University of Akron Uniformed Services University for Health 50190000 22000066 33,728
Plastronic, Inc. DE 53000000 10020005 100,464
Research Foundation of City University of New York DE 53000000 20010482 ' 344,235
Edueation Development Center, Inc. DE 53000000 20021328 1,334
Pern State University CE 53000000 22080030 6,636
Wright State University DE 53000600 22000087 42,184
University of Maryland DE 53000000 22000120 91,545
Chio University DE 53006000 22000130 62,097
University of Delaware DE 53000600 22000138 (432)
inois State Board of Education DE 53000000 240080281 519
Chio Depariment of Education DE 53000000 26080000 388,309
Ohio Division of Vocational & Adult Education DE 53000000 26080100 1,175,579
Chio School-To-Work Office DE 53000000 26080103 116,640
Babcock & Wilcox DOE 55000000 10010026 ’ 213
Lockheed Martin Corporation DCE 55000000 10019042 54,726
Adr Products & Chermicals, Ine, DOE 55000000 10010612 233,112
Westinghouse Electric Corporation DOE 55000000 10010881 573,096
Dravo Lime Company DCE 55000000 10011501 34,678
Universities Research Association, Inc. DOE 55000000 10011888 175338
MSE, Inc. DOE 55000000 10011972 75122
Rocky Research DOE 55000000 10012132 37,259
Nat Renewable Energy Laboratory DOE 55000000 20020800 250,292
Associated Universities Inc. DOE 55000000 20420801 40,809
Consertium Plant Biotechnology Research Inc. DCE 55000000 20021036 31,956
Ohio Aerospace Institute DCE 55000000 20021048 109,986
South Carolina Research Authority DCE 55000000 20021319 325,289
Chio Valley Regional Development Commission DCE 55000000 20021347 36,938
Purdue University DGOE 5300000 22000002 445,405
University of Michigan DCE 55000000 22000005 59,105
University of California DOE 55000000 22000011 101,855
University of California-Davis DOE 55000000 22000013 (1,274
University of Idahe DOE 55000000 22000016 25,538
University of Chicago DOE 55000000 22000018 22879
Wayne State University DCE 55000080 220060034 247
Washington University DCE 35000000 22000209 1,582
Brown University DCE 53000000 22000284 149,374
Area Agency on Aging 7 Department of Health & Human Services 60000000 20020054 16,728
Childrens Hospital Research Foundation PHS 50040000 20010182 5,529
University of North Carolina PHS 60040000 22000146 1,845
IIT Research [nstitute Food & Dnig Administration 60040200 20021125 8,880
Cleveland Clinic Foundation National Institute of Health 60040400 20010421 25,099
Purdue University National Institute of Health 0040400 22000002 19,327
Rutgess University National Institute of Health S0040400 22000003 21,686
University of Pittsburgh National Institute of Health 60040400 22000038 {553y
Health Research Inc. National Cancer Institute 60040402 10010523 9,948
Cleveland Clinic Feundation Wational Cancer Institute 60040402 20010421 33,973
Cancer Therapy & Research Foundation of 5 Fexas Wationai Cancer Instiite 60040402 IWO20745 114,033

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

RESEARCH FOUNDATION

SCHEDULE QF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 1999

Pass-Through Sponsor

Research and Development Cluster (continued):
Pass-through from other sources:

Federal
Agency
Sponsor

AM College Radiology Nationa? Cancer Institute

American Heelth Foundation Nationai Cancer Institute

University of Kansas Medical Center Research Institute  National Cancer Institute

University of Michigan MNational Cancer Institute

University of Califomia National Cancer Institute

University of Chicago National Cancer Institute

Texas A & M University National Cancer Institute

University of Minnesota National Cancer Institute

Oregon State University Mational Cancer Institute

University of Kentucky Nattonal Cancer Institute

University of Souther California National Cancer Institute

‘Washington University National Cancer Institute

Medical College Ohio National Cancer Institute

University of Helsinki National Cancer Institute

Mount Sinai Medical Center National Heart, Lung & Blood Institute
Statistics & Epidemiology Research Corporation Nationat Heart, Lung & Blood Institute
Cleveland Chinic Foundation National Heart, Lung & Blood Institute
Johns Hopking Undversity National Heart, Lung & Blood Institute
Social & Scientific Systems, Inc. National Institute Allerpies &

Infectious Disorders
Case Western Research University National Institute Allergies &
Infectious Disorders
University of Massachusetts/Ambsrst MNational Institute Allergies &

Infectious Disorders

Probiotix, Inc. National Institute of Diabeties & Digestive &

Kidney Disease
Precomp Incorporated MWational Instituie of Child Health & Human Development
Rand Corporation National Institute of Child Health & Human Development
Columbia University National Institute of Child Health & Human Development
University of Illinois National Institute General Medical Science
University of Tennessee National Institute General Medical Science
Indiana University National Institute Neurological Disorders & Stroke
Columbia University National Institute Neurological Disorders & Stroke
New York University National Institute Neurological Disorder
Johns Hoplans University Naticnal Eye [nstimute
UES, Inc. National Institute of Dental Research

Childrens Hospital Research Foundation
Cornelt University
Ohio University

Childrens Hospital Philadelphia

Purdue Univessity

University of Minnesota

Duke University

University of Florida

University of Tennessee

Virginia Polytechnic Instimte

Texas A & M University

Childrens Hospital Research Foundation
Hemophilia Foundation of Michigan
Rehabilitation Institute Research Corperation
University of Maine at Orane

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

National Institute of Arthritis &
Muscskeletal & Skin Disease

Naticnal Institute of Arthritis &
Muscskeletal & Skin Disease

National Institute of Arthritis &
Wuscskeletal & Skin Disease

HMational Institute of Mental Health

WNational Institute of Mental Health

National Institute of Mental Health

National Institute of Menta! Health

National Institute of Mental Health

National Institute of Drug Abuse

National Institute of Drug Abuse

MNational Institute of Drug Abuse

Matemal & Childrens Health Bursau

Matemal & Childrens Health Bureau

Centers for Disease Cantrol & Prevention

Centers for Disease Control & Prevention

Sponsor
LD,
Number

50040402
50040402
60040402
§0040402
60040402
§0040402
60040402
60040402
60040402
60040402
60040402
60040402
£0040402
50040402
60040403
50040403
50040403
60040403

60040404
50040404
60040404

60040405
60040406
80040406
60040406
60040407
60040407
60040408
60040408
60040408
60040211
60040412

60040419
60040419

60048419
60040421
60040421
60040421
60040421
60040421
60040422
60040422
60040422
60040505
60040505
60040600
40030600

Pass-Through
LD. Number

20020917
20021179
20021356
22000005
22000011
22000018
22000053
22000067
22000103
22000143
22000206
22000209
22000210
22010007
10011783
10012025
20010421
22000133

10012044

22000238

22000274

10012038
10011803
20021340
22000135
22000009
22000010
22000012
22000135
22000254
Z2000133
1020049

20010182

22000081

22000130
20020015
22000002
22000067
22000094
22000108
22000010
22000023
22000053
20010182
20021026
20021335
22000048

199%
Expenditures

3 1,639

(40,869
69,465
160,628
39,814
404,321
13,276
207,897
48,082
(3,813)
75,540
13,604
35,816
61,168
263
14,005
154,050
239,032

30,711
19,845
3,930

16,351
30,954
20,005
74,890
3,794
10,952
119,477
10,472
4,307y
25,063
23,767

2,840
58,574

83,303
118,521
9,146
1729
75,553
24,997

(38,064)
91,123
12,882
51,598
3,966
110,409
3,536

(Continued)




THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
RESEARCH FOUNDATION

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1899

Pass-Through Sponhsor

Research and Development Cluster (continued):
Pass-through from other sources:
University of California
Chio Division of Wildlife
Allianee For Cooperative Justice
Office of Criminal Justice Services
Sam Houston State University
National Opinion Research Center
Gallia, Jackson, Vinton Co Joint Vocational School
Ohio Departruent of Education
Chio School-To-Wark Office
National Con Eura & E Eur
University of Missouri
Ohio Department of Transportation
Iowa State Universi

Ohio Departiment of Public Safety
Subtotal pass-through from other sources

Total Research and Development Cluster

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

Federal
Agency
Sponsor
DI
DI
Department of Justice
Department of Justice
National Institute of Justice
DOL
DOL
DOL
DOL
Departmment of State
Department of Transportation
Federal Highway Administration
Federal Aviation Administration

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration

Sponsor
1.D.
Number

72000000
F2000000
74000000
74000000
74040100
76000000
76000000
76000000
T&000000
80000000
82000000
82010000

82030000
82040000

Pass-Through
1.D. Number

22000011
26110100
20021321
26140401
22000308
20020932
24000264
26080000
26080103
20020643
22000073
26010000

22000004
26400000

1998
Expenditures

s 16,277
324,342
31,867
{14,964
31,387
1,496,484
298,201
298,936
178,563
22394
694)
20,250
227,008

5513

20,573,995

$ 133,881,033

(Continued)



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
RESEARCH FOUNDATION

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FCR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Federal Sponsor
Agency LD. Pass-Through 1999
Pass-Through Sponsor Sponsor Number 1.D. Number Expenditures
OTHER PROGRAMS:
Pass-through from The Ohio State University:
NSF Education & Human Resources 38050600 $ 153,928
Appalachian Regional Commission 30070100 34,613
US Information Agency 30260000 . 92,295
National Research Council 310620100 6,717
USDA-Coop State Res Education & Extension Service 40040100 313,512
Office of International Cooperation & Development 40100000 4,194
DOD-Uniformed Services University Health Services 50190000 233,035
1.8, Department of Education {DE) 53000000 381,710
DE-Fund Improvement Postsecondary Education 53020300 56,640
DE-Office of Postsecondary Education 53040000 119,808
DE-Center for International Education 53040200 77,547
DE-Office of Special Education & Rehabilitative Services . 53050000 111,762
DE-Office of Special Education 53050100 1,121,769
DE-Rehabilitation Services Administration 53056200 87,617
DE-National Institute of Disability & Rehabilitation Research 53050300 560,625
Department of Health & Human Services 60000000 764,254
PHS-National Center for Research Resources 60040410 2,046,410
PHS-Burzau of Health Professions 60040501 74,114
PHS-Minerity Comm Health Coalition Demenstration 60041300 11,284
PHS-Administration for Children & Families 60070000 (1,16%)
Administration for Children Youth Families 60070100 1,611,674
PHS-Administration on Developmental Disabilities i 60070500 269,627
Department of Housing & Urban Development 70000000 108,782
Department of Justice 74000000 48,266
Subtotal pass-through from The Ohio State
University, other programs 8,275,962
OTHER PROGRAMS:
Pass-through from other sources:
Ohio Environmental Education Foundation Environmental Protection Agency 30070000 26340100 35,937
Arts Midwest Mational Endowment for the Arts 30040200 20020844 1,500
Association of Geront Higher Education Corporation for National Service 31040001 20020055 5,771
Ohio Governor’s Community Service Commission  Corporation for National Service 31040001 26600000 240,255
Ohio Department of Human Services Department of Agriculture 40000000 26230000 1,894,343
Ohio University DE 53000000 22000130 16,086
Cooperative Educational Service Agency Department of Health & Human Services 50000000 20021342 64,761
University of Tllinois National Library of Medicine 60040409 22000009 7,517
Ohic Department of Public Safety Center for Disease Control & Prevention 60040600 26090000 3,155
City of Columbus Department of Housing & Urban
Development 70600000 24000306 31,211
Subtotaf pass-through from
other sources, other programs
2,300,536
TOTAL FEDERAL PROGRAMS
$144,457,531

~10 -



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
RESEARCH FOUNDATION

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

1.

ORGANIZATION

The Chio State University Research Foundation (the Research Foundation) is a nonprofit educational
corporation created in 1936 as a vehicle to promote the development, implementation, and coordination
of sponsored research at The Ohio State University (the University) in the furtherance of the
University’s educational objectives. Accordingly, grants received for sponsored research are deemed to
be pass-throughs from the University.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation - The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes all
the federal grant transactions of the Research Foundation recorded on the accrual basis of accounting.

Subrecipients - Certain funds are passed through to subgrantee organizations by the Research
Foundation. Expenditures incurred by the subgrantees and reimbursed by the Research Foundation are
presented in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. The Research Foundation is also the
subrecipient of federal funds which are reported as expenditures and listed as federal pass-through
funds.

REIMBURSEMENT OF FACILITIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

11.S. Office of Management and Budget {OMB) Circular A-21 (A-21), Costs Principles for Educational
Institutions, requires submission of a Certificate of Facilities and Administrative Costs (Certificate) to
an institution’s cognizant agency. The Certificate is prepared by the University and is used in
negotiations with its cognizant agency, the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), in
determining a rate at which the University and the Research Foundation will be reimbursed for the
facilities and administrative costs associated with the completion of sponsored research. '

The Research Foundation receives reimbursement of facilities and administrative costs ss part of the
granting agreement at either the rate negotiated with DHHS or at special rates negotiated with the
granting agency. Facilities and administrative costs recovered by the Research Foundation are remitted
to the University.

-11 -



On April 5, 1993, DHHS approved facilities and administrative cost recovery rates effective from
July 1, 1993 through June 30, 2000. The facilities and administrative cost rate structure, including the
rates submitted within the Certificate, are as follows:

Effective July 1, 1993

Through June 30, 2000
Rate as
Submitted
Within Negotiated
Rate Type Certificate Rate
Organized Research:
On-Campus ' 46.4 % 46.0 %
Off-Campus 26.0 % 26.0 %
Instruction:
On-Campus 66.9 % 60.0 %
Off-Campus 38.8 % 26.0 %
Other Sponsored Activities:
On-Campus 336% 31.0%
Off-Campus 244 % 22.0%
General Clinical Research Center:
On-Campus 213 % 200 %

Differences between the rates submitted in the Certificate and the rates negotiated with DHHS result
from DHHS’s review of the underlying support and assumptions used by the University in the
preparation of the Certificate. Despite DHHS’s approval, negotiated rates could be adjusted
retroactively, and reimbursement to granting agencies could be required if costs identified as
unallowable per A-21 were improperly included in amounts included within the Certificate.

* ok ok ok ok *k
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Deloitte &
Touche

’\ o Deloitte & Touche LLP Telephone: (614} 221-1000
- 155 East Broad Strest Facsimile: (614) 229-4647
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3611

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED UPON THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees
The Ohio State University Research Foundation:

We have audited the financial statements of The Ohio State University Research Foundation (the Research
Foundation) as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated October 4,
1999. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier
General of the United States.

COMPLIANCE

As a part of obfaining reasonable assurance about whether the Research Foundation’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tesis disclosed an instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards as item 99-1. We also noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance, which we
have reported to management of the Research Foundation in a separate letter dated October 4, 1969.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Reseatch Foundation’s internal control over
financial reporting in order to defermine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce
to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the
financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control
over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted
other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to the management
of the Research Foundation, in a separate letter dated October 4, 1999,

Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu -13-



This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, the audit committee,
management of the Research Foundation, federal awarding agencies, state funding agencies, pass-through
entities, and the Auditor of State of Ohio and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
that these specified parties.

OMSTMW

October 4, 1999

-14 -



Deloitte &
Touche

I\ Deloitte & Touche LLP Telephone: (614) 221-1000
A 155 East Broad Street Facsimile: {614} 228-4647
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3611

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM
AND ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

To the Board of Trustees
The Ohio State University Research Foundation:

COMPLIANCE

We have audited the compliance of The Chio State University Research Foundation (the Research
Foundation) with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 1999. The Research Foundation’s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the Research Foundation’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Research Foundation’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Research Foundation’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination on the Research Foundation’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Research Foundation complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1999. However,
the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with those requirements that are
required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 99-1.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

The management of the Research Foundation is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Research Foundation’s internal

Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu -15-



control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a2 major federal
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular
A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design
or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the
risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would
be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected withina
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

We have audited the financial statements of The Ohio State University Research Foundation as of and for the
year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated October 4, 1999. Our audit was
performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for the purpose of additional analysis
as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the financial statements. This schedule is
the responsibility of the management of the Research Foundation. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in
all material respects, when considered in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, the audif committee,
management of the Research Foundation, federal awarding agencies, state funding agencies, pass-through
entities, and the Auditor of State of Ohio, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
that these specified parties. )

Dol b Towlo

October 4, 1999
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THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
RESEARCH FOUNDATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

PART I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

L.

2.

The independent auditors’ report on the financial statements expressed an unqualified opinion.
Our audit of the financial statements did not disclose a reportable condition in internal controls.

No instances of noncompliance considered material to the financial statements were disclosed by the
audit.

Our audit of compliance with the types of compliance requirements applicable to the financial
statements did not disclose a reportable condition in internal control over compliance with

requirements applicable to major federal award programs.

The independent auditors’ report on compliance with requirements applicable to major federal award
programs expressed an unqualified opinion.

The audit disclosed findings required to be reported by OMB Circular A-133.

The Research Foundation’s major programs were:

Name of Federal Program or Cluster CEFDA Number
Research and Development Cluster Various

A threshold of $3,000,000 was used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as those
terms are defined in OMB Circular A-133.

The Research Foundation did not qualify as a low-risk auditee as that term is defined in OMB
Circular A-133.

PART II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS SECTION

No matters are reportable.
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PART III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST SECTION

99-1:

SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING

Grantor: Various

Sponsor Identification Number: Various
Project Number: Various

Criteria:

Circular A-133, Subpart D - Federal Agencies and Pass-Through Entities, §_ .400 Responsibilities,
(d) Pass-through entity responsibilities.

Finding:

In 9 of 16 subrecipient subcontracts reviewed, the Research Foundation did not perform the
following:
. Identify to the subrecipient a CFDA title and number, award name and number, award year,
and the name of the Federal agency or provide the best information available to describe the
Federal award.
. Require each subrecipient to permit the Research Foundation and auditors to have access to
the records and financial statements as necessary.

Effect:

The Research Foundation may be awarding funds to subrecipients that are not using the federal
awards for authorized purposes in compliance with laws, regulations, or in accordance with the
provisions of the contract or grant agreement.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the subrecipiznt subcontracts be amended for these provisions.
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QOctober 4, 1999

The Board of Trustees
The Ohio State University Research Foundation
Columbus, Chio ~

Dear Members of the Board of Trustees and Audit Commitiee:

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of The Ohio State University Research
Foundation (the “Research Foundation™) for the year ended June 30, 1999 (on which we have issued our
report dated October 4, 1999), we developed the following recommendations concerning certain matters
related to the Research Foundation’s internal control and certain observations and recommendations on
other accounting, administrative, and operating matters. Certain comments are repeated from our 1998
report because we believe they are of continuing importance (indicated by *). Our principal
recommendations are summarized below.

SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING
Observation and Recommendation

As noted in the schedule of findings and questioned costs, the Research Foundation did not perform the
following:

¢ Tdentify to the subrecipient a CFDA title and number, award name and number, award year, and the
name of the Federal agency or provide the best information available to describe the Federal award.

s Require each subrecipient to permit the Research Foundation and auditors to have access to the
records and financial statements as necessary.

We recommend that the subrecipient subcontracts be amended for these provisions.

Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu



Management’s Response
The Research Foundation will take the following corrective action:
¢ Issue all new subrecipient subcontracts with the revised terms established in September 1998.

e Issue new subrecipient subcontracts for any modifications to those subcontracts for an additional
year of funding with the revised terms established in September 1998.

¢ Include revisions incorporating the revised terms established in September 1998 in any
modifications to subrecipient subcontracts.

e The Research Foundation does not plan to revise any subrecipient subcontracts that do not
require other modifications.

MATCHING, LEVEL OF EFFORT, EARMARKING
Observation and Recommendation

During testing of compliance with OMB A 133, we noted that one federal grant requires a cost sharing
percentage of 36.5%. As of the date of our testing in August 1999 the project had shared costs of only
26%. We examined the project budget and noted a large amount of release time (the primary source of
cost share expenditures) had not been charged to the project due to resource constraints on processing.
‘We contacted the granting agency which responded that the Research Foundation is responsible to have
36.5% of the award cost-shared by the end of the grant period and has no requirement during the grant,
as long as the 36.5% is established by the end of the grant.

Based on the potential of such a back-log resulting in compliance issues, we recommend that the
Research Foundation evaluate the resources that have been allocated to processing of release reports and
adjust the resources available in order to ensure that the Research Foundation is current on matching
percentages’ requirements designated by various grants.

Management’s Response
The Research Foundation implemented the following procedures effective November 16, 1999:
s A monthly report is used showing projects with budgeted cost sharing and the level of
commitment and expenditures to date. We will circulate this report to each Sponsor Project

Officer as appropriate,

e Projects which lapse in meeting cost sharing will be notified to bring cost share records up to
date or we will put a fiscal “hold” on the project.



UNRECONCILED PAYROLL CLEARING ACCOUNTS (*)
Observation and Recommendation

During fiscal year 1998, the Research Foundation did not perform reconciliations for the project payroll
clearing account or the project fringe benefits clearing account with The Ohio State University because
of problems, which arose from the implementation of the PeopleSoft Payroll system,

We recommend that the Research Foundation continue to reconcile the payroll accounts as efficiently as
possible. The Research Foundation should continue to reconcile these accounts on a timely basis in
order to properly track the amounts that are due to and from The Ohio State University.

Management’s Response

In 1998, The Ohio State University implemented a new human resources system. As a result of the
implementation, payroll information received by the Foundation from The Ohio State University was
adversely impacted. In June 1999, certain system edits, reports and on-line tools were implemented to
address the reconciliation issue. The Research Foundation continues to apply additional resources to
resolve the payroll reconciling problem. Staff additions, and increased support from the University are
being used to reduce the reconciliation problem in general ledgers 130, 510, and 544. We continue to
work closely with the University to seek solutions to the remaining problems.

RECORDING OF PROJECT PAYROLL EXPENSE (*)
Observation and Recommendation

The reconciliation of The Ohio State University’s FAS system to the Research Foundation’s financial
statements indicated that The Ohio State University had approximately $2 million of project payroll
expenses which were not recorded by the Research Foundation on their financial statements. The
Research Foundation’s financial statements were adjusted as of June 30, 1999 to properly reflect the
project payroll expenses.

We recommend that the Research Foundation develop procedures to ensure that all project expenses that
have incurred be properly recorded in the correct period.

Management’s Response

Certain payroll transactions transmitted from The Ohio State University’s human resources system
cannot be immediately posted against projects without additional review for allowability and allocability
by the Research Foundation staff. Management’s response to previous observation applies to this issue
as well. Ultimately, the implementation of an integrated software solution will eliminate the need for
payroll clearing accounts.



This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, the Audit Committee,
management, others within the organization, and the Auditor of State of Ohio and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We would be pleased to discuss any comments with you and assist you in implementing any of the
recommendations.

Yours truly,

Dotk § Toude Cf
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
The Ohio State University Research Foundation
Columbus, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of The Ohio State University Research Foundation (the
Foundation) as of June 30, 1999 and 1998, and the related statements of support and revenue, expenditures
and changes in fund balance, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the management of the Foundation. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Foundation as of June 30, 1999 and 1998, and its support and revenue, expenditures, and changes in fund
balance and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles.

The year 2000 supplementary information on page 10 is not a required part of the basic financial statements,
but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), and
we did not audit and do not express an opinion on such information. Further, we were unable to apply to the
information certain procedures prescribed by professional standards because of the unprecedented nature of
the year 2000 issue and its effects, and the fact that authoritative measurement criteria regarding the status of
remediation efforts have not been established. In addition, we do not provide assurance that the Foundation
is ot will become year 2000 compliant, that the Foundation’s year 2000 remediation efforts will be
successful in whole or in part, or that parties with which the Foundation does business are or will become
year 2000 compliant.

Deloitte Touche
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In accordance with GovemmentAudzz‘zng Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 4, 1999 on
. our consideration of the Foundation’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.

DM\ Townb e

Qctober 4, 1999



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
RESEARCH FOUNDATION

BALANCE SHEETS, JUNE 30, 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Note 3)
INVESTMENTS (Note 3)

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND UNBILLED
PROJECT COSTS

OTHER RECEIVABLES
PREPAID INSURANCE

FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT -
Net of accumulated depreciation of $32,281
and $63,278 in 1999 and 1998, respectively

PATENTS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable:
Trade
The Ohio State University
Accrued payroll
Accrued vacation and sick leave
Deferred revenue - sponsors
Facilities and administrative costs
payable to University departments
Designated funds for University departments (Note 4)

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCE:
Operating fund balance
Contingency fund balance

Total fund baIancé
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

See notes to financial statements.

1999 1998
$13285274  $12,234,253
2,961,821
41,762,078 33,791,789
779,655 1,208,015
3,909 3,909
74,508 55,480
1 1
$55,905,425  $50,255,268
$ 7986395 § 4,600,684
7.211,238 8,120,343
1,251,843 818,460
554,128 - 644,658
20,846,915 18,704,329
7,053,851 7337944
4,709.183 4.184.063
49,613,553 44,410,481
6,191,872 5,744,787
100,000 100,000
6,291,872 5,844,787
$55,905,425  $50,255,268




THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
RESEARCH FOUNDATION

STATEMENTS OF SUPPORT AND REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
TRANSFERS AND CHANGES IN FUND BALLANCE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1989 AND 1998

1999 1998
Cperating Contingency Operating Contingency
Fund Fund Fund Fund
SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
Sponsor project revenue $ 185,096,280 $175,499,219
University appropriation 7,317,453 6,203,516
Interest 559,708 773,197
Transfers to the University for specified )
expenditures 899,645 $(124,855) 676,875 5 (94,618}
Total support and revenue 193,973,086 (124,855) 183,152,807 {94,618)
EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS:
Sponsor Project:
Personnel 88,146,392 84,186,797
Materials and services 43,265,854 39,222,575
Equipment 8,765,184 10,472,421
Travel 5,454,677 4,764,069
Facilities and administrative cost
charged by the University 39,464,172 36,853,358
Expenditures (revenue) specified by the University 899,645 676,875
Contingency expenditures {124,855) (94,618)
Research administration 7,276,119 5,957,016
Transfers to the University 252,872 599,427
Loss on disposal of furniture and equipment 1,086 21,612
Total expenditures and transfers 193,526,001 (124,855) 182,754,150 {94,618}
EXCESS OF SUPPORT AND REVENUE OVER
EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS 447,085 398,657
FUND BALANCE - Beginaning of year 5,744,787 100,000 5,346,136 100,000
FUND BALANCE - End of year 3 6,191,872 $ 100,000 $ 5,744,787 $100,000

See notes to financial statements.




THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
RESEARCH FOUNDATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1899 AND 1998

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Excess of support and revenue
over expenditures and transfers
Adjustments to reconcile excess of support

and revenue over expenditures and transfers to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation

Loss on disposal of furniture and equipment
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable and unbilied project costs

Other receivables
Prepaid insurance
Accountfs payable:

Trade

The Ohio State University
Accrued payroll
Accrued vacation and sick leave
Deferred revenue - sponsors

Recovered facilities and administrative indirect

costs payable to University departments
Designated funds for University departments

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchases of investments
Maturity of investments
Capital expenditures - net

Net cash provided by investing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - End of year

See notes to financial statements.

1999 1998

$ 447,085 $ 398,657
14,799 23,311
1,086 21,612
(7,970,289) (8,083,983)
428,360 (579,409)
(1,198)

3,385,711 974,485
(909,105) 3,190,941
433,383 181,972
(90,530) (340,038)
2,142,586 1,932,536
(284,093) 436,135
525,120 1,649,505
(1,875,887) (195,474)
(54,565,415)

2,961,821 61,556,836
(34,913) (19,497)
2,926,908 6,971,924
1,051,021 6,776,450
12,234,253 5,457,803
$13,285274  § 12,234,253




THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
RESEARCH FOUNDATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 AND 1998

1. ORGANIZATION

The Ohio State University Research Foundation (the Research Foundation) is a nonprofit educational
corporation created in 1936 as a vehicle to promote the development, implementation, and coordination
of sponsored research at The Ohio State University (the University) in the furtherance of the
University’s educational objectives. The Research Foundation’s financial statements and accounts are
consolidated with the University’s for purposes of complying with the University’s reporting
requirements.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of certain significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of the
financial statements.

Basis of Presentation - The financial statements of the Research Foundation have been prepared on an
accrual basis in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Revenue Recognition - Substantially all of the Research Foundation’s revenues are derived from
restricted grants and cost reimbursement contracts which provide for the recovery of direct and
facilities and administrative costs, subject to audit. The Research Foundation recognizes revenue
associated with direct costs as the related costs are incurred. Recovery of related facilities and
administrative costs is generally recorded at fixed rates negotiated with the Department of Health and
Human Services, the cognizant federal audit agency.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposit accounts and
certificates of deposit with original maturities of less than 90 days.

Furniture and Equipment - Furniture and equipment are recorded at cost. Provision is made for
depreciation of physical properties at rates calculated to absorb costs generally over the asset’s
estimated useful life. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method. Depreciation expense
was $14,799 and $23,311 for the years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operating expenses as incurred; major
renewals and betterments are capitalized. When furniture and equipment become fully depreciated, the
assets and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts.

In-Kind Income - The Research Foundation is a related entity of The Ohio State University. As part of
the relationship, transfers of funds occur between the University and the Research Foundation for
certain sponsor project expenditares and research administration. Additionally, the University furnishes
the facilities occupied by the Research Foundation. The value of such facilities, $679,663, was
recorded as rent expense in fiscal 1999. In fiscal 1998, the expense related to the facility was not
determined and was not recognized in the Research Foundation’s financial statements. The income and
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expense for the year ended June 30, 1998 would be increased by such an amount, if it had been
recorded. In-kind income had no effect on excess of revenue over expenditures for fiscal year 1998.

Contingency Fund Equity - The Contingency Fund represents funds available to meet the unforeseen
costs incurred in the conduct and administration of projects. The Fund is authorized by the Board of
Directors at a maximum amount of $100,000 at June 30, 1999 and 1998, renewable quarterly from
facilities and administrative costs collected from sponsors and due to the University.

Estimuates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and {iabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Recently Issued Financial Standards - In December 1998, the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) issued Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 33, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions (GASB No. 33). This Statement establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards for nonexchange transactions involving financial or capital
resources. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning
after June 13, 2000. The Research Foundation has not yet determined what, if any, impact the adoption
of this Statement will have on the financial statements. '

In June 1999, the GASB issued Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements — and Management 's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Govermments
(GASB No. 34). This Statement establishes financial reporting standards for state and local
governments, including states, cities, towns, villages and special-purpose governments such as school
districts and public utilities. The provisions of this Statement are effective for the Research
Foundation’s financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2001. The Research Foundation
has not yet determined what, if any, impact the adoption of this Statement will have on the financial
statements.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

In 1999, the Foundation began transferring funds to a University bank account weekly. The
Foundatjon’s cash in the University account is commingled with other University related entities and
invested daily in overnight investment vehicles, which are considered cash equivalents. Investment
income is allocated to the Foundation based on their ownership of the funds included in the University’s
account.

Included in the bank balance at June 30, 1998 was an overnight repurchase agreement of $12,310,970.
The collateral for the overnight repurchase agreements was U.S. Government Securities which were
being held by the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland in the member bank’s name.

The bank balance which was uninsured by federal deposit insurance as of June 30, 1999 and 1998 was
approximately $11.5 million and $.6 million, respectively. The uninsured balances collateralized by
pools of securities pledged by the depository bank are held in the name of the respective bank.



Investments consisted of the following instruments at June 30, 1998:

Principal Carrying
Description Amount Value
Federal discount notes:
5.53%, due July 31, 1998 $3,000,000 $2,961,821

The above investments were accounted for at amortized cost as they had maturities of a year or less at
the time of purchase. There are no investment instruments held as of June 30, 1999.

The investments held at June 30, 1998 were invested with banks who keep the securities in their
safekeeping accounts at the Federal Reserve Bank in “book entry” form in the name of the respective
bank, but who also internally designate these securities as owned by or pledged to the Research
Foundation.

DESIGNATED FUNDS FOR UNIVERSITY DEPARTMENTS

Designated funds for University departments represent unrestricted funds resulting from residual
amounts from certain completed projects that are for use at the discretion of University departments and
funds payable to the University from royalties received by the Research Foundation.

TAX-EXEMPT STATUS -

The Research Foundation is exempt from federal taxes on income under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. '

RETIREMENT PLAN

All eligible University personnel assigned to the Research Foundation are participating members of the
Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). Contributions to this multi-employer defined benefit
plan are based on percentages of employees’ salaries, which are set by the retirement boards based upon
recommendations by the plan’s actuaries. Contributions during 1999 and 1998 were made in the
following percentages:

Employee Employer
Share Share
PERS 85 % 1331 %

For the years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998, the Research Foundation reimbursed the University
$568,897 and $548,150, respectively, for the PERS retirement costs of Umversxty employees assigned
during the year to the Research Foundation.

The Research Foundation’s liability to the University for PERS is limited to making the above
payments. Data concerning the actuarial present value of the accumulated plan benefits, vested plan
benefits and net assets available for benefits of this plan, specific to the Research Foundation, are not
available since such determinations are made on a statewide basis and not for individual participating
employers.



CONTINGENCIES

The Research Foundation is a party in various legal actions. While the final outcome cannot be
determined at this time, management is of the opinion that the liability, if any, for these legal actions
will not have a material adverse effect on the Research Foundation’s financial position.

L T . S A




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
YEAR 2000 DISCLOSURE (UNAUDITED)

The year 2000 issue is the result of the shortcoming in many electronic data-processing systems and other
equipment that may adversely affect operations in the calendar year 1999 and beyond. There has been
concern that programs may process data inaccurately or stop processing data altogether. The Ohio State
University (the University) with participation from The Ohijo State Research Foundation (the Foundation)
has developed a year 2000 plan to address this issue.

The University’s plan includes the following components:

+ Appropriate staff have been assigned to the year 2000 issue and a budget and project plan has been
established for expenses related to year 2000 compliance efforts.

s Risk areas have been identified and prioritized. These areas include five priority institutional processes.
Within each of these processes are imbedded University’s mission critical systems. The priority
institutional processes are as follows: Health Care Delivery Services, Safe and Healthy Environment,
Teaching and Learning, Research and University Administration.

e In the event of system malfunctions or failures due to the year 2000 issue, the University is developing
contingency plans in all areas determined to be a mission critical system.

¢ The majority of the University’s systems are currently in the remediation or validation/testing stage.
Because of the unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related remediation
efforts will not be fully determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Management cannot assure that the
University is or will be year 2000 ready, that the University’s remediation efforts will be successful in whole

or part, or that parties with whom the University does business will be year 2000 ready.

As of June 30, 1999, the University has not entered into any significant contractuzal agreements with respect
to making computer systems year 2000 compliant.
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INDEPENDENT AUDRITORS* REPORT

WOSU Stations

The Ohio State University
2400 Olentangy River Road
Columbus, Ohio 43210-1027

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of WOSU Stations,
which is a part of The Ohio State University, as of June 30, 1999,
and the related statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balance and cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of WOSU's management.
Our regponsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assesgsing the accounting principles used and significant
egtimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note A, the financial statements of WOSU Stations
are intended to present the finarncial posgition and resgsults of
operations of only that portion of the financial reporting entity
of The Ohio State University, that 1is attributable to the
transactions of WOSU Stations.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of WOSU
Stations at June 30, 1999, and the resulis of its operations and
its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.

We have previousgsly audited the . financial statements of WOSU

Stations for the year ended June 30, 1998, comparative financial

information from which is contained herein. In our opinion, such
comparative financial information has been properly extracted from

the prior vear’s statements.



Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on
the basic financial statements of WOSU Stations taken as a whole.
The supplemental schedules of Revenues and Expenditures By
Telecommunication Operation for the year ended June 30, 1999 and
1998 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the basic financial statements of WOSU Stations.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation
to the basic £financial gtatements of WOSU Stations taken as a

whole. .
\\?:E;rWVIfD ézi(:(h01fklﬂc ,-%2;%(.

September 7, 1999 — -
Columbus, Ohio B}



ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Receivables:
Trade
Federal and state grants
Pledges, net (Note 7}
Underuriting
Total Accounts Receivable
Jotal Current Assets
Investments (Note 2)
Property & Equipment, at cost
Broadcast Rights, net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALAMNCES

Current Ligbilities:
Accounts Payable Trade

Deferred Suppoert and Revenue

COther Accrued Liabilities

WOSU STATIONS
BALANCE SHEET

June 30,

1998

(With Comparative Totals For 1998)

Accrued Compensated Absence {Note 5) 128,009

Total Current Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Endowment
Unrestricted
Restricted
Unexpended
Net Investment in Piant

Total Fund Balanhces

TJotal Liabilities and
Fund Balances

1999 1998
Total Total
Operating Funds Endowment Plant (Memorandum _ {Hemorandum
Ynrestricted Restricted Fund Fund Cnly) only)

$2,680,550 1,505,753 - 1,344,331 $ 5,530,634 $ 5,200,028
552 - - - 552 1,670

- 35,237 - - 35,237 42,475
35,656 - - - 38,656 33,098
41,347 40 - - 64,387 123,282
78,355 58,477 - - 136.832 200,525
2,758,905 1,564,230 - 1,344,331 5,867,466 5,400,553
- - 5,574,033 - 5,574,033 4,879,491

- - - 12,389,287 12,389,287 12,151,191
400,264 59,789 - - 651,053 457,006
$3,359, 169 1,615,019 5,574,033 13,733,618 $24,281.83¢ $2Z,088,241
$ 143,820 28,364 - 55 & 172,239 $ 144,237
- 120,899 - - 120,899 169,283

4,488 - - - 4,488 6,092
59.14% - - 187,158 170,533

276,317 208,412 - 55 484,784 490, 145

- - 5,574,033 - 5,574,033 4,879,491
3,082,852 - - - 3,082,852 3,327,845
- 1,406,607 - - 1,606,607 1,291,920

- - - 1,344,331 1,344,331 947,649

- - - 12,389,232 12,389,252 12,151,191
3.082.852 1,406,607 5,574,033 13,733,563 23,797,055 22,598,096
$3,3°9,160 1,615,019 5,574 033 13,733,618 $24,281,839 $23,088,241

The Accompanying Notes Are An Integral Part Of These

Financial Statements.



For The Year Ended June 30,

WOSU STATIONS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

1988

(With Comparative Totals For 1998)

1299 1998
Total Total
Operating Funds Endowment Piant (Memorandum (Memorandum
Unrestricted Restricted Eund Fund oniy) Cnly)
Support, Revenue and Other Additions:
Ohio State University Direct
Support (Note 6) $ 1,122,202 - - - $ 1,122,202 % 1,181,477
In-kind Revenues:
Contributions 2,490,519 - - - 2,490,519 2,368,373
Donated facilities and administrative
support - Ohic State University (Note &) 1,239,700 - - - 1,239,700 1,209,578
Grants from the Corperation
for Public Broadcasting (Note 4) 938,865 122,535 - - 1,061,400 990,605
Member contributions 2,273,926 - ~ - 2,275,926 2,012,512
Fees and Services:
Business and industry 453,736 413,225 - - 866,961 905,429
Naticnai, regional & local foundations
and nonprofit organizations 19,520 209,815 - - 229,335 277,065
Federal government agencies - - - - - -
Proceeds from auction 274,667 - - - 274,667 293,896
Federal grant award 19,747 113,719 - - 133,466 347,368
State grants 215,175 1,197,592 - - 1,612,767 1,086,522
Equipment acquisitions - - ~ 508,245 508, 245 755,268
Investment income
Interest and dividend income 191,564 48,155 234,931 - 474,650 444 398
Increase in value of investments - - 515,197 - 515,197 635,077
Royalties 16,358 - - - 16,358 5,193
Endowment contributions - - 179,345 - 179,345 199,769
Other 136,337 - ~ - 136,337 64,538
Total Support, Revenue and Other
Additions 9,392,316 2,105,041 929,473 508,245 12,935,075 12,777,068
Expenditures and Other Deductions:
Program services:
Programming and production 2,972,323 851,160 - - 3,840,483 3,547,892
Broadcasting 2,602,880 708,980 - - 3,311,860 3,208,377
Program information 664,751 2,440 - - 667,191 658,581
Total program services 6,246,954 1,572,580 ~ - 7,819,534 7,424,850
Supporting services:
Grant solicitation 165,647 46 - - 165,693 243,172
Fund raising 896,451 45,848 - - 942,299 766,598
Management and general 1,880,382 150,885 - = o _2,031,267 2.196,265
Total supporting services 2,942,480 196,779 - - 3,139,259 3,206,035
Experded for plant facilities 214,697 292,422 - 55 507,174 758,371
Disposal of plant facilities - - - 270,149 270,149 151,176
Total Expenditures and Other
Deductions 9,404,131 2,061,781 - 270,204 11,736,116  11.540,432
Excess of support, revenue and other
additions over expenditures and other
deductions/({deficit) {11,815 43,260 929,473 238,041 1,198,959 1,236,636
Transfers {233,178} 71,427 (234 .931). 396 682 - d
Net increase/{decrease) for the year (244 ,993) 114,687 694,542 634,723 1,198,959 1,236,636
Fund balance, July 1 3,327,845 _1.291.920 4,879,491 13,098,840 22,598,096 21,361,460
Fund balance, June 30 $ 3,082,852 _1.406,607 5 574 033 13,733,563 523,797,055 $22,598,096

The Accompanying Notes Are An Integral Part Of These Financial Statements.
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WOSU STATIONS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For The Year Ended June 30, 1999
(With Comparative Totals For 1998)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:

Excess of support, revenues and .
other additions over expenditures
and other deductiocns

adjustments to reconcile excess of

support, revenues, and other additions

over expenditures and other deductions
to net cash provided by operating
activities:

Disposal of property and eguipment

Amortization and write-offs of
broadcast rights

Acquigition of broadcast rights

(Increase) Decrease in assets:
Accounts receivables
Deposits

Increase (Decrease) in liabilitijies:
Accounts payable
Deferred support and revenue
Other current liabilities

Net Adijustments

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FRCM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Accquisition and construction of
capital assets
Increase in value of investments
Purchasgse of investments - net

Net Cash (Used in) Investing
Activities

Net Increase in Cash
Cash at Beginning of Year

Cash at End of Year o B -

1999 1998
$1,198,959 $1,236,636
270,149 151,176
654,495 615, 634
(648,542) (671,058)
63,693 (56,782)
- 80,400
28,002 (119, 093)
(48,384) (79,674)
15,021 (76,745)
334,434 (156,142)
1,533,392 1,080,494
(508, 245) (755,268)
(515,197) (635,077)
{(179,345) (199,769)

{(1,202,787)

330,606

5,200,028

55,530,634

(1.590.114)

(509,620)
5,709,648
$5,200,028

The Accompanying Notes Are An Integral Part Of These Financial Statements.



NOTE 1

WOSU STATIONS

A Public Telecommunicationg Entity Operated By
The QOhio State University

NOTES TCO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QF SIGNIFI T A UNTING P IES
Bagis of Financial Statements - The accompanying

financial statements include the accounte and results of
operations of two non-commercial public television
stations (WOSU-TV in Columbus, Ohioc; rebroadcast in
Newark, ©Ohio and Mansfield, ©Ohio and WPRBO-TV in
Portsmouth, Chio) and five non-commercial public radio
stations (WOSU-AM and WOSU-FM, both in Columbus, WOSV-FM
in Mansfield, Ohioc, WOSE-FM in Cecshocton, Ohio, WOSB-FM
in Marion, Chio, and WOSP-FM in Portsmouth, Ohio). WOSU
Stations is a part of The Ohio State University financial
reporting entity. The financial statements of the
University contains more extensive disclosure of the
significant accounting policies of the University as a
whole.

Basis of Accounting - The financial statements are
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles for state-assisted colleges and universities.
Resources are classified for accounting and reporting
purposes into funds that reflect the specific activities,
objectives, or restrictions of the resources. Separate
accounts are maintained within each fund. In the
accompanying financial statements, funds that have
similar characteristics are combined into fund groups,
and all financial transactions have been recorded by fund
group. Fund equities restricted by outside sources are
so indicated and are distinguished from unrestricted
funds.

Fund Accounting - The assets, liabilities and fund
equities of WOSU are reported in three self-balancing
fund groups as follows:

- Operating funds include unrestricted and restricted
regources that are available for support of WOSU's
operations.

- The Endowment fund includes funds that are subject to
restrictions of gift instruments requiring that the
principal be invested in perpetuity and only the
income be used for current operations.

- The Plant fund includes resources regtricted or
expended for property and equipment.

6



NOTE 1

WOSU STATIONS

A Public Telecommunications Entity Operated By
The Ohio State University

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAIL: STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - {(Continued)

Revenue Recognition - Unrestricted Member Contributions
are recorded as support when pledged. Restricted Grants
are recorded as gsupport when the grant's contractual
requirements have been met.

The ©principal restricted resources of WOSU are
contributions and grants to finance specific programming
produced by WOSU. These revenues are deferred until WOSU
broadcasts the gpecific program. At such time, the
amounts are included as revenues in the statement of
financial activity.

Cagh -~ WOSU's cash is maintained by The Ohic State
University which commingles the funds with other Ohio
State University related organizations.

Property and Egquipment - Fixed assets are recorded at
cost or, in the case o¢f donated property, at their
estimated fair wvalue at date of receipt. In accordance

with the practice of broadcasting stations affiliated
with educational institutions, depreciation of equipment
is not recorded.

Property acgquired with Federal grant funds has a lien
attached for 10 years after the date of the grant.
Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to
operating expensge as incurred. _
Broadcagt Rights - Broadcast rights purchased by WOSU are
amortized using the straight-line method over three years
and are net of accumulated amortization of $668,544 at
June 30, 1999. '



NOTE 1

WOSU STATIONS

A Public Telecommunications Entity Operated By
The Ohio State University

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL: STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN L - {Continued)
Endowment Fund Invegtments - Endowment funds are handled

by the Treasurer of The Ohio State University who
commingles the funds with other COhio State University
related organizations. Earned invegtment income is
allocated to each organization based on its share of the
total funds invested at the beginning of each vyear.
Additions to Endowment funds are recorded asg fund
additions in the statement of financial activity.
Investments are recorded at their fair market wvalue.

Investment income from Endowment funds is unrestricted by
the donors, and is recorded as such in the statement of
financial activity.

D t ilities an inigtrative Su t fr T
Qhioc State University - Donated facilities from The Ohio
State University consist of office and studio space
together with related occupancy costs and are recorded in
revenue and expense based upon the University's "modified
other sponsored activities indirect cost rate" as defined
by the CPB. Administrative support from The Ohio State
University consist of allocated financial, student and
development department costs and certain other expenses
incurred by the University on behalf of WOSU.

In-Kind Contributions - Donated professional services
provided by individuals and donated materials are
recorded as revenue and expense at the fair value of the
service or material at the date of donation as valued by
the donor. . -- - :

Total Columps - Total columns are presented only to
facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do
not present financial posgition, results of operations,
changes in fund balances, and cash flows in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither
is such data comparable to a consoclidation as they do not
reflect the elimination of interfund activities.



NOTE 2

WOSU STATIONS

A Public Telecommunications Entity Operated By
The Ohio State University

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH AND INVESTMENTS } S -

The cash balance at June 30, 1999 are pooled funds which
are held and managed by the Treasurer's Office of The Chio
State Universgity. Such funds were covered by collateral
held by third party trustees in collateral pools securing
all public funds on depcsit with the financial
institution.

Endowment investments represents WOSU's share of pocled
investment funds. The following summarizes pooled shares
and related values as of June 30, 1989:

# of _  Fair
Fund Account _ _Shares Cost . Value
Friends of WOSU 3%9.0083 $1,378,1%6 353,250,779
Prine Classical Music 1.3276 5,300 10,816
WOSU Stations 283.8348 1,698,063 2,312,438
Total Endowments 684.1717 53,082,559 $5,574,.033

Statement No. 3 of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board regquires entities to categorize investments to give
an indication of the level of risk assumed by the
University at year end:

Category 1 - Investments that are insured or registered or.
for which securities are held by the Universgity or its
agent in the name of the University.

Category 2 - Uninsured and unregistered investments for
which securities are held by the broker's or dealer's
trust department or agent in the name of the University.

Category 3 - Uninsured and unregistered investments for
which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or
by 1ts trust department or agent but not in the
University's name.

Endowment investments, handled by the University
Treasurer's office, are held by an agent in the name of
the University and meet the criteria of Categoxry 1.



WOSU STATIONS

A Public Telecommunications Entity Operated By
The Chic State University

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 RETIREMENT PLAN

Plan Description
Substantially all employees are covered by the Public

Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS). WOSU also has
staff that are covered under the State Teachers Retirement
System (STRS). Thesge retirement programg are statewide
cogt-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plans. PERS and S8TRS provide retivrement and disability
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Authority to
establisgh and amend benefits is provided by state statue.
PERS and STRS issue separate, publicly available financial
reports that include £financial statements and required
gupplementary information. The PERS financial report may
be obtained by writing to Public Employees Retirement
System of Ohio, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Chio 43215
or by calling (614) 466-2085 oxr 1-800-222-7377. The STRS
financial statements may be obtained by writing to State
Teachers Retirement System of Ohio, 275 East Broad Street,
Columbus, Ohio 43215 or by calling (614) 227-4090.

Funding Policy
The Revised Code of Ohio {CORC) provides PERS and STRS

statutory authority for employee and employer
contributions. The required, actuarially determined,
contribution rates for PERS plan members and employers are
8.50% and 13.31% of covered payroll, respectively. For
S8TRS, the required, actuarially determined, rates for plan
members are 9.30% and 14.00% of covered payroll,
respectively.

Trend Information N L o
WCSU's contributions, representing 100% of the required
employer contributions, for the year ended June 30, 1999,
and for each of the preceding two years are:

Year Ended PERS Annual STRS Annual

June 30 ) Contribution Contribution
1899 5403,720 T $514,337
1558 . 385,647 ' - 13,838
1597 384,046 13,929
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NOTE 3

WOSU STATIONS

B Public Telecommunications Entity Operated By
The OChio State University

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)
Other Postemployment Benefits

In addition to the retirement benefits described above,
PERS provides post-retirement health care coverage to age
and service retirants with 10 or more years of qualifying
Ohio gervice credit and to primary survivor recipients of
such retirants. Health care coverage for disability
recipients 1is available. The health care coverage
provided by the retirement system is considered an Other
Post-Employment Benefits {(OPEB) as described in GASB
Statement No. 12. A portion of each employer's
contribution to PERS is set aside for funding of post
retirement health care.

The ORC provides statutory authority for. employer
contributions. The 1998 employer contribution rate fox
state employers was 13.31% of covered payrell; 4.2% was
the portion that was used to fund health care for the
yvear. The Ohioc Revised Code provides statutory authority
requiring public employers to fund postretirement health
care through their contributions to PERS.

OPER are financed through employer contributions and
investment earnings there on. The contributions
allocated to retiree health care, along with investment
income on allocated assets and periodic adjustments in
health care provisions are expected to be sufficient to
sustain the program indefinitely.

Expenditures for OPEB during 1998 were $440,596,663. As
of December 31, 1998, the unaudited estimated net agsets
available for future OPEB payments were $9,447,325,318.
The number of benefit recipients eligible for OPEBR at
December 31, 1998 was 115,579.

During 1937, the Retirement Board adopted a new
calculation method for determining employer contributions
applied to OPEB. Under the new method, effective January
1, 1998, employer contributions, equal to 4.2% of member
covered payroll, are used to fund health care expenses.
Under the prior method, accrued liabilities and normal
cost rates were determined for retiree health care
coverage. T o '

i1



NOTE 3

NOTE 4

WOSU STATIONS

A Public Telecommunications Entity Operated By
The Ohio State University

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS

BT T ~ {Continued)

Other Postemplovmenf Benefits

STRS provides comprehensive health care benefits to
retirees and their dependents. Coverage includes
hogpitalization, physicians' fees, prescription drugs,
and reimbursement of monthly Medicare premiums.

Pursuant to the Ohio Revised Code, STRS has discretionary
authority over how much, if any, of the associated health
care cogts will be absorbed by STRS. Under Ohio law,
medical costs paid from the funds of STRS are included in
the employer contribution rate. The Retirement BRoard
allocates employer contributions egual to 2.00% of
covered payroll to the Health Care Reserve Fund from
which payments for health care benefits are paid.
However, for the fiscal year ended. June 30, 1588, the
board allocated 3.5% of covered payroll is allocated to
the Health Care Reserve Fund. The Health Care Reserve
Fund allocation for the yvear ended June 30, 1999, will be
8% of covered payroll. For the year ended June 30, 1598,
net health care costs paid by STRS were $219,224,000.
There were 91,999 eligble benefit recipients.

CORPORATION FOR PUBLIC BROADCASTING GRANT AWARDS

WOSU Stations received grant funds f£rom the Corporation
for Public Broadcasting (CPB) to assist in the operations
of the stations. During 1999, the following summarizes
grant funds earned during the fiscal year:

CPB Grant WOSU-AM HOsSU-FM WOSU-TV TOTAL
Community

Service L $126,273 126,273 586,319 $938,865
National

Programming

{NPPAG) 49,533 49,533 - 59,066
Interconnection

Grant - - 23,469 23,465
Total $175,.806 175,806 705,788 $21__,,061.400
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NOTE &5

NOTE 6

WOSU STATIONS

A Public Telecommunications Entity Operated By
The Ohio State University

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL: STATEMENTS

COMPENSA ABSENCES

WCSU Station employees earn vacation and sick leave on a
monthly basis. Clagsified civil service employees may
accrue vacation benefits up to a maximum of three years
credit. Administrative and professional staff and
faculty may accrue vacation benefits up to a maximum of
240 hours. For all classes of employees, any earned but
unused vacation benefit is payable upon termination.

Sick leave may be accrued without limit. However, earned
but unused sick leave benefits are payable only upon
retirement f£rom the University with ten or more years of
gtate service. The amount of sick leave benefit payable
at retirement is cne fourth of the accrued but unused
sick leave up to a maximum of 240 hours.

WOSU stations follows the University's policy for
accruing sick leave liability. WOSU accrues a sick leave
liability for those employees wheo are currently eligible
to receive termination payments along with other
employees who are expected to become eligible to receilve
such payments. This liability is calculated using the
"termination payment method"™ which is get forth in
Appendix C, Example 4 of the GASB Statement No. 16,
Accounting for Compensated Absences. Under the
termination method, WOSsU Stations utilizes the
University’s calculated ration, Sick Leave Termination
Cost per Year Worked, that is based on the University's
actual historical experience of sick leave payouts to
terminated employees. This ratio is then applied by WOSU
Stations to the total year-of-sexvice for WOSU current
employees.

As of June 30, 1999, the accrued vacation and sick leave
liability was approximately $187,158.

UNIVERSITY SUPPORT

The operations of WOSU Stations are supported in part by
the general revenues of Ohio State University. The
University provides for the general operating costs of
the stations operations. During fiscal year 1999, The

OChio State University's direct support amcunted to
$1,122,202. In addition, the University provided
$1,239,700 in indirect administrative support.

i3



¥T

65678611 $ %0 8¢ 205758 202705% (18672527 s
STL9EL 11 o7 0le T%E Zoress"t YE0 9981
ahole &1 022 - - -
Yil'l08 g5 00%'90Y 5ve'e9 920’88
652°6€L'E - 122°506°1L 162’646 258959
5e1s0e - TRl T G7506E ms..%.l.\
96%'968 - 28.'%68 68891 626”251
967'L1e - 961" 0EL £98"' 65 289" 1y
HEC 618" 2 - 051 985S 192'01L L P AN
Brism - 16175y F238 T 68 gel
098 Lig’'s - 059 siy’e 166" LS 652" vsE
cgy’0vR's - 60572692 LLt gy £90° 669
6/0°586'2) - £20°169°8 glezoL’? cyh'es9’|
P4k . - 927601 i AT S
Sve'ely - 209° 201 498’ 6987 6¢
85591 - 928°21 285e .
617518 - 6L1’60¢ 650°501 6507 €04
059" 42% - §£L2° 208 21y'z8 596" v8
Gv2'806 642805 - - -
290%21y" | - oge’sot’l 294° 152 (TAN-Y]
997’ gs) - 122°¢8 oyl ’gy -
2997442 - 2994902 - -
5867622 - 591 €91 8’ Lg 9s2'vs
196998 - 1557656 180’681 625851
926°'€L2'e - 620°998") 208795y Gye'esy
00Y:1%0°) - 8BL60L 908°5/1 908" 621
002'682°1 - 6965l 220202 62.'852
61670642 - 009°%5L°2 Le'sl2 809’09
202°22L’L $ - 2ee’sl9 oyy'vee oyy'vee s

(AUQ pund AL-NSOX W -NSOA WY+ NSOM
WP SO ) e g

51810

666) ‘0% aunp papus Jesk ay3 Joj
SNOL1YY3d0 NOTIVIINNWNODAT1AL AH
$IUNLIONIAXT ONY SINHIAZY 40 IFINOSHIS VLNINA1ddNS

SNOILYLS nsoM

SUDLIONPSP JBYI0 PUB S3JNlLpuad¥a JSAC SU0|lLppe
Jaylo pue anusAad ‘jaoddns jo (319148p) $590x3

SUCEIONPBP Jaylo puB SaJnidipudsdxe 18301

5313111994 ueid jo jesodsig
s213111004 Jueyd Joj papuadxa

sa01ALes Bulldoddns 1810)
1eJaUBE puR Juswabeusy
Buisied pung
UOLIBILDL 108 JURLH
15301AJ08 Bu|3Joddng

sa0lAl9s wesboud jelof
UoL1smJoguL wedboad
Bu|1seopeolg
uoLionpodd pue BuruweJdboud
1SU0|3onpaQ Jaylp pue saJn3ipuadxy

SUDLILPDY JaY30 pue shusAay ‘ldoddns 1B10)

Jayio

SUOLING L IIU0Y JUSUMOPU

s3] |eAoy
SILUBWISAAUL 1O BNTBA L) UL asEaldu]
BLOWI| PUSPIALQ § ASaJDIU]

1S IUAWSIAUY

suot3isinboe Juaudinby

siusJB ajess

pdeme Juzlb 1eJ9pdy

uci13one WoJy speadodd

5001182 |Uebi0 3L ioaduou pug

SUOLIBPUNOS 18207 ¥ jBUOLBaJ *ieuoileN
AJashpul pue ssauisng

1530 |AJBS pue $994

SUOLINGLJILOD JSQUIK

Jueyn BuLisespecdg 2119nd J0) uotielodto)

AltsJdeAlun ajels olyo - lJoddns

PALIBIISIUIWPE puB $B131]1384 paleund
SUO 13N LIIUGT

TSOMUBADY PULE-UL

uoiletJdoadde A31st8ALUn 23835 OLYD YL

ISUO|LILPRY JBY30 pue anusAay ‘3jdoddng



999l 2607 v09 07 v\g
eI GITTisl CIETE9L
MY} I11580 -
(W11 - S96'2LE
560'902'¢ - 29L'926°L
go2T961 ¢ - EOT
265'99 - LN\
2iLeve - 192'621
psg'yey's - 996" 6£5°5
185899 - &80T
2IE'802'¢ . 202 299°2
268°245'¢ - 296'08%'2
g90' 2222 892554 zga'ssy'e
§Ea v - ¥i§Tve
692661 - 198’611
£61's - 82’
2407589 - 9%0°18¢
846" 94y - 926192
892°¢c. 892’56, “
225'980" ) - 0E6’S16
89LL4E - sve'iLe
968’ €62 - 968'c62
590242 - NS M)
629’ 506 - 910" 19y
215’2102 - 162°202"1
mSNc&. - 621859
856021 - 119794
gle'89¢"'2 - 962'991'2
2y 1BL'L 3 - 526"612

Ao pun AL-N50n
WRPURJOUS W ) e d

si1ej0l

ST

8 - (DGLZRLY §
556581 557068 |
025658 950’92
082625 £15°669
FI61y <00 c8v
190421 090 0%}
£96'5¢ gyv'9g
282’026 526°%91 "L
058 1T 2e8GLL
%0256 994 50¢
g62'cls 259°s4)
yea'658"L 9658021
8% %05 ._,.lm
Y56’ 6¢ #66' 66

- 9061
GL0°221 910221
2m'es oy9'sL
1E9°6L1L 19605
£20°08L -
850°¢€2 96522
¥90°051L 155962
928" 90v 295’ 00%
g8y 8/ €90 961
286'¢E61 $86°992
266' %L 080°42
2v6’62e 019182 §
WI-TIS0M V- 1SON

8661 'DE BUNp pIpUD JEDA BUY Jog
SHOLLVYHdD HOTLYIINNWNODIT3L A8

SLOLIONPSP JBYI0 pUe SaJn}lpuadxe Jaao suollLppe
Jaylo pue anudAal ‘luoddns jo (31}2149p) SSAdXJ

SUOLIONPSp JYI0 pue saunyipuadyxa jei0)

sal1lylo8) jued jo jesodsig
Sat31119ey Jue)d Joj popuadxyl
S5301AJ88 BullJoddns jel0]
JeJauab pue jusiabeuen
Buisieds puny
UOLIB3LIL]OS JUBJG
P5001AJ95 Buljsoddng
$201AJ95 Wedbosd je30]
uoljewiojul wedbo.ad
Buljseapeo.q
uolonposd pue BuluweaBoud
15301AJOS WedboJd
FSUOLIANPAA JAYI0 PUR S3JNLpuadxy

SUOLILPRY JaY3D pue ANUDABY 'juoddng teloy

J8y3p

SUOLINGLJIU0D JUMOpUT

s313]8A0y
SIUBUISHAUL JO BNYBA JEBY UL SSBSIIU]
| BWODUL PUBPLALG B 3S343IM]

1 SIUBUWISIAU]

suo|31sinbow juaudinby

siuedb ajeas

pJeNg juelb jeJapay

UOIINE WOy SpIasodd
S910UBBE JUELIIDA0E elOpay

suoLjeziuefso 1| joaduou pue

SUOLIEPUNOS 1BDOT ¥ teuciBal 'leuolieN
Adlsnpul pue ssauisng

IS9DIAJIS pue 5394

SUOLANGLIIUDD Jaquay

Juedn BULISEOPECJIE 2110Nd Jo) ual3iedodao)

A3L1saAlun ajels olyg - 3Joddns

BALJBJISULWDE pue SALIL]L08) palkuOg
sU01ING1I3U03

1SONUBARY puly-uj

uoLieitdosdde A31548A1un 21035 OLYD BYL

ISUOLI1PPY JBYID PUB anUBADY 'idoddns

SIUNLIGNACXS ONV SIMHIATE 40 TINAZHIS TVLINIWT14dNS

SNOILYLS nsoM



s
@ CORPORATION FOR PUBLIC BRCADCASTING

Annual Financial Report

STATION FISCAL PERIOD ENDING _ June 30,1999

Station Call Letters EU_A&

7 _Station (CPB ID) Code_ c o mees
City and State ___ Columbus, OH B B T

or Ngtworl;_DesEgnation

Licensee Type: U _ [C=Community; U=University; S=State; LA=Local Authority)

Joint Licencees filing consolidated audited financial statements must list cali’
letters and station codes for other stations included in the consolidated audit report:

g
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REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF TiME TO FILE
FY 1939 CPB ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT AND
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Station Call Letters: ] - Station Code:
Licensee Name:
Fiscal Year End Date: ) Report Due Date *:

Name of Station Mgr. or Chief Exec.:

{Please print name iegibly)

Signature and Date:

{ * Due dates are five months following the end of a station’s fiscal year. Extensions will not be
granted beyond May 31. Refer to the Financial Reporting Guidelines, Appendix, page 47 for further
information.)

Instructions

Please check the appropriate line and mail or fax (202-783-1019) this extension request, before the
due date, to the attention of: Manager, Office of Grants Admin. If line 2 is checked, you must
aftach a detailed explanation nofing the reasons for this request. This form will be returned to you

noting the appropriate action. Check one. but not both. of fhe following:

1. An automatic 30 day extension of time is requested to file the station’s CPB
Annual Financial Report and Audited Financial Statements for the fiscal year shown
above. The station’s extended due date will be (insert date}. Additional
extensions must be separately applied for.

2. An additional 30 day extension of time is requested to file the station’s CPB
Annual Financial Report and Audited Financial Statements for the fiscal year shown
above. The station’s final extended due date will be (insert date).

CPB Use Only (Office of Grants Administration)

CPB Approval: Approved as requested or until

or

Request denied for the following reason:

Mgr., Ofc. of Grants Admin. - _ _Date

Date entered in database: . By:




SCHEDULE OF NONFEDERAL FINANCIAL SUPPORT
ONLY ORIGINALS OF THIS PAGE SHOULD BE FILED WITH CPB

SUMMARY OF NONFEDERAL FINANCIAL SUPPORT FISCAL YEAR 1999
1. Direct Revenue (Schedule A) $ 1,026,267
2. Indirect Administrative Support (Schedule B) 258,729

3. In-Kind Contributions

a. Services and Other Assets (Schedule C) 60,608

b. Property and Equipment (Schedule D)

4. Total Nonfederal Financial Support (sum of lines 1, 2, 3a. and 3b.) 5 1,345,604

CERTIFICATION BY LICENSEE

I certify that the above Schedule of Nonfederal Financial Support for the fiscal year ending 06/30/99 conforms with the )
definition of nonfederal financial support set forth in the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, and adheres to the appropriate
source, form, purpose, and recipient ctiteria as described in the Corporation for Public Broadcasting's Fiscal Year 1999 Annual
Financial Report Handbook of Instructions.

DZPW Az frg ___WOSU-AM The Ghin State Univerisity

Signature of Stati n Manager or ?}uef Executive/Date Call Letters and Licensee Nome
2400 Olentangy River Road
Dale K. Ouzts (614) 292-9678 _ Columbus, OH 43210
Name, phone number, e-mail address of contact person Address of Station

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

We have audited, in accordance with geperally accepted auditing standards, the financial statements of WOSU-AM for the
year ended os/ 30{ 99 and have issued our report thereon dat}d (8)] - We have also audited the above Schedule of
Nonfederal Financial Support (Schedule) for the year ended pursuant to the Public Telecommunications Financing

Act of 1978. This Schedule is the responsibility of the management of 1agement of WOSU Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on this Schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generaily accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain assurance about whether the above Schedule is free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Schedule. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall Schedule presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The above Schedule was prepared for the purpose of complying with the criteria for revenue established in the Corporation for Public
Broadcasting's Fiscal Year 1999 Annual Financial Report Handbook of Instructions, and is not intended to be a complete
presentation of __ WOSU's revenue.

In our opinion, thc a?wcfchedule presents fairly, in afl matcnal respects, the nonfederal financial support of .___W_Q.S_U-:.A_i__ for
the year ended as defined by the Communications Act of 1934, as amended; and adheres to the appropriate source,
form, purpose, and recipient criteria as described in the Corporation for Public Broadcasting’s Fiscal Year 1999 Annual Financial

Report Handbook f Ir?u'ucuons and includes only amounts that are also included in U's financial statements for the
year ended 6/30/99 o o
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and management of ___WOSU and the

Corporation for Public Broadcasting and should not be used for any other purpose.
400 East Town Street, Suite 200

Parmg & Company, Inc. - .. —Columbus, OH 43215
Name of Jfdepdndent Auditor ' " Address
10/1 /97 (614) 224-3078
A%orized S}gncﬂre o ' " " Date m“r’lr:e}ephon-e Number



CERTIFIER’S QUALIFICATION STATEMENT
1999

CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
WHO IS NOT A REPRESENTATIVE OF AN INDEPENDENT CPA FIRM

ONLY ORIGINALS OF THIS PAGE SHOULD BE FILED WITH CPB

Licensee/Station(s)

[ certify that:

1. I qualify to certify this financial report based on the following explanation of my independence from the ( ) licensee andfor { )
station:

I am not in any way responsible for the accounting cperations of the station in either a working or supervisory capacity.

[ am not in any way responsible for, or connected with, establishment of the overhead rates or other factors that govern the amounts
of indirect or other in-kind contributions included in the station’s Schedule of Nonfederal Financial Support.

I was not involved with the operations of the station during the period covered by this report.

2. 1 qualify to certify this financial report based on the following explanation of my techaical training and experience. (See
Cerdification Requirements, Acceptable Auditors section, CPB Handbook of Instructions.)

CHECK ONE:

1 am employed by a state audit agency which qualifies as an acceptable independent audit agency. (See pages 16 and 17 of the
Handbook of Instructions.)

OR

I am an internal auditor who is also a:

Certified Public Accountant ___ , licensed to practice in _ (state)
Licensed Public Accountant ___, licensed to practice in _ ___ (state)

- Name of Independent Auditor " Title )
Authorized Signature " Address
Telephone Number " Date



FORM FOR NOT FILING AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR 1999

Stations have an option of filing audited financial statements on a biennial basis. Stations choosing
this option must file statements in every even-numbered fiscal year (i.e. 2000, 2002, 2004, etc.).

In odd-numbered years, such as fiscal year 1999, stations may elect not to file audited financial
statements. However, in the next year, the biennial statements must cover the twenty-four month
period since the previous audited financial statements were filed, and consist of twe 12-month
audited statements. '

Keep in mind that an audited CPB Annual Financial Report must be filed each and every year.
If it is subsequently found that CPB calculated the station's grants on an overstated 1999 NFFS,
grants will be adjusted by the proper amounts.

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE GENERAL MANAGER

We will not file audited financial statements for fiscal year 1999. We understand that
this will oblige us to file two 12-month audited financial statements in fiscal year 2000.
We further understand that the CPB Annual Financial Reports for both 1999 and 2000
must be audited by an independent auditor.

~ Station

Call Letters/Network Designation Station CPB Code

Location

City / State

Signature of Gerieral Manager

Printed name of General Manager

Telephone Number and E-mail Address

THIS FORM MUST ACCOMPANY THE AUDITED CPB AFR



SCHEDULE A
FISCAL YEAR 1999

DIRECT REVENUE

1.

12,

Round all figures to nearest dollar

Amounts provided directly by federal government agencies:

PTFP (NTIA) Facilities Grants $
Department of Education

Department of Health and Human Services

National Endowment for the Arts and Humanities

National Science Foundation

Other Federal Funds (specify)

Total federal government (forward to line 22) $

mmonNw >

Amounts provided by public broadcasting entities such as CPB,
PBS, NPR, AIT, CTW, FCI, other stations and regional networks:

CPB - Community Service Grants 3
- Annenberg/CPB Project Grants
. CPB - NPPAG
CPB - Interconnection grants
CPB - all other funds
PBS - all payments
NPR - all payments
Public broadcasting stations - all payments
Other PBE funds {specify)

Total public broadcasting entities (forward 1o line 23} $

TERQI@EDORER

Local boards and departmenis of education or
other local government or agency sources

State boards and departments of education or
other state government or agency sources

State colleges and universities

Other state-supported colleges and universities

Private colleges and universities

Foundations and nonprofit associations (include underwriting)
Business and Industry (include underwriting)

Memberships and subscriptions {net of write-offs)
10a. Total number of contributors 5,263 (102)

Revenue from friends groups less any revenue included on line 10

11a. Total number of friends contributors : (la)

Revenue from subsidiary enterprises and related organizations (see instructions)

(1A)

(1B)

(o)
)

(1E)
(1E)

¢

126,273 (24)

(2B)

49,533 0

(2D)

(2E)

(2F)

(2G)

(2H)

(2D

175,806 @

3)

49,120 @)

)

©)

)

34,276 8}

138,329 9

452,345 (10)

(11)

(12)




SCHEDULE A
FISCAL YEAR 1999 - continued

3.

14,

15.

16

17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

22.

23.

24,

27.

6,479 {13
Net revenue from special fund raising activities
(inclusive of direct expenses of $ ). (4%
Passive income
15a. Interests and dividends 84,5965 (152) )
I5b. Royalties (156} L
15c. Copyright Tribunal Distributions (15¢) 84,965 (15)
Gains (losses) on sale of assets and securities transactions
16a. Properly and equipment (162}
16b. Marketable securities (realized) (16b)
16c. Marketable securities (unrealized) 103,039 (16¢c) 103,038 (16)
- Endowment revenue (contributions plus interest and dividends) 35,869 an
Capital fund contributions
18a. Facilities and equipment (18a) o
18b.- Other (18b) (18)
Gifts and bequests from major individual donors 19
Other (attach schedule)
Description Amount
Merchandise Saleg 444 -
miscellanecus 8,994 9,438 0
Total Revenue (Sum of lines I through 20) $ 1,314,106 @1
Adjustments to Revenue:
Federal revenue from line 1 (z2)
Public broadcsting revenue from line 2 175,806 23)
Capital funds exclusion - TV only {from line 18a) (24)
Other revenue on line 21 not meeting the source, form,
purpose or recipient criteria (Scheduie A-1, line 19) 112,033 (25)
Revenue on line 21 that has been previously claimed as NFEFS (26)
Total Direct Nonfederal Financial Support (Line 21 less Lines 22
through 26). (Forward to line I of the Schedule of Nonfederal B}
Financial Support) $ 1,026,267 Qn

Net auction revenue
{inclusive of direct expenses of $ ).

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED

1.

2.

Revenue received as underwriting from foundations and nonprofits (linc 8)

Revenue received as underwriting from business and industry (linc 9)

),

$ 34,276

138,029




SCHEDULE A-1
FISCAL YEAR 1999

REVENUE NOT MEETING CRITERIA FOR INCLUSION AS NFFS

Unless revenue meets the specific criteria defined in the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, it must be excluded from NFFS. This
Schedule (A-1) is used to report revenue that must be excluded from the total reported on Schedule A, The criteria are defined as follows:

Source: A commercial {profit-making) business enterprise, including a for-profit subsidiary or any individual.

Form: Payment in exchange for any service or material.

Purpose: Service or material for any related activity of the public broadcasting entity.

Recipient: A public broadcasting eatity.
List revenue from for-profit corporations or individuals reported an Schedule A that is for the sale of goods and services:

Enter Line No.
From Sched. A& Amount

1. Production, taping, or other broadcast related activities 20 (la) 4,597 3
2. Telecasting production / teleconferencing (2a) (2)
3. Foreign rights (3a) )
4. Rentals of membership lists (4a) 4
5. Rentals of studio space, equipment, tower, parkiag space (52} (5)
6. Leasing of SCA, VBI, ITFS channels (6a) (6)
7. Sale of progams or progam rights for public performance (7a) ¥)]
8. Sale or rental of program transcripts or recording for other than

public performance including private use (8a) (®)
9. Gains or losses on sale of assets and securities transactions 16C Ga) 103,039 ®)
10. Sale of premiums (1Ga) (1o}
11. Royalty income from licensing fees and Store of Knowledge agrmts. {11a) (i1}
12. Other rev. not listed above and not includabie by definition (att. list) 20 (12a) 4,397 a1
List below any revenue claimed on Schedule A regardless of source:
13, A wholly owned or partially owned for-profit sﬁbsidiary regardless

of the nature of the business (13a) (13)
14. A wholly owned or partially owned nonprofit subsidiary (14a) (14)
15. Sale of program guides (15a) (15)
16. Program guide advertising attributable to that percent of total copies

distributed that have been sold through normal retail outlets and/or

by magazine subscription (16a) (16)
17. Refunds, rebates, reimbursements, and insurance proceeds (172} an
18. Other {attach list) (18a) (18)
19, Total revenue not meeting criteria for inclusion as NFFS (sum

of lines 1 through 18). (Forward to Schedule A, line 25} 3 112,033 (19)




SCHEDULE B (For Use By Institutional Licensees Only)
FISCAL YEAR 1999

INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT

If you are using the Other Sponsored Activities indirect cost rate methodology, complete Schedule B -
Worksheet before continuing,

Complete Schedule B-1 in support of the benefiting cost groups included in the amount on line 3.

Institutional Physical Plant
Support Operations

1. Costs per licensee financial statements 3 $
2. LESS: Costs groups that do not benefit the

operations of the public broadcast station
3. Adjusted balance (line 1 minus line 2)
4. Percentage of allocation

(Basis of allocation must be stated below)
5. Portion of support activity benefiting station

(line 3 times line 4) $ $

>a ob

6. Total support activity benefiting station ’

(sum of lines 5a and 5b) $ 258,729

7. Occupancy value - check one
[ 1 Annual Value - same as FY98
[ 1 NEW Annual Value
Occupancy forms attached

8. LESS: Any fees paid to the licensee for
overhead recovery, assessment, etc.

9. Total Indirect Administrative Support
(sum of lines 6 and 7 minus line 8) ' $ 258,729

{Forward to line 2 of the Schedule of NFFS)

Basis of allocation used for line 4 above DONOR CODES - SELECT ONE:
Institutional support (explain) [ ]SU (State university)
{ 1 SG (State government)
[ 1 PU (Private university)
[]
[1]
[1]

Physical plant operations (explain) LG (Local government)
OU (Other university)
O

T (Others)




SCHEDULE B ~- WORKSHEET (For Use By Institutional Licensees Only)
FISCAL YEAR 1999
INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT (Using the Other Sponsored Activities Indirect Cost Rate)

Eact: line of this worksheet must be completed, Enter zero or n/a as applicable,

1. Determine station net direct expenses

Total station operating expenses and capital outlays (from line 10 of Schedule E) $ 1,607,305

Less: Capital Outlays $ 38,074

Depreciation

Amortization
In-kind services 60,608
Donated property
Other n ]
Total ( 98,682 )
Station Net Direct Expenses $ 1,508,623

2. Modify licensee negotiated cost rate

If the station's direct expenses are not included in the cost base, do not continue with this worksheet.

1999 Licensee negotiated indirect cost rate
Aftach rate sheet (see instructions) 17.15

Less: Portion of rate that does not benefit station operations:

Departmental administration

Sponsored projects administration

Library support

Other

R 8] R H/ K

Modified cost rate _17.15

3. Apply modified rate to station net direct expenses

Station net direct expenses from line 1 7 $ 1,508,623

Modified cost rate from line 2 X L1715

Total Indirect Support ( forward to line 6 of Schedule B ) ) 3 258,729

NQTE: Do not claim a value for occupancy if the cost pool includes a rate for building use.

10



SCHEDULE B

INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT
(PAGE 1 OF 2)

OTHER SPONSORED ACTIVITIES INDIRECT COST RATE
MODIFICATION OF RATE

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY -
SUMMARY OF OTHER SPONSORED ACTIVITIES INDIRECT COST RATE
INDIRECT COST PROPOSAL, JUNE 30, 19591

ON- OFF-
INDIRECT MIDC CAMPUS CAMPUS
POOL, €OST . BASE RATE RATE

Building Use Allowance 3 46,331 $12,996,788 0.36% B
Improvement Use Allowance 4,687 12,986,788 G.04%
Equipment Use Allowance 126,032 12,996,788 0.97%
Operations & Maintenance 855,431 12,996,788 6€.58%
Genexral Adminisgtration 483,637 13,282,658 3.64% 3.64%
College Administration 830,362 13,282,658 7.00% 7.00%
Departmental Administration 625,662 13,282,658 4.71% 4.71%
Sponsored Projects Administration 797,292 5,844,646 - 9.01% 9.01%
Librariesa 166.949 12,996,788 1.28%
SUBTOTALS % 4,036,383 33.60% 24 .36%
Less Cost Components Not
Benefiting Station:

Departmental Administration 3 {(625,662) 13,282,658 (4.71) %

Libraries (166,949) 12,996,788 (1.28}%

sponsored Projects Administration {797,.292) 8,844,645 (9.017%
RATE F.Y.E. 6-30-91 § 2,446,480 18.59%
Factor to Adjust 6-30-91 Rate . ]
Agreement for 6-30-99 {(31/33.6) ) S x 0.5

RATE F.Y.E. 6-30-95 17.15%



SCHEDULE B

WOSU-AM

INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT

{({PAGE 2 OF 2)

STATIONS TOTAL EXPENDITURES

LESS:

INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT
IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS, SERVICES
CAPITAL OUTLAYS

STATION'S NET DIRECT EXPENSES

MODIFIED OTHER SPONSORED ACTIVITIES
INDIRECT COST RATE

STATION'S INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT

$ 1,866,034

258,729
60,608

38,074

1,508,623

x 17.15%
$ _ 258 729



SCHEDULE B-1
FISCAL YEAR 1999 '
INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT - BENEFITING COST GROUPS

List below ihe licensee cost groups that benefit the station. These are the cost groups whose value is
represented on Schedule B, line 3. The station must demonstrate (under audit and upon request by CPB)
that these cost groups include services that are an essential part of the station operations; services are
continuous and ongoing in support of the station; and the station uses the services or is required to use the

services provided. The station must maintain adequate documentation to support the value claimed on
Schedule B.

Check all that apply -

Institutional Support: _Physical Plant Operations
Budget and Analysis , Building Maintenance
Campus Mail Service Custodial Services
Computer Operations Dirgéfor of Operaﬁons
Financial Operations ‘ _Elevator Maintenance
Human Resources Grounds and Landscaping
Insurance Motor Pool
Internal Audit " Refuse Disposal
Legal Roof Maintenance
Payroli Utilities
President's Office Security Services *
Purchasing o Facilities Planning *

____ Other (Attach List) Other (Attach List)

* Caution: Be sure that these amounts have been reclassified from the Instituional Support Cost
Pool before the indirect cost allocation is calculated.

For complete guidance on completing Schedule B and related information refer to the Financial Reporting

Guidelines - FY 1999 Handbook of Instructions. Also reference the "CPB Indirect Administrative Support”
guide. (Call CPB's Office of Grants Administration at 1-800-527-2272 for resource material availability.)

11



SCHEDULE C
FISCAL YEAR 1999

IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS - SERVICES AND OTHER ASSETS

Supporting documentation for gll claims must be maintained at the station and may be requested
by CPB. This support must be recognized in the station's audited financial statements.

1.

Donor Type
{See below)

Professional Services

(a) Legal 8

()

{b) Accounting and/or auditing

(b}

(c) Engineering

©

(d) Other professionals {specify exact type)

@

Total Professional Services

General Operational Services

(a) Annual rental value of space -
(studios, offices or tower facilities)

(b) Annual value of land used for locating
a station-owned transmission tower

(¢) Station operating expenses

{d) Other (specify exact type)

Total General Operational Services

(a)

)
(c)

(d)

DONOR CODES
BS - Business PU - Private Univ
FD - Foundation SG - State Govt.
FG - Federal Government SU - State Univ.
LG - Local Government
PB - Public Broadcsting Entity OT - Other

12

(1

(2



SCHEDULE C e
FISCAL YEAR 1999

IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS - SERVICES AND OTHER ASSETS - continued

Donor Type

{See below)
3, Other Services

(@) ITV or educational radio I _ @@

{b) State Public Broadcasting Agencies:
(APBC, FL DOE, NYN, OET, PPTN
and NY Network only) 56 _ _ 50,661 @y

{c) Local advertising _ B . 9.947 ()

(d) National advertising - L (D

Total Other Services 60,608

4, Total in-kind contributions - services and
other assets (sum of lines I through 3) $ 60,608

5. LESS: in-kind contributions from federal and public
broadcasting entities included in line 4

6. Total nonfederal in-kind contributions - services and
other assets (line 4 less line 5). (Forward to line
3a of the Schedule of Nonfederal Financial Support) _ $ 60,608
Caution : Refer to the Guidelines and Supplemental Guide to determine if in-kind contributions

meet the criteria for inclusion as NFFS. Do not include contributions related to fund raising
activities (including membership drives).

DONOR CODES
BS - Business PU - Private Univ
FD - Foundation SG - State Govt.
FG - Federal Government SU - State Univ.
LG - Local Government
PB - Public Broadcsting Entity OT - Other

3

)

(5)

(6)



SCHEDULE D
FISCAL YEAR 1999

IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Supporting documentation for all claims must be maintained at the station and may be requested
by CPB. This support must be recognized in the station’s audited financial statements.

Donor Type
(See below)
L. Land b (H
2. Building (2)
3. Equipment _ 3
4. Vehicle(s) » @)
5. Other (specify)
(5)
6. Total in-kind contributions - property and
equipment {(sum of lines 1 through 5) 3 6
7. LESS: in-kind contributions from federal and public
broadcasting entities included in line 6 Q)
8. Total nonfederal in-kind contributions - property and
equipment (line 6 less line 7). (Forward to line 3b of
the Schedule of Nonfederal Financial Support) $ _®
DONOR CODES i
BS - Business ~ PU - Private Univ.
FD - Foundation SG - State Govt.
TG - Federal Government SU - State Univ.
LG - Local Government
PB - Public Broadcsting Entity OT - Other

14



SCHEDULE E
FISCAL YEAR 1999

EXPENSES AND CAPITAL OUTLAYS

Include both cash and noncash expenses

Program Services .

Round all figures
to nearest dollar

1. Programming and Production $ 695,063 (1)
2. Broadcasting 354,259 2
3. Program Information and Promotion 123,801 (3)
Support Services
4. Management and General 460,475 G
5. Fund Raising and Membership Development 152,925 &)
6. Underwriting and Grant Solicitation 41,437 {6)
7. Depreciation and Amortization * )
8. Total operating expenses (lines 1 to 7) $ 1,827,960 ®)
(line 8 must agree with audited financial statements}

Additional Information
9. Cost of Capital Assets Purchased or Donated

Land and Buildings $ (%a)

Equipment 38,074 ob) )

All Other (9c) 38,074 )]
10. TOTAL (sum of lines 8 and 9) $ 1,866,034 (10)

NOTE:

* If depreciation and amortization are not allocated to the various functional categories, report the full

amount on this line.



SCHEDULE ¥
FISCAL YEAR 1999

RECONCILIATION FORM

As stated in the FY 1999 Annual Financial Report Handbook of Instructions, a station's AFR must be reconciled with its audited
JSinancial statements. This form must be used in reconciling the two reports. Remember that all NFFS reported for any given
year by a station must be recognized as support and revenue in the station's audited financial statements for that year.

CPB Annual Financial Report
List revenue reported on the following lines:

Schedule A, line 21 3 1,314,106
Schedule B, line 9 258,729
Schedule C, line 4 60,608
Schedule D, line 6

Total CPB Annual Financial Report $ 1,633,443

Audited Financial Statements

List total support and revenue as recognized in the statement of activities:

Total support and revenue - unrestricted $ 1,633,443

Total support and revenue - temporarily restricted

Total support and revenue - permanently restricted

Total Support and Revenue $ 1,633,443
Capital grants
Total Audited Financial Statements $ 1,633,443
Difference - Total CPB Annual Financial Report less Total
Audited Financial Statements (Explain in the space provided below) $
Description of Reconciling Items ) Reconciling Amount
1 $
2 o
3
4
5
6
Total (must agree with difference shown above) $

16



1)
@ CORPORATION FOR PUBLIC BROADCASTING

Annual Financial Report

STATION FISCAL PERIOD ENDING June 30,1992

Station Call Letters WOSU-FM i or Network Designation
Station (CPB ID) Code__ ’

City and State Columbus, OH

Licensee Type: _ U _ (C=Community; U=University; S=State; LA=Locat Authority)

Joint Licencees filing consolidated audited financial statements must lisf call’
fetters and station codes for other stations included in the consolidated audit report:
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REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF TIME TO FILE
FY 1999 CPB ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT AND
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Station Call Letters; S Station Co_c_fe:
Licensee Name:

Fiscal Year End Date: . Report Due Date *:
Name of Station Mgr. or Chief Exec.:

(Please print name legibly)

Signature and Date:

{ * Due dates are five months following the end of a station’s fiscal year. Extensions wiil nof be
granted beyond May 31. Refer to the Financial Reporiing Guidelines, Appendix, page 47 for further
information.)

Instructions

Please check the appropriate line and mail or fax (202-783-1019) this extension request, before the
due date, to the attention of: Manager, Office of Grants Admin. If line 2 is checked, you must
aftach a detailed explanation noting the reasons for this request. This form will be returned to vou

noting the appropriafe action. Check one, but not both. of the following:

1. An automatic 30 day extension of time is requested to file the station’s CPB
Annual Financial Report and Audited Financial Statements for the fiscal year shown
above. The station's extended due date will be {insert date). Additional
extensions must be separately applied for.

2. An additional 30 day extension of time is requested to file the station’'s CPB
Annual Financial Report and Audited Financial Statements for the fiscal year shown
above. The station’s final extended due date wiil be (insert date).

CPB Use Only {Office of Grants Administration)

CPB Approval: Approved as requested or until
or

Request denied for the following reason:

Mgr., Ofc. of Grants Admin. _ _____Date_

Date entered in database: . By:




SCHEDULE OF NONFEDERAL FINANCIAL SUPPORT
ONLY ORIGINALS OF THIS PAGE SHOULD BE FILED WITH CPB

SUMMARY OF NONFEDERAL FINANCIAL SUPPORT FISCAL YEAR 1999
1. Direct Revenue (Schedule A) S 1,288,720 )
2. Indirect Administrative Support {Schedule B) 207,022

3. In-Kind Contributions
a. Services and Other Assets (Schedule C) 275,311
b. Property and Equipment (Schedule D)

4_ Total Nonfederal Financial Support (sum of lines {, 2, 3a. and 3b.) $ 1,771,053

CERTIFICATION BY LICENSEE
I certify that the above Schedule of Nonfederal Financial Support for the fiscal year ending 06/30/99 conforms with the )
definition of nonfederal financial support set forth in the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, and adheres to the appropriate

source, form, purpose, and recipient criteria as described in the Corporation for Public Broadcasting’s Fiscal Year 1999 Annual
Financial Report Handbook of Instructions.

VQMq}f/ /a/, 2 /eg ___WOSU~FM The Ohio State University

Signature of Station Manager aTC!htef Executive/Date Cai, rséTg %ﬁgﬁi’ Nﬁrae‘:, or a
Dale K. Ouzts (614) 292-9678 ] Columbus, OH 43210
Name, phone number, e-mail address of contact persen Address of Station

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

We have audited, in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, the financial statements of __WOSU-FM for the .
year ended Q6/30/99__ and have issued our report thereon (513 ;g 09/07/99 We have also audited the above Schedule of
Nonfederal Financial Support (Schedule) for the year ended wc?éxrsuant to the Public Telecommunications Financing
Act of 1978. This Schedule is the responsibility of the management of _ WU ~  OQur responsibility is to express an

opinion on this Schedule based on our audit. '

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain assurance about whether the above Schedule is free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Schedule. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall Schedule presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The above Schedule was prepared for the purpose of complying with the criteria for revenue established in the Corporation for Public
Broadcasting’s Fiscal Year 1999 Annual Financial Report Handbook of Instructions, and is not intended to be a complete
prcseniatwn of _WOSU's revenue.

In our opinion, the above Schedule presents fairly, in all material respects, the nonfederal ﬁnancxal support of WOSB-FM for
the year ended __06/30/99 as defined by the Communications Act of 1934, as amended; and adheres to the appropriate source,
form, purpose, and recipient criteria as described in the Corporatlon for Public Broadcasting’s Fiscal Year 1999 Annual Financial

Report Handbook of Instructions; and includes only amounts that are also included in _WOSU's financial statements for the
year ended . . N
‘This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and management of WosuU and the

Corporation for Public Broadcasting and should not be used for any other purpose.
400 East Town Street, Suite 200

Parms & Company, Inc. - Columbus, OH 43215 ,
Wma’enr Auditor ) o o Address - : - =
‘_'—' - - -
m /0[{{/ ?? (614) 224-3078 o
/ﬂtthon‘zedﬁgnamm Date " Telephone Number ) o c



CERTIFIER’S QUALIFICATION STATEMENT
1999

CERTIFICATION OF INDEFENDENT AUDITOR
WHO IS NOT A REPRESENTATIVE OF AN INDEPENDENT CPA FIRM

ONLY ORIGINALS OF THIS PAGE SHOULD BE FILED WITH CPR

Licensee/Station(s)

I certify thar:

1. I qualify 1o certify this financial report based on the following explanation of my independence from the { ) licensee andfor ()
station:

I am not in 2ny way responsible for the accounting operations of the station in either a working or supervisory capacity.

I am not in any way responsible for, or connected with, establishment of the overhead rates or other factors that govern the amounts
of indirect or other in-kind contributions included in the station’s Schedule of Nonfederal Financial Support.

I was not involved with the operations of the station during the period covered by this report.

2. I qualify to certify this financial report based on the following explanation of my technical training and experience. (See
Certification Requirements, Acceptable Auditors section, CPB Handbook of Instructions.}

CHECK ONE:

1 am employed by a state audit agency which qualifies as an acceptable independent audit agency. (Sec pages 16 and 17 of the
Handbook of Instructions.)

OR
I am an internal auditor who is also a: .
Certified Public Accountant ____, licensed to practice in (state)
Licensed Public Accountant ___ | licensed to practice in __ (state}
Name of Independent Auditor . Title
Authorized Signature Address
Telephone Number " Date



FORM FOR NOT FILING AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR 1999

Stations have an option of filing audited financial statements on a biennial basis. Stations choosing
this option must file statements in every even-numbered fiscal year (i.e. 2000, 2002, 2004, etc.).

In odd-numbered years, such as fiscal year 1999, stations may elect not to file audited financial
statements. However, in the next year, the biennial statements must cover the twenty-four month
period since the previous audited financial statements were filed, and consist of two 12-month
audited statements.

Keep in mind that an audited CPB Annual Financial Report must be filed each and every year.
If it is subsequently found that CPB calculated the station's grants on an overstated 1999 NFFS,
grants will be adjusted by the proper amounts.

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE GENERAL MANAGER

We will not file audited financial statements for fiscal year 1999. We understand that
this will oblige us to file two 12-month audited financial statements in fiscal year 2000.
We further understand that the CPB Annual Financial Reports for both 1999 and 2000
must be audited by an independent auditor.

Station

Call Letters/Nerwork Designation ‘ Station CPB Code

Location

City / State

Signature of General Manager

Printed name of General Manager

Telephone Number and E-mail Address

THIS FORM MUST ACCOMPANY THE AUDITED CPB AFR



SCHEDULE A
FISCAL YEAR 1999

DIRECT REVENUE

i

12.

Round all figures io nearest dollar

Amounts provided directly by federal government agencies:

PTFP (NTIA) Facilities Grants $
Department of Education

Department of Health and Human Services
National Endowment for the Arts and Humanities
National Science Foundation

Other Federal Funds (specify)

Total federal government (forward to line 22) 3

mMmU QW

Amounts provided by public broadcasting entities such as CPB,
PBS, NPR, AIT, CTW, FCI, other stations and regional networks:

CPB - Community Service Grants $
Annenberg/CPB Project Grants

CPB - NPPAG

CPB - Interconnection grants

CPB - all other funds

PBS - all payments

NPR - all payments

Public broadcasting stations - all payments

Other PBE funds (specify)

Total public broadcasting entities (forward to line 23) $

FEOMEMUO®

Local boards and departments of education or
other local government or agency sources

State boards and departments of education or
other state government or agency sources

State colleges and universities

Other state-supported colleges and universities

Private colleges and universities

Foundations and nonprofit associations (include underwriting)
Business and Industry (include underwriting)

Memberships and subscriptions (net of write-offs)

10a. Total number of contributors 5,263 (102)

Revenue from friends groups less any revenue included on line 10

11a. Total number of friends contributors : (lia)

Revenue from subsidiary enterprises and related organizations (see instructions})

48,145

48,145

126,273

49,533

175,806

257,767

224,440

31,894

189,081

456,802

aa
(1B)
(1)
(iD)
agy
(iF)

O

(24)
(2B)
(20
(2D)
(2E)
(2F)
2G6)
(2H)

2n

@

©)

@)
)
©)
O
®
©;

(10

{an

(12)



SCHEDULE A
FISCAL YEAR 1999 - continued

13,  Net auction revenue
(inclusive of direct expenses of § ).
14,  Net revenue from special fund raising activities
{inclusive of direct expenses of $ }2
15.  Passive income
15a. Interests and dividends 82,412 {152)
15b. Royalties 3,532 {15b)
15c. Copyright Tribunal Distributions (i5¢c)
16 Gaias (losses) on sale of assets and securities transactions
i6a. Property and equipment (i6a)
i6b. Marketable securities (realized) (16b)
16c. Marketable securities (unrealized) 103,039 (16c)
17. - Endowment revenue (contributions plus interest and dividends)
18.  Capital fund contributions
18a. Facilities and equipment (18a)
18b, - Qther (18b)
19.  Gifts and bequests from major individual donors
20.  Other (attach schedule)
Description Amount
Merchandise Sales 7 444
“Miscellaneous 4,271
21.  Total Revenue {Sum of lines I through 20)
Adjustments to Revenue:
22.  Federal revenue from line 1
23.  Public broadcsting revenue from line 2
24.  Capital funds exclusion - TY oply (from line 18a) i
25. Other revenue on line 21 not meeting the source, form,
purpose or recipient criteria (Schedule A-1, line 19)
26.  Revenuc on line 21 that has been previously claimed as NFFS
27.  Total Direct Nonfederal Financial Support (Line 21 less Lines 22
through 26). (Forward to line 1 of the Schedule of Nonfederal
Financial Suppart)

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED

i

2.

Revenue received as underwriting from foundations and nonprofits (line 8}

Revenue received as underwriting from business and industry (line 9)

6,479 a3

(14

85,944 (1s)

103,039 (16)

35,869 an

(18)

19)

4,715 o)

1,619,981 2

48,145 22)

175,806 o)

(24)

107,310 @5

(26)

1,288,720 eq)]
23,594

75,246



SCHEDULE A-{
FISCAL YEAR 1999

REVENUE NOT MEETING CRITERIA FOR INCLUSION AS NFFS

Unless revenue meets the specific criteria defined in the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, it must be excluded from NFFS. This
Schedule (A-1)} is used to report revenue that must be excluded from the total reported on Schedule A. The criteria are defined as follows:

Source: A commercial (profit-making) business enterprise, including a for-profit subsidiary or any individual.

Form: Payment in exchange for any service or material,

Purpose: Service or material for any refated activity of the public broadcasting entity.

Recipient: A public broadcasting entity.
List revenue from for-profit corporations or individuals reported on Schedule A that is for the sale of goods and services:

Enter Line No.
From Sched. A Amount

1. Production, taping, or other broadcast related activities (la) )
2. Telecasting production / teleconferencing (22) @)
3. Foreignrights (32) 3}
4.  Rentals of membership lists (42) 4
5. Rentals of studio space, equipment, tower, parking space (5a) (&)
6. Leasing of SCA, VBI, ITFS channels (6a) ©®
7. Sale of progams or progam rights for public performance (7a) N
8.  Sale or rental of program transcripts or recording for other than ,

public performance including private use (Ba} (8)
9. Gains or losses on sale of assets and securities transactions 16c {9a) 103,039 ©)
10. Sale of premiums (10a) (10)
11. Royalty income from licensing fees and Store of Knowledge agrmts. (11a} _ an
12, Other rev. not listed above and not includable by definition (att, fist) 20 (12a) 4,271 (12)
List below any revenue claimed on Schedule A regardless of sourge:
13. A wholly owned or partially owned for-profit subsidiary regardless

of the nature of the business (13a) (13}
t4. A wholly owned or partially owned nonprofi subsidiary (14=) (14) -
15. Sale of program guides (152) (15
16. Program guide advertising attributable to that percent of total copies

distributed that have been sold through normal retail outlets and/or

by magazine subscription (16a) (16}
17. Refunds, rebates, reimbursements, and insurance proceeds » (17a) (in
18. Other (attach list) _ (18a)
19. Total revenue not meeting criteria for inclusion as NFFS (sum

of lines I through 18). (Forward 1o Schedule A, line 25) $ 107,310 (19

g

1



SCHEDULE B (For Use By Institutional Licensees Only)
FISCAL YEAR 1999

INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT

If you are using the Other Sponsored Activities indirect cost rate methodology, complete Schedule B -
Worksheet before continuing.

Complete Schedule B-1 in support of the benefiting cost groups included in the amount on line 3.

Institutional Physical Plant
Support Operations

1. Costs per licensee financial statements $ - 8
2. LESS: Costs groups that do not benefit the

operations of the public broadcast station
3. Adjusted balance (line 1 minus line 2)
4. Percentage of allocation

(Basis of allocation must be stated below)
5. Portion of support activity benefiting station

{line 3 times line 4) $ $

Ja S5b

6. Total support activity benefiting station

(sum of lines 5a and 5b) $ 207,022

7. Occupancy value - check one
{ 1 Annual Value - same as FY98
[ 1 NEW Annual Value
Occupancy forms attached

8. LESS: Any fees paid to the licensee for
overhead recovery, assessment, etc.

9. Total Indirect Administrative Support
(sum of lines 6 and 7 minus line 8) $ 207,022

(Forward to line 2 of the Schedule of NFFS}

Basis of allocation used for line 4 above : ) DONOR CODES - SELECT ONE:
Institutional support (explain) 1 SU (State university)
1 SG (State government)
1 PU (Private university)
]
]
1

LG (Local government)
OU (Other university)
VOT_(Othcrs)

[
[
[
Physical plant operations (explain) {
[
[




SCHEDULE B - WORKSHEET (For Use By Institutional Licensees Only)
FISCAL YEAR 1999

INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT (Using the Other Sponsored Activities Indirect Cost Rate)

Eack line of this worksheet must be completed. Enter zero or n/a as applicable.

1. Determine station net direct expenses

Total station operating expenses and capital outlays (from line 10 of Schedule E) $ 1,545,085

Less: Capital Outlays $ 62,645

Depreciation

Amortization

In-kind services 275,311

Donated property

Other

Total ( 337,956

Station Net Direct Expenses $ 1,207,129

2. Modify licensee negotiated cost rate
If the station's direct expenses are not included in the cost base, do not continue with this worksheet.

1999 Licensee negotiated indirect cost rate
Attach rate sheet (see instructions) 17.15 %

Less: Portion of rate that does not benefit station operations:

Departmental administration

Sponsored projects administration

Library support

Other

R ORE &R R R

Modified cost rate 17.15

3. Apply modified rate to station net direct expenses

Station net direct expenses from line 1 § 1,207,129

Modified cost rate from line 2 X 1715

Total Indirect Support ( forward to line 6 of Schedule B ) _ 8 207,022

NOTE: Do not claim a value for occupancy if the cost pool includes a rate for building use.



SCHEDULE B

INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT
(PAGE 1 OF 2)

OTHER SPONSORED ACTIVITIES INDIRECT COST RATE

MODIFICATION OF RATE

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY -
SUMMARY OF OTHER SPONSORED ACTIVITIES INDIRECT COST RATES
INDIRECT COST PROPOSAI:., JUNE 30, 1951

ON- OFF-
INDIRECT MTIDC CRAMPUS ChMPUS

ST POOL COST BASE RATE RATE
Building Use Allowance s 46,331 £12,996,788 0.36%
Improvement Use Allowance 4,687 12,996,788 0.04%
Equipment Use Allowance 126,032 12,996,788 0.97%
Operations & Maintenance 855,431 12,996,788 6.58%
General Administration 483,637 13,282,658 3.64% 3.64%
College Administration 930,362 13,282,658 7.00% 7.00%
Departmental Administration 625,662 13,282,658 4£.71% 4.,71%
Sponscored Projects Administration . 797,292 8,844,646 9.01% 9.01%
Libraries 166,949 . 12,996,788 1.28%
SUBTOTALS $ 4,036,383 33.60% 24.36%
Less Cost Components Not
Benefiting Station:

Departmental Administration 3 (625,662) 13,282,658 (4.70)%

Libraries (166,94%9) 12,856,788 {(1.28} %

Sponsored Projects Administration (7197,.292) 8,844,546 {(9.01)%
RATE F.Y.E. 6~30-91 . $ 2,446,480 18.59%
Factor to Rdjust 6-30-31 Rate - -
Agreement for 6-30-9% {(31./33.56) % 9.923

RATE F.Y.E. &-30-99 E - - . 17,1%%



SCHEDULE B

WOSU-FM
INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT
(PAGE 2 OF 2)

CALCULATION OF INDIRECT AD VE _SUP
STATIONS TOTAL EXPENDITURES ’ $ 1,752,107
LESS:
INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT 207,022
IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS, SERVICES 275,311
CAPITAL OUTLAYS 62,645
STATION'S NET DIRECT EXPENSES 1,207,129

MODIFIED OTHER SPONSORED ACTIVITIES
INDIRECT COST RATE X 17.15%

STATION'S INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT $ 207.022



SCHEDULE B-1
FISCAL YEAR 1999 '
INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT - BENEFITING COST GROUPS

List below the licensee cost groups that benefit the station. These are the cost groups whose value is
represented on Schedule B, line 3. The station must demonstrate (under audit and upon request by CPB)
that these cost groups include services that are an essential part of the station operations; services are
continuous and ongoing in support of the station; and the station uses the services or is required to use the

services provided. The station must maintain adequate documentation to support the value claimed on
Schedule B.

Check all that apply -

Institutional Support: _ , P sical_l’lant Operations
Budget and Analysis , Building Maintenance
Campus Mail Service Custodial Services
Computer Operations Director of Opei'atians
Financial Operations ~Elevator Maintenance
Human Resources Grounds and Landscaping
Insurance ' - Motor Pool N
Internal Audit ~ Refuse Disposal
Legal Roof Mainfehance
Payroll 7 ~ Utilities o
President's Office - ' Security Services *
Purchasing Facilities Pianning *

___ Other (Attach List) _Other (Attach List)

* Caution: Be sure that these amounts have been reclassified from the Instituional Support Cost
Pool before the indirect cost allocation is calculated.

For complete gnidance on completing Schedule B and related information refer to the Financial Reporting

Guidelines - FY 1999 Handbook of Instructions. Also reference the "CPB Indirect Administrative Support”
guide. (Call CPB's Office of Grants Administration at 1-800-527-2272 for resource material availability.)

11



SCHEDULE C
FISCAL YEAR 1999

IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS - SERVICES AND OTHER ASSETS

Supporting documentation for gll claims must be maintained at the station and may be requested
by CPB. This support must be recognized in the station’s audited financial statements.

1.

Professional Services
(a) Legal
(b) Accounting and/or auditing
(c) Engineering

(d) Other professionals (specify exact type)

Donor Type
(See below)

Total Professional Services

General Operational Services

(a) Annual rental vaiue of space
(studios, offices or tower facilities)

(b} Annual value of land used for locating
a station-owned transmission tower

(c) Station operating expenses

(d) Other (specify exact type)

Total General Qperational Services

(a)

(b)

©

(d

(@

(b
(c}

@

DONOR CODES
BS - Business
FD - Foundation
FG - Federal Government
LG - Local Government
PB - Public Broadcsting Entity

PU - Private Univ
SG - State Govt.
SU - State Univ.

OT - Other

12

¢y

@)



SCHEDULE C
FISCAL YEAR 1959

IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS - SERVICES AND OTHER ASSETS - continued

3. Other Services
{a) ITV or educational radio
(b) State Public Broadcasting Agencies:
{APBC, FL DOE, NYN, OET, PPTN
and NY Network only)

(c) Local advertising

(d) National advertising

Donor Type
(See below)

5G

B3

Total Other Services
4. Total in-kind contributions - services and
other assets (sum of lines 1 through 3)
5.  LESS: in-kind contributions from federal and public
broadcasting entities included in line 4
6. Total nonfederal in-kind contributions - services and

other assets (line 4 less line 5). (Forward to line
3a of the Schedule of Nonfederal Financial Support)

Caution : Refer to the Guidelines and Supplemental Guide to determine if in-kind contributions
meet the criteria for inclusion as NFFS. De not include contributions related to fund raising

activities (including membership drives).

274,064

1,247

(a)

&)
©
@

275,311

275,311

275,311

DONOR CODES
BS - Business
FD - Foundation
FG - Federal Government
LG - Local Government
PB - Public Broadcsting Entity

PU - Private Univ
SG - State Govt.
SU - State Univ.

QT - Other

@

(4)

)

6



SCHEDULE D
FISCAL YEAR 1999

IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Supporting documentation for gll claims must be maintained at the station and may be requested
by CPB. This support niust be recognized in the station's audited financial staterments.

Donor Type
(See helow)
1. Land 3 _ (1)
2. Building 7 @)
3. Equipment 3)
4. Vehicle(s) @)
5. Other (specify)
&)

6. Total in-kind contributions - property and

equipment (sum of lines I through 5) $ (6)
7. LESS: in-kind contributions from federal and public

broadcasting entities included in line 6 (7
8. Total nonfederal in-kind contributions - property and

equipment (line 6 less line 7). (Forward to line 3b of

the Schedule of Nonfederal Financial Support) $ &)

DONOR CODES

BS - Business - PU - Private Univ.

FD - Foundation SG - State Gowvt.

FG - Federal Government SU - State Univ.

LG - Local Government

PB - Public Broadcsting Entity OT - Other

14



SCHEDULE E
FISCAL YEAR 1999

EXPENSES AND CAPITAL OUTLAYS

Inclade both cash and noncash expenses

Program Services .

Round all figures
to nearest dollar

1. Programming and Production $ 448,111 (D
2. Broadcasting 541,951 2)
3. Program Information and Promotion 120,199 3
Support Services
4.  Management and General 390,549 @
5. Fund Raising and Membership Development 148,789 )
6. Underwriting and Grant Solicitation 39,863 ®)
7. Depreciation and Amortization * €]
8. Total operating expenses (lines 1 to 7) $ 1.689 462 (8)
(line 8 must agree with audited financial statements)

Additional Information
9. Cost of Capital Assets Purchased or Donated

Land and Buildings 3 (9a)

Equipment 62,645 (9b)

All Other (%¢) 62,645 ®
10. TOTAL (sum of lines 8 and 9) $ 1/752.107 (10)

NOTE:

* If depreciation and amortization are nort allocated to the various functional categories, report the full

amount on this line.

15



SCHEDULE A
FISCAL YEAR 1999 - continued

13.  Net auction revenue
(inclusive of direct expenses of $ ). _ 274,667

14.  Net revenue from special fund raising activities

3

(inclusive of direct expenses of $ ) 19,436 ()

15.  Passive income

152, Interests and dividends 307,273 (15a3)

15b. Royalties 12,826 ik

15c. Copyright Tribunal Distributions (15¢) 320,099 as
16 Gains (losses) on sale of assets and securities transactions

162. Property and equipment 7 (16a)

16b. Marketable securities {realized) (16b) ' - ’ -

16c. Marketable securities {unrcalized) 309,115 {16¢c) 309,119 i6)
17. - Endowment revenue {contsibutions plus interest and dividends) 107.607 an
18.  Capital fund contributions

18a.  Facilities and equipment (18a)

18b. - Other (18b} (18}
19.  Gifts and bequests from major individual donors {19)
20.  Other (attach schedule)

Description Amount
Merchandise Sales 1,332 , o
Miscellaneous 88,458 89,730 (20)

21, Tortal Revenue (Sum of lines 1 through 20) 3 5,762,524 @n
Adjustments to Revenue:
22.  Federal revenue from line 1 85,321 22)
23.  Public broadcsting revenue from line 2 709,788 23)
24.  Capital funds exclusion - TY oply (from fine 18a) 24y
25.  Other revenue on line 21 not mesting the source, form, :

purpose or recipient criteria (Schedule A-1, line 19) 410,403 25)
26.  Revenue on line 21 that has been previously claimed as NFES 26
27.  Total Direct Nonfederal Financial Support (Line 21 less Lines 22

through 26). (Forward to line 1 of the Schedule of Nonfederal

Financial Support) $ 4,557,012 @n

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED

1 Revenue received as underwriting from foundations and nonprofits (line 83 $ 151, 945

2. Revenue received as underwriting from busincess and industry (tine 9) s 187,275
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REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF TIME TO FILE
FY 1993 CPB ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT AND
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Station Call Letters: o Station Code:
Licensee Name:
Fiscal Year End Date: . Report Due Date *:

Name of Station Mgr. or Chief Exec.:

(Please print name legibly)

Signature and Date:

( * Due dates are five months following the end of a station's fiscal year. Extensions will not be
granted beyond May 31. Refer to the Financial Reporling Guidelines, Appendix, page 47 for further
information.}

Instructions

Please check the appropriate line and mail or fax (202-783-1019) this extension request, before the
due date, to the attention of: Manager, Office of Granis Admin. [f fline 2 is checked, you must
altach a detailed explanation noting the reasons for this request. This form will be returned to you
noting the appropriate action. / H

1. An automatic 30 day extension of time is requested to file the station's CPB
Annual Financial Report and Audited Financial Statements for the fiscal year shown
above. The station’s extended due date will be (insert date), Additional
extensions must be separately applied for.

2. An additional 30 day extension of time is requested to file the station’s CPB
Annual Financial Report and Audited Financial Statements for the fiscal year shown
above. The station’s final extended due date will be (insert date).

CPB Use Only (Office of Grants Administration)

CPB Approval: Approved as requested or until

or

Request denied for the following reason:

Mgr., Ofc. of Grants Admin. . Date

Date entered in database: ~ By:




SCHEDULE OF NONFEDERAL FINANCIAL SUPPORT
ONLY ORIGINALS OF THIS PAGE SHOULD BE FILED WITH CPB

SUMMARY OF NONFEDERAL FINANCIAL SUPPORT FISCAL YEAR 1999
1. Direct Revenue (Schedule A) $ 4,557,012
2. Indirect Administrative Support (Schedule B) 773,949

3. In-Kind Contributions
a. Services and Other Assets (Schedule C) 2,154,600

b, Property and Equipment {Schedule D}

4. Total Nonfederal Financial Support {sum of lires I, 2, 3a. and 3b.) ) 7,485,561

CERTIFICATION BY LICENSEE

I certify that the above Schedule of Nonfederal Financial Support for the fiscal year ending __06/30/99 conforms with the
definition of nonfederal financial support set forth in the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, and adheres to the appropriate
source, form, purpose, and recipient criteria as described in the Cerporation for Public Broadcasting's Fiscal Year 1999 Annuval
Financial Report Handbook of Instructions.

M (O/r2 /99 ) WOSU-TV The Chio State University

Signature of Smtf(;; Manager o! Chief Executive/Date Call Letters and Licensee Name .
2400 Olentangy River Road
Dale K. Ouzts (614) 292-9678 _ 7 Columbus, OH 43210 )
Name, phone number, e-mail address of contact person Address of Station ’

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

We have audited, in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, the financial statements of WOSU-TV for the
year ended _06/30/99 _ and have issued our report thereon dated _ 99/07/99  We have also audited the above Schedule of
Nonfederal Financial Support (Schedule) for the year ended _06/30/9% gursuam to the Public Telecommunications Financing
Act of 1978. This Schedule is the responsibility of the management of U . Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on this Schedule based on our audit, i

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain assurance about whether the above Schedule is free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disciosures in the Schedule. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall Schedule presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The above Schedule was prepared for the purpose of complying with the criteria for revenue established in the Corporation for Public
Broadcasting’s Fiscal Year 1999 Annual Financial Report Handbook of Instructions, and is not intended to be a complete
presentation of ___WOSU's revenue.

In our opinion, the above Schedule presents fairly, in all material respects, the nonfederal financial support 6f _WO_§_U:TV,____, fEx%
the year ended 06/30/99 _ as defined by the Communications Act of 1934, as amended; and adheres fo the appropriate source,
form, purpose, and recipient criteria as described in the Corporation for Public Broadcasting’s Fiscal Year 1999 Annual Financial

Report Handbook of Instructions; and includes only amounts that are also included in _WOSU'g financial statements for the
year ended 06/30/99 | )
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and management of WOSuU and the

Corporation for Public Broadcasting and should not be used for any other purpose.
400 East Town Street, Suite 200

Parga’g Company, Inc. Calumbhus, OH 43218 )
Name pindeptndent Auditpr - T T Address ’ - I
o T rofufrs  __(614) 22a-3078
~ " Tpate Telephone Number '

/lmorezed Signature



CERTIFIER’S QUALIFICATION STATEMENT
1999

CERTIFICATION QF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
WHO IS NOT A REPRESENTATIVE OF AN INDEPENDENT CPA FIRM

ONLY ORIGINALS OF THIS PAGE SHOULD BE FILED WITH CPR

Licensee/Station{s}

I certify that:

1. I qualify to certify this {inancial repost based on the following explanation of my independence from the { ) licensee andfor { )
station:

I am not in any way responsible for the accounting operations of the station in cither a working or supervisory capacity.

I am not in any way responsible for, or connected with, establishment of the overhead rates or other factors that govern the amounts
of indirect or other in-kind contributions included in the station’s Schedule of Nonfederal Financial Support.

I was not involved with the operations of the station during the period covered by this report.

2. I qualify to certify this financial report based on the following explanation of my technical training and experience. (See
Certification Requirements, Acceptable Auditors section, CPB Handbook of Instructions.)

CHECK ONE:

[ am employed by a state audit agency which qualifies as an acceptabie independent audit agency. (See pages 16 and [7 of the
Handbook of Instructions.}

OR

I am an internal auditor who is also a: - = -

Certified Public Accountant ___, licensed to practice in (state)

Licensed Public Accountant ___, licensed to practice in (state) B
Name of Independent Auditor Title

Authorized Signature 7" Address

Telephone Number Date



FORM FOR NOT FILING AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR 1999 o

Stations have an option of filing audited financial statements on a biennial basis. Stations choosing
this option must file statements in every even-numbered fiscal year (i.e. 2000, 2002, 2004, etc.).

In odd-numbered years, such as fiscal year 1999, stations may elect not to file audited financial
statements. However, in the next year, the biennial statements must cover the twenty-four month
periad since the previous audited financial statements were filed, and consist of two 12-month
audited statements.

Keep in mind that an audited CPB Annual Financial Report must be filed each and every year.
If it is subsequently found that CPRB calculated the station's grants on an overstated 1999 NEFS,
grants will be adjusted by the proper amounts. '

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE GENERAL MANAGER
We will not file audited financial statements for fiscal year 1999. We understand that
this will oblige us to file two 12-month audited financial statements in fiscal year 2000.

We further understand that the CPB Annual Financial Reports for both 1999 and 2000
must be audited by an independent auditor.

Station

Call Letters/Network Designation B Station CPB Code

Location

City / State

Signature of General Manager

Printed name of General Manager

Telephone Number and E-mail Address

THIS FORM MUST ACCOMPANY THE AUDITED CPB AFR



SCHEDULE A
FISCAL YEAR 1999

DIRECT REVENUE

12.

Amounts provided directly by federal government agencies:

PTEFP (NTIA) Facilities Grants

Department of Education

Department of Health and Human Services
National Endowment for the Aris and Humanities
National Science Foundation

Other Federal Funds (specify)

TmOOw»

Total federal government {forward to line 22)

Amounts provided by public broadcasting eatities such as CFB,
PBS, NPR, AIT, CTW, FCI, other stations and regional networks:

CPB - Community Service Grants
Annenberg/CPB Project Grants

CPB - NPPAG

CPB - Interconnection grants

CPB - ali other funds

PBS - ali payments

NPR - all payments

Public broadcasting stations - all payments
Other PBE funds (specify)

FEOTIDmODN® >

Total public broadcasting entities (forward to line 23)

Local boards and departments of education or
other local government or agency sources

State boards and departments of education or
other state government or agency sources

State colleges and universities

Other state-supported colleges and universities

Private colleges and universities

Foundations and nonprofit ass;)ciations (include underwriting)
Business and Industry (include underwriting)

Memberships and subscriptions (net of write-offs)

10a. Total number of contributors 15,788

Revenue from friends groups less any revenue included on line 10

11a. Total number of friends contributors

(102)

(ita)

Revenue from subsidiary enterprises and related organizations (see instructions)

Round all figures 1o nearest dollar

$ 85,321 (1A)
(1B)
(10
D)
(1B)
, ‘ (1B
3 85,321 H

$ 686,319 @A)
(2B)
20)
23,469 @D
(2E)
(2F)
(2G)
(2H)
20

$ 709,788 @

G}

1,105,880 (4)

673,322 &)

(6}

™
163,165 ®

539,551 ®

1,364,779 (10

(11

(12)




SCHEDULE A
FISCAL YEAR 1999 - continued

13.  Net auction revenue
(inclusive of direct expenses of $ ). _ 274,667

14.  Net revenue from special fund raising activities

3

(inclusive of direct expenses of $ ) 19,436 ()

15.  Passive income

152, Interests and dividends 307,273 (15a3)

15b. Royalties 12,826 ik

15c. Copyright Tribunal Distributions (15¢) 320,099 as
16 Gains (losses) on sale of assets and securities transactions

162. Property and equipment 7 (16a)

16b. Marketable securities {realized) (16b) ' - ’ -

16c. Marketable securities {unrcalized) 309,115 {16¢c) 309,119 i6)
17. - Endowment revenue {contsibutions plus interest and dividends) 107.607 an
18.  Capital fund contributions

18a.  Facilities and equipment (18a)

18b. - Other (18b} (18}
19.  Gifts and bequests from major individual donors {19)
20.  Other (attach schedule)

Description Amount
Merchandise Sales 1,332 , o
Miscellaneous 88,458 89,730 (20)

21, Tortal Revenue (Sum of lines 1 through 20) 3 5,762,524 @n
Adjustments to Revenue:
22.  Federal revenue from line 1 85,321 22)
23.  Public broadcsting revenue from line 2 709,788 23)
24.  Capital funds exclusion - TY oply (from fine 18a) 24y
25.  Other revenue on line 21 not mesting the source, form, :

purpose or recipient criteria (Schedule A-1, line 19) 410,403 25)
26.  Revenue on line 21 that has been previously claimed as NFES 26
27.  Total Direct Nonfederal Financial Support (Line 21 less Lines 22

through 26). (Forward to line 1 of the Schedule of Nonfederal

Financial Support) $ 4,557,012 @n

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED

1 Revenue received as underwriting from foundations and nonprofits (line 83 $ 151, 945

2. Revenue received as underwriting from busincess and industry (tine 9) s 187,275




SCHEDULE A-1

FISCAL YEAR 1999
REVENUE NOT MEETING CRITERIA FOR INCLUSION AS NFFS

Unless revenue mects the specific criteria defined in the Communications Act of 1924, as amended, it must be excluded from NFFS. This
Schedule (A-1) is used to report revenue that must be excluded from the total reported on Schedule A, The criteria are defined as follows:

Source: A commercial {profit-making) business enterprise, including a for-profit subsidiary or any individual.

Form: Payment in exchange for any service or material,

Purpose: Service or material for any related activity of the public broadcasting entity.

Recipient: A public broadcasting entity.
List revenue from for-profit corporations or individuals reported on Schedule A that is for the sale of goods and services:

Eater Line No.
From Sched. A Amount

1. Preduction, taping, or other broadcast related activities 20 (ia) 73,948 )
2. Telecasting production / teleconferencing (2a) 2
3. Foreignrights Ga) 3)
4. Rentals of membership lists (42) “@
5. Rentals of studio space, equipment, tower, parking space {52) {5)
6. Leasing of SCA, VBI, ITFS channels (6a) ©
7. Sale of progams or progam rights for public performance (7a) 0]
8. Sale or rental of program transcripts or recording for other than

public performance inciuding private use (3a) (&)
9. Gains or losses on sale of assets and securities transactions 16C 9a) 309,119 ®
10. Sale of premiums (10a3 (10)
11. Royalty income from licensing fees and Store of Knowledge agrmts, 15b (11a) 12,826 an
12, Other rev. not listed above and not includable by definition (att. list) 20 (12a) 14,51¢ (a2
List below any revenue claimed on Schedule A regardless of source:
13. A wholly owned or partiatly owned for-profit subsidiary regardless

of the nature of the business (13a) {13
14. A wholly owned or partially owned nonprofit subsidiary (14a) (14
15. Sale of program guides (152) (i5)
16. Program guide advertising attributable to that percent of total copies

distributed that have been sold through normal retail outlets andfor

by magazine subscription (16a) _ (16)
17. Refunds, rebates, reimbursements, and insurance proceeds _(7a) an
18. QOther (attach list) ;ng) (18)
19. Total revenue not meeting criteria for inclusion as NFFS (sum

of lines | through 18). (Forward to Schedule A, line 25) s 410,403 a9




SCHEDULE B (For Use By Institutional Licensees Only)
FISCAL YEAR 1999

INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT

If you are using the Other Sponsored Activities indirect cost rate methodology, complete Schedule B -
Worksheet before continuing.

Complete Schedule B-1 in support of the benefiting cost groups included in the amount on line 3.

Institutional Physical Plant
Support Operations

1. Costs per licensee financial statements 5 3
2. LESS: Costs groups that do not benefit the

operations of the public broadcast station
3. Adjusted balance (line 1 minus line 2)
4. Percentage of allocation

{Basis of allocation must be stated below)
5. Portion of support activity benefiting station

(line 3 times line 4) $ $

d>a 2b

6. Total support activity benefiting station

(sum of lines 5a and 5b) $ 773,949

7. Occupancy value - check one
[ 1 Annual Value - same as FY9§
[ 1 NEW Annual Value
Occupancy forms attached

8. LESS: Any fees paid to the licensee for
overhead recovery, assessment, etc.

9. Total Indirect Administrative Support
(sum of lines 6 and 7 minus line 8) $ 773,949

{Forward to line 2 of the Schedule of NFFS)

1 i in DONOR CODES - SELECT ONE:
Institutional support (explain) 1 SU (State university)
1 SG (State government)

1 PU (Private university)

1 LG (Local government)
]
]

Physical plant operations (explain) )
OU (Other university)
OT (Others)

L
[
=
[
L
[

VO



SCHEDULE B - WORKSHEET (For Use By Institutional Licensees Only)
FISCAL YEAR 999

INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT (Using the Other Sponsored Activities Indirect Cost Rate)

Each line of this worksheet must be completed. Enter zero or n/a as applicable.

1. Determine station net direct expenses

Total station operating expenses and capital outlays (from line 10 of Schedule E) $ 7,073,822

Less: Capital Outlays $ 406,400

Depreciation

Amortization

In-kind services 2,154,600

Donated property

Other

Total ( 2,561,000

Station Net Direct Expenses $ 4,512,822

2. Modify licensee negotiated cost rate
If the station's direct expenses are not included in the cost base, do not continue with this worksheet.

1999 Licensee negotiated indirect cost rate
Attach rate sheet (see instructions) 17.15 %

Less: Portion of rate that does not benefit station operations:

Departmental administration

Sponsored projects administration

Library support
Other

* ® ® B R

Modified cost rate - 172,15

3. Apply modified rate to station net direct expenses

Station net direct expenses from line 1 $ 4,512,822

Modified cost rate from line 2 X «1715

Total Indirect Support ( forward to line 6 of Schedule B ) $ 773,949

NOTE: Do not claim a value for eccupancy if the cost peol includes a rate for building use.




SCHEDULE B

INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT
(PAGE 1 OF 2)

OTHER SPONSORED ACTIVITIES INDIRECT COST RATE

MODYFICATION OF RATE

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

SUMMARY OF OTHER SPONSORED ACTIVITIES INDIRECT COST RATES

INDIRECT COST PROPOSAL, JUNE 30, 198%1

COST POOL

Building Use Allowance
Improvement Use Allowance
Equipment Use Allowance
Operations & Maintenance

General Adminiatration

College Adminigtration
Departmental Administration
Sponsored Projects Administration

Libraries

SUBTOTALS

Less Cost Components Not
Benefiting Station:

Departmental Administration
Libraries
Spongored Projects Administration

RATE F.Y.E. 6-30-351

Factor to Adjust 6-30-§1 Rate
Agreement for 6-30-99 {31/33.6)

RATE F.Y.E. 6€-30-99

§

INDIRECT
cosT

46,331

4,687
126,032
855,431
483,637
930,362
625,662
797,292

166,949

$ 4,036,383

(625,662)
{166,949)

(787.292)

$§ 2,446,480

MTDC
BASE

$12,996,788
12,996,788
12,996,788
12,936,788
13,282,658
13,282,658
13,282,658
8,844,646
12,996,788

13,282,658
12,996,788
8,844,646

ON-
CAMPUS
_RATE

0.36%
0.04%
0.97%
6.58%
3.64%
7.00%
4.71i%
9.01%
1.28%

33.60%

{4.71)%
(1.28}%
(5.01)%

18.59%

x 0.923

17.13%

OFF-
CAMDUS
RATE

3.64%
7.00%
4.71%
9.01%

24.36%



SCHEDULE B

WOSU-TV
INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT
(PAGE 2 OF 2)

CALCULATION OF TNDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT

STATIONS TOTAL EXPENDITURES S
LESS:

INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT

IN-XKIND CONTRIBUTIONS, SERVICES

CAPITAL OUTLAYS
STATION'S NET DIRECT EXPENSES

MODIFIED OTHER SPONSORED ACTIVITIES
INDIRECT COST RATE

STATION'S INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT $

7,847,771

773,949
2,154,600
406,400

4,512,822

x 17,15%

773,949

e i



SCHEDULE B-1
FISCAL YEAR 1999 '
INDIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT - BENEFITING COST GROUPS

List below the licensee cost groups thar benefit the station. These are the cost groups whose value is
represented on Schedule B, line 3. The station must demonstrate (under audit and upon request by CPB}
that these cost groups include services that are an essential part of the station operations; services are
continuous and ongoing in support of the station; and the station uses the services or is required to use the

services provided. The station must mainitain adequate documentation to supporf the value claimed orn
Schedule B.

Check all that apply -

Institutional Support: o ~ Physical Plant OQperations
Budget and Analysis , Building Maintenance
Campus Mail Service Custodial Services
Computer Operations Director of Operations
Financial Operations Elevator Maintenance
Human Resources Grounds and Landscaping
Insurance N Motor Pool '
Internal Audit Refuse Disposal
Legal Roof Maintenance
Payroll B Utilities
President's Office Security Services *
Purchasing i Facilities Planning *

____ Other (Attach List) o

Other (Attach List)
* Caution: Be sure that these amounts have been reclassified from the Instituional Support Cost
Pool before the indirect cost allocation is calculated.
For complete guidance on completing Schedule B and related information refer to the Financial Reporting

Guidelines - FY 1999 Handbook of Instructions. Also reference the "CPB Indirect Administrative Support”
guide. (Call CPB's Office of Grants Administration at 1-800-527-2272 for resource material availability.)

11



SCHEDBULE C
FISCAL YEAR 1999

IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS - SERVICES AND OTHER ASSETS

Supporting documentation for all claims must be maintained at the station and may be reguested

by CPB. This support must be recognized in the station's audited financial statements.

1.  Professional Services
{a) Legal
(by Accounting and/or auditing
{c) Engineering
(d) Other professionals (specify exact type)

Music Comp./Arranging

Donor Type
{See below)

Total Professional Services

2. General Operational Services

(a) Annual renta! value of space
(studios, offices or tower facilities)

(b} Annual value of land used for locating
a station-owned transmission tower

(c) Station operating expenses

{d) Other {specify exact type)

Total General Operational Services

(@)

®

10,000

(¢

@

@

)
()

(d)

DONOR CODES
BS - Business
FD - Foundation
FG - Federal Government
LG - Local Government
PB - Public Broadcsting Entity

PU - Private Univ
SG - State Govt.
SU - State Univ.

OT - Other

12

1)

)



SCHEDULE C

FISCAL YEAR 1999 T e e - —

IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS - SERVICES AND OTHER ASSETS - confinued

Donor Type

(See below)
3. Other Services

(a) ITV or educational radio _56 s 915,509 ()

(b) State Public Broadcasting Agencies:
(APBC, FL DOE, NYN, OET, PPTN
and NY Network only) s  10220,250

(¢) Local advertising BS , 8.84L (g

(d) National advertising o , (@

Total Other Services 2,144,600

4, Total in-kind contributions - services and
other assets (sum of lines I through 3) $ 2,154,600

5.  LESS: in-kind contributions from federal and public
broadcasting entities included in line 4

6. Total nonfederal in-kind contributions - services and
other assets (line 4 less line 5). (Forward to line o
3a of the Schedule of Nonfederal Financial Support) $ 2,154,600

Caution : Refer to the Guidelines and Supplemental Guide to determine if in-kind contributions
meef the criteria for inclusion as NFFS. Dg pot inciude contributions reiated to fund raising
activities (including membership drives).

3

)

&)

(6)

DONOR CODES
BS - Business PU - Private Univ
FD - Foundation SG - State Govt.
FG - Federal Government SU - State Univ.
LG - Local Government
PB - Public Broadesting Entity ’ OT - Other

13



SCHEDULE D
FISCAL YEAR 1999

IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Supporting documentation for gll claims must be maintained at the station and may be requested
by CPB. This support must be recognized in the station's audited financial statements.

Daoanor Type
{See below)
1. Land $ (1)
2. Building )
3. Equipment 3)
4, Vehicle(s) (4
5. Other (specify)
&)

6. Total in-kind contributions - property and

equipment (sum of lines 1 through 5) 3 (6)
7. LESS: in-kind contributions from federal and public

broadcasting entities included in line 6 M
8. Total nonfederal in-kind contributions - property and

equipment (line 6 less line 7). (Forward to line 3b of

the Schedule of Nonfederal Financial Support) $ Y

DONOR CODES

BS - Business PU - Private Univ.

FD - Foundation SG - State Govt.

FG - Federal Government SU - State Univ,

LG - Local Government

PB - Public Broadcsting Entity OT - Other

14



SCHEDULE E -
FISCAL YEAR 1999

EXPENSES AND CAPITAL OUTLAYS

Include both cash and noncash expenses

Program Services |
1. Programming and Production
2. Broadcasting

3. Program Information and Promotion

Support Services
4. Management and General

S. Fund Raising and Membership Development

6. Underwriting and Grant Solicitation
7. Depreciation and Amortization *
8. Total operating expenses (lines 1 to 7)

(line 8 must agree with audited financial statements)

Additional Information

9. Cost of Capital Assets Purchased or Donated

Land and Buildings $

Equipment - 406,400

All Other

Round all figures
ta nearest dollar

$ 2,697,309

2,415,650

423,191

1,180,243

594,782

(1)
@)
3)

@
G

130,196

6)

0

$ 7,441,371

@

(9a)
(ob)
9c) 406,400

®

10. TOTAL (sum of lines 8 and 9}

$ 9,847,771

(10)

NOTE:

* [f depreciation and amortization are not allocated io the various functional categories, report the full

amount on this line.

15



SCHEDULEF
FISCAL YEAR 1999

RECONCILIATION FORM

As stated in the FY 1999 Annual Financial Report Handbook of Instructions, a station's AFR must be reconciled with iis audited
financial statements. This form must be used in reconciling the two reports. Remember that all NFFS reported for any given
year by a station must be recognized as support and revenue in the station's audited financial statements for that year.

CPB Annual Financial Report

List revenue reported on the following lines:

Schedule A, line 21 3 5,762,524
Schedule B, line ¢ 773,949
Schedule C, line 4 2,154,600
Schedule D, line 6

Total CPB Annual Financial Report $ 8,691,073

Audited Financial Statements

List total support and revenue as recognized in the statement of activities:

Total support and revenue - unrestricted $ 8,691,073

Total support and revenue - temporarily restricted

Total support and revenue - permanently restricted

Total Support and Revenue $ 8,691,073
Capital grants

Total Audited Financial Statements $ 8,691,073

Difference - Total CPB Annual Financial Report less Total

Audited Financial Statements (Explain in the space provided below) $
Description of Reconciling Items Reconciling Amount

1 $
2
3
4
5
6

Total {(must agree with difference shown above) $

16



Seamr corvab (2318

Deloitte &
Touche

I\ ' ' Deloitte & Touche LLP  Tolephone: (614) 221-1000
- 165 East Broad Street Facsimile: (614} 229-4647
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3611

September 24, 1999

To: Jeff Walters, Executive Director and
the Board of Directors of The Ohio State University
Managed Health Care Systems, Inc.:

YEAR 2000 ISSUES

The approach of the year 2000 presents significant issues for many financial, information, and operational
systems. Many systems in use today may not be able to appropriately interpret dates after December 31,
1999, because such systems allow only two digits to indicate the year in a date. As a result, such systems
are unable to distinguish January 1, 2000, from January 1, 1900, which could have adverse consequences

on the operations of the entity and the integrity of information processing, causing safety, operational, and
financial issues.

Our audit of The Ohio State University Managed Health Care Systems, Inc.’s (the Company) financial
statements for the year ending June 30, 1999, did not provide any assurances, nor did we express any
opinion, that the Company’s systems, or any other systems, such as those of the Company’s vendors,
service providers, customers, or other third parties, are year 2000 compliant. In addition, we were not
engaged to perform, nor did we perform as part of our audit engagement, any procedures to test whether
the Company’s systems or any other systems are year 2000 compliant or whether the plans and activities
of the Company or any third parties are sufficient to address and correct system or any other problems

that might arise because of the year 2000, nor did we express any opinion or provide any other assurances
with respect to these matters.

However, during the week ended September 25, 1999, we made limited inquiries about the Company’s
activities to address the year 2000 issue. We have not performed any procedures to test the accuracy or
completeness of the responses to our inquiries. Because year 2000 activities are currently in process, we
may have had additional observations had we made inquiries after the date of this letter. The Company’s
general ledger is driven off the University’s PeopleSoft system, as the University processes most of the
Company’s transactions. Management has informed us that the PeopleSoft system is year 2000
compliant. Also, we understand the Company’s personal computers and software, used for internal
reporting functions, are year 2000 compliant as well as significant vendor systems.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of
The Ohio State University Managed Health Care Systems, Inc.

Yours truly,
‘ Bmfﬁl . T@«weﬂ-z. P
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Dr. William E. Kirwan
President

The Ohio State University
Columbus, Ohio

At your request, we have applied certain agreed-upon procedures, enumerated below, which were agreed
to by David Williams II, Vice President for Student and Urban/Community Affairs, with respect to the
accounting rzcords of The Ohio State University (the University) and the related booster organizations,
referred to below, in connection with activities of the Department of Athletics of the University. This
engagement to apply agreed-upon procedures was performed in accordance with standards established by
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of the procedures is solely the
responsibility of the specified users of the report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding
the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been
requested or for any other purpose. The procedures that we performed and our findings are as follows:

a.

We obtained a list of booster organizations and a schedule of receipts/revenues and
disbursements/expenses for the year ended June 30, 1999 from the Director of Athletics. This
schedule is included as the Exhibit to this report.

We confirmed total revenues and expenditures or total cash receipts and cash disbursements of all
booster organizations for the year ended June 30, 1999 listed on the schedule with amounts
obtained from the official responsible for each respective booster organization.

We received a representation letter signed by the Director of Athletics and all of the head coaches
that the booster organizations as listed in the Exhibit are the only booster organizations that support
the Department of Athletics as defined in the NCAA Financial Audit Guidelines dated May 1996.

We obtained a summary of contributions to or in behalf of the Department of Athletics from the
booster organizations and reconciled such summary to the revenues recorded in the University’s
accounting records. The in-kind contributions and denated goods or services were not recorded in
the University’s accounting records. These gifts and offsetting expenditures totaled approximately
$65,620 and had no net effect to the excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures recorded by
the University. We also noted that contributions reported by the booster groups were credited to
these groups in The Ohio State University Development Fund’s records.
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Because the above procedures do not constitute an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, we do not express an opinion on any of the accounts of the booster organizations or items
referred to above. Had we performed additional procedures or had we performed an audit of the
financial statements of the related outside organizations in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. This report
relates only to the accounts and items specified above and does not extend to any financial statements of
The Ohio State University or related outside organizations, taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the specified parties listed above and is not

intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than management of The Ohio State University or
an authorized representative of the National Collegiate Athletic Association.

Datoms & Tolonp

Columbus, Chio
Qctober 18, 1999



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY Exhibit
DEPARTMENT OF ATHLETICS

OUTSIDE ORGANIZATIONS ACTING IN BEHALF OF THE
DEPARTMENT OF ATHLETICS

RECEIPTS/REVENUES AND DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Organizations reporting on a cash receipts and disbursements basis for the year ended June 30, 1999 are as
follows:

Cash Disbursements

Contributions
Beginning Toorln Ending
Cash Cash Behalf of Cash

Organization Balance Receipts Program Other Balance
Varsity “O” Women Alumni

Association $27,220 $15,738 $ 1,000 $ 4,278 $37,680
The Buckeye Fastbreakers

Club, Inc. 4,259 14,900 18,361 798
The Buckeye Diamond Club 74,000 98,793 60,640 26,888 85,265
Women’s Volleyball Attack

Booster Club 24,366 15,654 15,000 11,303 13,717
The Buckeye Sideliners 3,079 23,145 10,000 12,754 3,470
The Rebounders Club ' 8,961 14,199 3,000 12,919 7,241
The Ohio State Swimming and

Diving Booster Club 5,570 13,847 11,276 8,141

Organizations reporting revenues and expenditures for the year ended June 30, 1999 are as follows:

Expenditures
Contributions
Toorin
Behalf of Net
QOrganization Revenues Program Cther Income
Buckeye Boosters, Inc. $194,074 $55,620 $76,488 $61,966
The Varsity “O” Alumni 79,784 850 16,311 62,623
The Ohio State University Ice
Hockey Alumni Association 35,565 5,000 30,807 (242
OSU Varsity Rifle Team -
Booster Club 380 214 166
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Dr. William E. Kirwan
President

The Ohio State University
Columbus, Ohio

We have audited the financial statements of The Ohio State University (the “University™) as of and for
the year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our unqualified report thereon dated October 4, 1999, At
your request, we have also performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by David
Williams, 1, Vice President for Student and Urban/Community Affairs, with respect to the University’s
accounting records and system of internal accounting control as they relate to the University’s
Department of Athletics for the year ended June 30, 1999, solely to assist the University in complying
with NCAA Bylaw 6.2.3.1. This engagement to apply agreed-upon procedures was performed in
accordance with standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
sufficiency of the procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of the report.
Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below
either for the purpose for which the report has been requested or for any other purpose. The procedures
that we performed and our findings are as follows:

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Agsreed-Upon Substantive Procedures

a. We obtained the Department of Athletic’s Statement of Revenues and Expenditures (the
“Statement”) for the year ended June 30, 1999, as prepared by management and shown in the Exhibit
to this report. We proved the arithmetic accuracy of the amounts in the Statement, and compared the
amounts in the Statement to management’s worksheets and agreed management’s worksheets to
accounts in the University’s general ledger. We noted no differences between the amounts in the
University’s general ledger and the amounts in the worksheets.

b. We discussed with the University’s Director of Internal Audit and obtained an understanding of the
transactions” testing of the ticket revenue cycle, which was performed by the University’s Internal
Audit Staff by comparing football and men’s basketball ticket sales as recorded in the Statement to
the Department of Athletics’ “Ticket Order Status Report” for the year ended June 30, 1999. Ticket
sales as recorded in the Siatement were reconciled within $45,327 or 32% of the “Ticket Order
Status Report” for football and $57,849 or 2.21% for basketball.

¢. We compared concession revenues recorded in the Statement to the detailed statements from the
independent concessionaire of concession activity and commissions earned for the year ended
June 30, 1999. Football, men’s basketball and women’s basketball concession revenues agreed to
the detailed statements while all other sports were reconciled to within $152 or .01% of the
concession revenue per the University’s general ledger.

Deloitte Touche
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d. We compared the Department of Athletics’ percentage rate of return on interest-bearing cash and
investments for the year ended June 30, 1999 to that of the University as a whole for the same
period. We noted the University’s rate of return was 5.45%, while the Department of Athletic’s rate
was 5.43%. '

e. We compared gift revenues recorded in the Department of Athletics” accounts for the year ended
June 30, 1999, to the amounts recognized by The Ohio State University Development Fund for the
same period and noted that the amounts differed by $200,012 or 1.65%. The primary reason for this
difference is the University’s policy which requires donated monies to remain in The Ohio State
University Development Fund for 90 days prior to being transferred to the Department of Athletics.

f. We compared revenue and expenditure line-items in the Statement with prior-year amounts, and
made inquiries about fluctuations greater than $100,000 and 10%. The Department of Athletics
provided explanations for the fluctuations.

g. We inquired of the Business Manager and Development Director of the Department of Athletics and
determined that no individual contributions received for the period ended June 30, 1999 were in
excess of 10% of total contributions for the period.

Because the above procedures “a” through “g” do not constitute an audit in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, we do not express an opinion on any of the accounts or items referred to
above. Had we performed additional procedures or had we made an audit of any financial statements of
the Department of Athletics of The Ohio State University in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, matters might have come fo our attention that would have been reported to you. This report
relates only to the accounts and items specified above and does not extend to the financial statements of
The Ohio State University or its Department of Athletics taken as a whole.

Internal Control Structure: Pelicies and Procedures Related to Intercollegiate Athletics — Agreed-
Upon Procedures

The management of The Chio State University is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system
of internal accounting control. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management
are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of control procedures. The objectives of a
system are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that transactions are executed in
accordance with management’s authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of inherent limitations in any system of internal accounting control, errors or irregularities may
occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the system to future periods is subject to
the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the procedures may deteriorate. Our procedures and findings are as follows:

h. We obtained and read the organization chart for the Department of Athletics. We read the available
documentation of the accounting systems and procedures. We also made certain inguiries of
management regarding control consciousness, competence of personnel, and protection of records
and equipment.



i. We obtained an understanding of the transactions’ testing of the Ticket Sales, Team Travel
expenditures, and Purchase/Payables cycles, which was performed by the University’s Internal Audit
staff and we reperformed certain University Internal Audit procedures on a test basis. No exceptions
were noted by the University’s Internal Audit staff, except as noted in item “b” above.

j-  We obtained an understanding of the University’s procedures for monitoring the financial activities
of the booster organizations. These monitoring procedures entitled “Guidelines for Athletic Support
Groups” consist of ten requirements that all support groups must comply with. For five randomly
selected booster organizations, we read files maintained by the University and compared the contents
thereof to the requirements of the guidelines. We noted the following exceptions: 1) not all active
members of the five selected booster organizations signed a “Certificate of Compliance Form”, 2)
the monthly bank statements of the boosters were not accompanied by copies of checks that were
written on behalf of the Athletic Department for 5 boosters, 3) one booster did not have bylaws that
relinquished its assets to the University upon dissolation.

k. We selected the largest fundraising activity and the largest expenditure for each booster organization
to determine if prior formal written approval was received by the Athletic Department. The Athletic
Department did not give prior formal written approval of these fundraising activities or expenditures.

Agreed-upon procedures “h” through “k™ applied to certain aspects of the University’s system of internal
accounting control were more limited than would be necessary to express an opinion on the system of
internal accounting conirol taken as a whole. Because the scope of our work was limited to applying
agreed-upon procedures “h” through “k™ to certain aspects of the system of internal accounting control,
we are unable to express and do not express an opinion on whether the system of internal accounting
control of The Ohio State University in effect for the year ended June 30, 1999, taken as a whole, was
sufficient to meet the objectives stated above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the specified parties listed above and is not

intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than management of The OChio State University or
an authorized representative of the National Collegiate Athletic Association.

Dfecg, ¥ Tode o

Columbus, Ohio
October 18, 1999



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY Exhibit
DEPARTMENT OF ATHLETICS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 (UNAUDITED)

Men's Women's  Other Sports Other Sports Nonprogram
Football Baskethall  Baskethall Men Women Specific Total
REVENUES:
Ticket sales $14,049,936 $2,612,654 $ 191,406 $ 289,957 $ 2494 $ 30,044 $17,218,921
Post season event 47269416 939,070 o ’ 5,208,486
Program sales 429797 80,587 26,862 537,246
Novelty Sales 986,224 986,224
Radio and T.V. rights 3,062,086 1,575,479 4,637,565
Concessions 641,626 308,091 52,014 139,005 7,938 230,654 1,379,328
Gifts:
Restricted 27,462 2,009,274 2,036,736
Grant-in-aid 5,987,630 5,987,630
Parking 651,204 50,649 21,707 723,560
Investment income -
unrestricted 842,836 842,836
Endowment income -
Restricted
Postage/service charges 265,075 32,673 (25) 8,889 4,581 311,193
Advertising 1,661 2,598,496 3,000,157
Entry fees 732 1,202,144 1,202,876
Facility rentals 242 659 242,659
Miscellaneous 367,183 152,735 159,348 802,742 1,482,508
Schottenstein Center 8,800,279 8,800,279
Golf course 3,174,678 3,174,678
Ice rink 595,259 595,259
Total revenues 23,369,140 5,966,386 444,699 627,554 32,862 27,927,500 58,368,141
EXPENDITURES: -
Coaches’ salaries 1,359,635 549,957 534,514 1,656,565 1,623,103 5,723,774
Other salaties 437,531 167,801 103,903 53,814 43,775 12,867,475 13,674,299
Travel:
Team and other 699,703 213,310 179,480 256,706 320,090 375,058 2,044,347
Recruiting 296,973 56,962 86,030 152,559 173,750 21,699 787,973
Guarantees - net 1,295,854 255,612 2,100 25,361 5,600 1,584,527
Financial aid 1,537,943 254,595 300,082 1,518,114 2,373,966 5,984,700
Maintenance/general 2,855,081 365,168 227,512 502,323 256,189 9,495,063 13,701,336
Equipment purchases 139,553 22,928 90,693 28,844 35,361 640,126 957,505
Advertising 236,085 236,085
Insurance 87,761 87,761
Telephone 52,444 40,841 31,490 60,290 46,790 481,034 712,389
Food 470,169 80,755 25,050 214,437 178,768 506,782 1,475,961
Lodging 407,133 53,796 42,205 159,473 168,998 132,317 963,922
Indiract overhead 2,888,228 2,388,228
Physical facilities 758,964 758,964
Total expenditures 9,552,019 2,061,725 1,623,059 = 4,628,486 5,226,390 28,490,592 51,582,271
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY)
OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES $13,817,121 $3,904,661 $(1,178,360)  $(4,000,932)  $(5,193,528) % (563,092) $ 6,785,870

Note: This schedule was prepared by a representative of the Department of Athletics.




. 7 TN =
Deloitte &

Touche

I\ - ' Deloitte & Touche LLP Telephone: (614) 221-1000
- 155 East Broad Street Facsimile: (614) 229-4647
Columbus, Ohic 43215-3611

October 4, 1599

To Members of the Board of The Ohio State University Hospitals
and R. Reed Fraley, Associate Vice President of Health Services
and Executive Director and Members of the Board of the
Arthur G. James Cancer Hospita! and Richard J. Solove Research
Institute and Dr. David E. Schueller, Director

Columbus, Ohio

Dear Members of the Board:

In planning and performing our audit of the trial balance of The Ohio State University Hospitals (the
Hospitals) for the year ended June 30, 1999, we considered its internal control in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements of the Ohio
State University (on which we have issued a report dated October 4, 1999) which includes the trial
balance of the Hospitals and do not provide assurance on the Hospitals’ internal control. Such
consideration would not necessarily disclose all matters in the Hospitals® internal control that might be
material weaknesses under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the
internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused
by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the trial balances being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the Hospitals’ internal control and its operations that
we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above.

We did note other matters related to the Hospitals’ internal control and certain other accounting,

administrative or operating matters. Qur principal observations and recommendations are summarized
below.

Physical Count of Fixed Assets

A physical count of fixed assets has not been performed for many years. However, during fiscal 1999
management started the procedure of having selected department heads review the list of fixed assets
assigned to that department. The department heads were to review the list for accuracy,

The process of having départmem heads review a listing of fixed assets is appropriate. However, such
lists should be distributed to all departments and management should determine that all department
listings are reviewed and approved. Additionally, an actual inventory count should be'conducted

Deloitte Touche
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periodically (perhaps every three years) to ensure that all fixed assets are accounted for and in use, The
actual physical count could be performed on a rotation basis among departments. This procedure will

allow the accounting department to identify any missing or unused fixed assets that should be written-
off.

Management Response
Management agrees with the recommendation, but with the transition of Financial Services personnel
and the implementation of the fixed asset accounting system, this task has been delayed. It is the

expectation that the Hospital will initiate inventory of fixed assets on a planned rotation basis during
fiscal year 2000. ‘

Level of Patient Accounts Receivable

Total gross accounts receivable has increased $23,200,000 (23%) and $15,800,000 (32%) for The Ohio
State University Hospitals and the Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and Richard J. Solove Research
Institute, respectively.

Management should address develop strategies for improving the collection of these accounts to prevent
impairment of future cash flows.

Management Response -

The increase in accounts receivable at the Hospitals is the result of the conversion and implementation of
the new Patient Management and Patient Accounting (PM/PA) system and relating issues, i.e.;
registration errors, data/charge entry delays, interface issues with systems providing diagnosis and CPT
codes from medical records, and finally, claims processing and account follow-up. In addition to the
system related issues there has been a learning curve for employees to learn and use the new PM/PA
system while learning new tasks and procedures.

Patient Accounting Management continues to meet with representatives from information systems,
admissions/registration, charge entry and medical records as part of the multidisciplinary “Revenue
Cycle Committee” created to resolve issues affecting patient accounts receivable which has resulted in

continued improvement of patient accounts receivable since June 1999. Many issues have been
addressed and resolved. ‘

Medicaid Registration

Within the overall patient accounts receivable increase of $23,200,000, the balance of Medicaid accounts
receivable for The Ohio State University Hospitals has increased by more than $9,500,000 (balance at
June 30, 1999 is $19,994,050). Management believes the increase is primarily attributable to high
rejection rates of Medicaid billings as Medicaid patients were misclassified as elective cases instead of
urgent cases during the registration process. This error in the registration process began with the
implementation of the new Shared Medical Systems (SMS) software in January 1999. Since Medicaid
typically only pays for urgent cases, the bills classified as elective are rejected.

Procedures should be implemented to ensure that Medicaid billings are properly classified. Management
should also review all changes to the registration process related to the SMS conversion to determine if
any other corrections need to be made.



Management Respaense .

The significant increase in Medicaid accounts receivable has been identified as a result of a
misclassification for the type of admission during the patient registration process. Registrars had been
routinely registering Medicaid patients as elective admissions, when in fact these admissions should have
been coded as urgent or elective which requires precertification by the Medicaid program. Patient
Access Services has instructed all departments to code new admissions in the proper manner.

Patient Accounting has also created edits in HDS, the electronic billing system, to flag any accounts

improperly coded. Those accounts with errors will be corrected and Patient Access Services will be
notified of clerical error.

Finally, all previously improperly billed Medicaid accounts are being reviewed for rebilling in the
correct manner.

Patient Accounts Receivable Billing and Medical Record Information

During our testing of accounts receivable, we noted two patient account selections (approximately 13%
of the total selections) that were never billed. These patients had discharge dates of September 30, 1997
and May 27, 1999. Additionally, the related medical records for these patients were not readily available
and thus, the Hospitals were unable to bill the accounts without the required diagnosis codes.

Management should implement procedures to ensure that all patient medical records are retained and that
the patient is billed on a timely manner.

Management Response S

The Patient Accounts Department working with the Medical Information Department located one of the
missing records within the last week and found significant documents supporting the admission and care
of the other patient. The Medical Information Department has developed a plan to better control medical
records throughout the Hospitals, which is in the process of implementation. The Patient Accounts
Department also in working with the Medical Information Department has created as interactive database
to monitor all patient records for required diagnosis and CPTs that need to be included on patient bills.
Regarding the missing medical record, the Medical Information Department continues to search for the
missing record and has instituted the policy requiring the receipt of records that are removed from the
department by medical staff.

Accounts Receivable Credit Balances

The credit balances in accounts receivable for The Ohio State University Hospitals and the Arthur G.
James Cancer Hospital and Richard J. Solove Research Institute have increased $3,656,110 and
$691,375, respectively (a combined 320%) at June 30, 1999 in comparison to June 30, 1998.

Management should develop a plan to resolve these credit balances in a timely manner. Additionally,
when calculating the allowance for doubtful accounts, consideration should be given to excluding credit
balances in the patient accounts receivable total so that these credit balances do not inappropriately
reduce the amount of the required reserve.



Managenient Response . . : :
The unusually high credit balances is the result of the implementation of the new Patient Accounting

System which resulted in posting errors made by clerical staff, electronically posted payment errors and
a delay in charge reversal errors.

The largest number of credit balances are the electronic posted payments and the charge reversal errors.
Cash Management has been working with Information Systems to correct the electronic posting error
problem. A task force has been implemented to correct the timeliness of charge reversal errors and any
double posting of charges.

Clerical staff within the Cash Management section has been retrained, which is resulting in significantly
less clerical errors.

Logical Security Standards

The Information Systems (IS) department has not developed logical security standards that cover all of
the platforms and applications supported by the IS department. The IS department is responsible for
maintaining the logical security of the Novell network, the IBM mainframe, NT servers and the various
applications that run in these environments. While logical security standards do exist for the CAPIL
application, these same standards do not apply to the Novell, NT and Mainframe environments.

The logical security function of the IS department should become more centralized with the security
team being responsible for setting the standards that are applied to the various platforms and
applications. Security standards may differ between platforms and applications, but the security
standards for all the platforms and applications should be developed by the security team.

Management Response . . ]

Currently, the LAN, VAX, Systems and Network groups oversee account creations/deletions in their
areas. The Data Security group is responsible for the logical standards that these areas follow for
accounts (username standards, password lengths, password expirations, etc.). The Data Security Team
will work with the LAN group to take over the account creation/deletion process during the first quarter
of 2000. The Data Security group will work with the VAX group to become more involved with their
account creation/deletion process during the second quarter of 2000. The Data Security group will work
with the Systems group to address the issues with the access to the mainframe job scheduler and
mainframe dataset security during the fourth quarter of 1999. The Data Security group will work with
the Network group to review existing network configurations and the firewall from a security
perspective. The Data Security group will work closely with the Clinical Applications group o develop
standards for our SMS system during the fourth quarter of 1999,

Network Backup Tapes

Network server backups created in Battelle are not rotated offsite. The LAN support team reviewed each
network server to determine whether the server’s processor could withstand performing a daily backup
without significant performance degradation. They determined that several servers could be backed up
without significant performance issues. These servers are located in the Starling-Loving computer room
and the backup tapes are taken offsite with the mainframe backup tapes. The servers that cannot be



backed up on their own are backed up by a centralized backup server located in Battelle. By using the

backup server, the performance of the servers is not significantly degraded. These backup tapes are kept
in an office in Battelle.

The backup tapes from the backup server located in Battelle should be taken offsite for storage.

Management Response . ,

The LAN support team will be purchasing a backup server. This server will be used to centralize the
backup tape process for offsite storage. We will develop a process to move the server backup tapes into
the normal rotation of storing tapes offsite by October 1, 1999,

Mainframe Dataset Security

The IBM mainframe does not utilize dataset security. Currently, the datasets stored on the IBM
mainframe are not individually secured. TSO access to the mainframe is limited to application and
system programmers, operators and support technicians. This results in approximately 150 users having
access to all of the data and source code stored on the mainframe. There is a potential risk that an
unauthorized change to the data or source code may be made by a user having TSO access. There is
exposure that the unauthorized change will not be detected due to the number of users having TSO
access and the volume of data stored on the mainframe.

The IS department should implement a security package, such as RACF, that will allow the security team
to appropriately restrict access to the mainframe datasets. TSO users should only have access to the
datasets needed to perform their job function.

Management Response . . :
The Data Security Team will work with the IBM mainframe group to determine the appropriate level of
access for its users during the fourth quarter of 1999. This will enable us to restrict access to the

mainframe datasets. RACF is scheduled to be impiemented on the mainframe by the second guarter of
2000.

Access to the Mainframe Job Scheduler

Approximately 50 IS employees have the ability to modify the IBM mainframe job schedule. The
mainframe job schedule for the Hospitals is quite extensive. Whenever possible, jobs are configured to
run from the job schedule. Currently, the systems support team, operations team, and certain IS
management have the ability to modify the IBM mainframe job schedule. All changes to the job
schedule are forwarded to the systems support team for processing. There is a potential risk that an
unauthorized change to the job schedule could be made due to the extensiveness of the schedule.

Management should consider the following:

» IS department should restrict access to the IBM mainframe job schedule to only a select few
employees.

e A review of the changes to the job schedule should be performed by IS management on a regular
basis.



Management Response
New clinical and financial systems going live had prompted the increased access. The Data Security

Team plans to work with the Systems and Applications groups and set up a process to restrict this access
during the first quarter of 2000.

Auditing Functionality of PM/PA

The PM/PA (patient management/patient accounting) application does not have a transaction based audit
feature. In any computer environment, changes to critical or seansitive data should be logged and

monitored. Currently, the PM/PA application does not have the functionality available to log changes
that are made to the data.

During 1999, Congress is considering legislation that may force health care institutions to become more
accountable for their patients’ health care information. The Health Information Privacy Act (HIPA) is
one such piece of legislation that is currently being debated. The outcome of the congressional debate
may force the Hospitals to become more accountable for their patients’ information.

The Hospitals should be proactive in preparing for possible health information legislation. In particular,
management should continue to insist that SMS implement a transaction based audit feature for its
PM/PA application. If SMS continues to be unresponsive, then the IS department should investigate
alternative ways to add auditing functionality to its applications.

Managentent Response

The SMS PM/PA system provides some of the é&diting functiona;ﬁt_y_requested. However, it does have
its limitations.

The SMS Patient Management system does allow for tracking of changes by user identification on an
inpatient level. Through its census history functionality, as an inpatient is admitted, transferred or
discharged, a user identification is stamped with that particular transaction. Reports can be run from that
census history segment to determine changes made to that particular account. The SMS PM/PA system
does provide some limitation on an outpatient basis. Although patients are re-registered each time they
visit the Hospital and a user identification is stamped on the original registration, SMS does not stamp a
user identification on any activity occurring on that account after the initial registration has occurred.
Many other SMS facilities have asked SMS to add this as part of their core system.

From the SMS Patient Accounting system, tank file transactions are used to track any changes with the
user identification. SMS does provide the capability to run reports from these tank file transactions.
These tank file transactions are stored for 5 days. SMS also provides daily transaction logs which fogs
any activity on an account, The limitation of these logs is that it does not store the user identification.
However, the tank file could be referenced. These logs are kept 7 days.



PM/PA Security

The PM/PA system does not currently provide security reporting features. This limitation prevents an
efficient review of access not only externally, but internally, as well. Due to this limitation, we were
unable to determine the adequacy of access provided within the PM/PA system based upon user job
function. Additionally, an internal periodic review of security to ensure the ongoing pertinence of the
access provided cannot be performed unless this documentation is made available.

The Hospitals should work with SMS to develop security reporting features. After implemented,
periodic reviews of security should be performed to ensure that users are only provided the access
deemed necessary to perform their current job functions.

Management Response , S .
The Data Security Team plans to set up a meeting with SMS Facilities to create security features during
the fourth quarter of 1999. '

Year 2000

The approach of the year 2000 presents significant issues for many financial, information, and
operational systems. Many systems in use today may not be able to appropriately interpret dates after
December 31, 1999, because such systems allow only two digits to indicate the year in a date. Asa
result, such systems are unable to distinguish Januaryl, 2000, from January 1, 1980, which could have
adverse consequences on the operations of the entity and the integrity of information processing, causing
safety, operational, and financial issues.

Our audit of the Hospitals® trial balances for the year ended June 30, 1999, did not provide any
assurances, nor did we express any opinion, that the Hospitals’ systems or any other systems, such as
those of the Hospitals® vendors, service providers, customers, unconsolidated subsidiaries or joint
ventures in which the Hospitals’ have an investment, or other third parties, are year 2000 compliant. In
addition, we were not engaged to perform, nor did we perform as part of our audit engagement, any
procedures to test whether the Hospitals’ systems or any other systems are year 2000 compliant or
whether the plans and activities of the Hospitals or any third parties are sufficient to address and correct

_system or any other problems that might arise because of the year 2000, nor did we express any opinion
or provide any other assurances with respect to these matters.

However, during the week ended August 9, 1999, we made limited inquiries about the Hospitals’
activities to address the year 2000 issue. We have not performed any procedures to test the accuracy or
completeness of the responses to our inquiries, but we have included our observations resulting from
those inquiries in the following table, Because year 2000 activities are currently in process, we may
have had additional observations had we made inquiries after the date of this letter. Accordingly, we

encourage the management and Boards of Trustees to continue its oversight of the Hospitals’ year 2000
activities.



Topic Area

Response

Status of Written Plan

A Hospital plan was developed and approved by
senior administration the 15t quarter of 1998. The
goal of the plan was to ensure that all Hospital
software, hardware, and equipment are year 2000
ready and to develop contingency plans to deal with
issues related to the potential failure of any internal or
external systems. It also identified membership of a
Hospital year 2000 steering committee charged with
ensuring that the goals outlined in the plan were
followed by Hospital staff.

Resources

Existing personnel are supporting the majority of
Hospital year 2000 efforts. In some departments,
staffing resources have been supplemented by
consultants. Those expenses were included in the
appropriate areas expense budget.

Timetable and Status

The Hospitals’ initial plan called for ail year 2000
related activities to be completed by the second
quarter of 1999. The plan was revised and the
completion date changed to the 4th quarter of 1999.
As of August 1999, the majority of areas which have
major year 2000 responsibilities have either
completed their year 2000 activities or are scheduled
to be done by the end of October 1999. Asan
example, less than 10% of the Biomedical
Engineering Department’s equipment inventory
remains to be tested. Information Services has 12
LAN-based departmental systems that are scheduled
for testing and they are expected to be completed by
the end of October 1999. The testing of our
PeopleSoft Finance application is 98% completed for
which final testing should be completed by the end of
September 1999. The Hospitals’ major financial and
clinical information systems have been tested and
found to be year 2000 ready.

Inventory of Systems

The Hospitals have completed the inventory of .
equipment of its facilities, information services,
biomedical engineering, patient care services, dietary,
and security departments. The inventories are
maintained at the departmental level but the status of
the departments’ remediation and testing processes
are reported at the monthly medical center year 2000
steering committee,




Critical Systems Identified

All systems and equipment were identified during the
inventory phase of our process. Once the inventory
was completed, systems were ranked based on the
criticality of their impact on patient care activities.
The status of those systems is reported monthly at the
medical center year 2000 steering committee
meetings.

Procedures to Identify Systems
with Problems

Individual departments are responsible for reporting
and resolving any vear 2000 related issues associated
with equipment they support. '

Plan for Fixing Critical
Systems

Each area is responsible for developing a remediation
plan for systems they support or use.

Date for Compliance

Areas that have a critical impact on patient care
activities have developed and submitted a
remediation plan to the Hospitals® year 2000 steering
committee. The plan includes dates when either
remediation or replacements are scheduled to be in
place. In addition, they are asked to provide monthly
updates to the remediation plans. All areas are on
target,

Tests Procedures for
Compliant Systems

As part of the year 2000 plan, formal university
industry standard procedures have been developed
with respect to conducting process inventories,
assessing risks, remediation, testing, contingency
planning and quality assurance. Following the
completion of a process’s inventory, risk assessment
and analysis, the process owner determines the
appropriate remediation, testing approach and
contingency planning procedures to be used.
Additionally, the Hospitals elected to use Test 2000
to test the year 2000 status of their desktop
computers. An inventory of all desktop systems was
completed and the Hospitals’ IS staffare in the
process of continuing to check each system to
validate its year 2000 status. In addition, a suite of
year 2000 software tools was identified and
recommendations made that all staff should either
upgrade or replace non-compliant software
applications. A testing process was identified for all
enterprise and departmental applications. It included
the development of a year 2000 Testing Lab as well
as recommendations for dates that should be tested.
Detail documentation of the testing process and
results is maintained for each application.




Vendor, Service Providers,

Customers, Subsidiaries, Etc.

Letters were sent to all major Hospital vendors and
suppliers asking for the year 2000 status of their
products or operation. The vendor responses are
maintained centrally by the Hospitals.

Litigation and Regulations

One of the Hospitals’ attorneys is a member of the
year 2000 Steering Committee. The attorney has
been instrumental in providing advice and language
for vendors’ letters, readiness issues and contingency
planning activities.

Contingency Plans

Hospital departments that support or provide critical
patient care services were asked to develop
contingency plans which outline how they will
continue to provide support should an emergency
situation occur. The plans were reviewed by a
committee whose membership included: senior
Hospital administration, Hospital legal council,
Hospital accreditation coordinator, and university
year 2000 task force members. The plans were
reviewed and in some cases modifications
recommended. A year 2000 issues list was developed
to track ongoing issues requiring resolution.

Management Oversight

The Hospitals’ year 2000 oversight committee is
chaired by the chief operating officers of University
Hospitals and The Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital
and Richard J. Solove Research Institute. Also,
appropriate briefings were provided to physicians at
selected meetings of the Hospitals® Medical /
Administrative Committee meetings.

Reporting To Senior
Management

Moenthly updates on the status of year 2000 activities
are provided to senior Hospital management.

Impact on Operations and
Financial Reporting

None

Client Concerns

Externa! forces out of our control (e.g. utilities, etc.).

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Boards of Trustees, management, and
others within the organizations and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than

these specified parties.

ok ko ok ok

10

We would be pleased to discuss these comments with you and, if desired, to assist you in implementing

any of the suggestions.

Yours truly,

M@ECL £, \jau—c/Q—L P
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e . Columbus, Ohio 43215

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Trustees
Campus Partners for Community Urban
Redevelopment, Inc.

We have audited the balance sheet of Campus Partners for Community
Urban Redevelopment, Inc. (Campus Partners, a component unit of The
Chic State University) as of June 30, 1599 and 1998, and the
related statements of revenues and expenditures, changes in fund
balances and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial
gtatements are the responsibility of the management of Campus
Partners. Our resgponsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards. These standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material migstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test baslis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial sgtatement presentation. We believe  that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for ocur opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material regpects, the financial position of Campus
Partners as of June 30, 1999 and 1998, and the results of its
cperations and changes in its fund balances and cash flows for the
years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles.

The Year 2000 supplementary information on page 11 is not a
required part of the = basic £financial statements but is
supplementary information required by the Government Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inguires of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
Required Supplementary Schedule.

Forire 7 lompanigs Fee

August 6, 1999
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CAMPUS PARTNERS FOR COMMUNITY

URBAN REDEVELOPMENT,

INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30, 1999 and 1938

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Change in Fund Balances

Adjustments t£¢ reconcile increase in fund
balances to net cash provided by operations:

Decrease/ (Increase) in grants receivable
Increase in deposits

{Decrease) /Increase in accounts payable
Increase in accrued benefits

Increase in rent depoagits

{Decreasge) /Increase in deferred revenue
Decrease in due to others

Net Adjustments
NET (DECREASE)] INCREASE IN CaSH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT END OF YEAR

June 30, 1999
Current Funds
Unr icte

$ 9,107

2,500
(10,000)
(32,518)

23,883

19,446
(116,445)
{17.500)

{(130,632)

{121,525)

258,834

$137.309

June 30, 1998
Current Funds

Unrestricted

5 10,850

(2,500)

41,816
1,401

116,445
(17,500)
139,662

150,512

108,322

$258,834

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

-5



CAMPUS PARTNERS FOR COMMUNITY
URBAN REDEVELOPMENT, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years BEnded June 30, 1999 and 1358

Summary of Significant Accounting Pelicies:

Organization:

Campus Partners for Community Urban Redevelopment, Inc.
(Campus Partners) isg a component unit of The Ohio State
University (0OS8U). The financial activity of Campus Partners
is blended within the financial statements of OSU. Campus
Partners operates under continued funding primarily f£rom OSU
and the City of Columbus, whereby Campus Partners directs the
revitalization of the East Campus area immediately adjacent to
0OSU's Main Campus in Columbusg, Ohio. Campus Partners was
incorporated on January 12, 1995.

Bagig of Pregentation:

Accrual Basis

The financial statements of Campus Partners have been prepared
on the accrual basis in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles for state-assisted colleges and
universities which is the basis used by 0SU. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, resources are classified for
accounting and reporting purposes into funds that reflect the
specific activities, objectives, or resgtrictions of the
resources. -

Fund Accounting

In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions
placed on the use of the resources avallable to Campus
Partners, the accounts of Campus Partners are maintained in
accordance with the principles of "fund accounting". This is
the procedure by which resources f£or various purposes are
classified for accounting and reporting purposes into fund
groups that are in accordance with the activities or
objectives specified.

Within each fund group, fund balances restricted by outside
gsources are so indicated or distinguished from unrestricted
funds allocated to specific purposes by actions of the Board
of Trustees. Externally restricted funds may only be utilized
in accordance with the purposes established by the source of
such funds and are in contrast with unrestricted funds over
which the Board of Trusteesg retains full control to use on
achieving any of its institutional purpcses.
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CAMPUS PARTNERS FOR COMMUNITY
URBAN REDEVELOPMENT, 1INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended June 30, 1599 and 1998

unma f Significa Acg ing Polici : {(Continued)

Fund Accounting (continued)

All accounts are clasgified into the following groups:
Current Funds Plant Funds

Current Funds are available for current operations and are
subdivided as follows:

Unrestricted funds are available for general operating
purposes,

Regtricted funds are available £for current operating
purposes but only 1in cowpliance with zrestrictions
specified by donors or grantors. There were no
restricted funds as of June 30, 1999, or 1998.

Plant Funds include all long-1life assets in the service of
Campus Partners. Physical properties, which include furniture
and equipment are principally stated at cost. In accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles for colleges and
universgities, depreciation is not provided.

To the extent current funds are used to finance plant assets,
the amounts so provided are accounted for (a) as expenditures
of current funds and additions to property and equipment in
plant funds, in the case of moveable equipment and capital
projects; and (b) as transfers of a non-mandatory nature in
other cases. : i

Public Suppcori and Revenues:

Campus Partners receives funding primarily through grants from
OSU and the City of Columbus. During the years ended June 30,
1999 and 1998, Campus Partners derived $8% and 96%, of its
total support from these sources, respectively. Revenue from
these sourcesg 1s recognized when received.

Concentration of Rigk:

Cash consists o©of demand deposits held at financial
institutions. At June 30, 1995 and 1998, $100,000 of Campus
Partners'! cash balance of $137,308% and $258, 834 was covered by
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

-7 =
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CAMPUS PARTNERS FOR COMMUNITY
URBAN REDEVELOPMENT, INC,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended June 30, 1999 and 13998

Summaryv of Significanf Accounting Poligieg: (Continued)

Concentration of Risk (Continued)

At June 30, 1999 and 1998, Campus Partners had $37,305 and
$158,834, respectively, that was unsecured and uninsured.
However, to mitigate risk of loss, Campus Partners has placed
its deposits in a large financial institution. Consequently,
management believeg it is not exposed to any significant
concentration of credit risk in relation to cash.

Use of Managewment's Estimates:

Preparation of Campus Partners' financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
regquires the use of management's estimates. The nature of
those egtimates, however, is such that variances in actual
results are generally immaterial.

Income Taxes:

Campus Partners is exempt from federal income taxes under
Section 501 (¢} (3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Invegtment in Plant:

Investment in plant is composed of the following:

June 30, 19989 June 30, 1938

Land and Buildings o o $8,952,496 $1,906,481
Office Furniture and Equipment = __ 45,489 745,489

Total Plant Fund - o $8.997,.985 51,951,970
Operating Leage

Campus Partner leages office sgpace under an operating lease
explring on January 21, 2001. The minimum future rental
payments under this non-cancelable operating lease is included
below:

2000 $27,720
2001 16,170



CAEMPUS PARTNERS FOR COMMUNITY
URBAN REDEVELOPMENT, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended June 30, 1999 and 1998

Operating L.eage - Contin

As 1lessoy, Campus Partner leases various property under
operating leases expiring in various years and with various
options for renewal, through June 2001. The leased assets are
recorded on the balance sheet at a book value at June 30, 19983
of $4,016,672.

Retirement Plan

All employees are covered by the Public Employees Retlrement
System of Ohio (PERS). This retirement program is a statewide
cost-gharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.
PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual
cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by State statute.
PERS issues sgeparate, publicly available financial reports
that include financial Statements and required supplementary
information. That report may be obtained by writing to Public
Employees Retirement System of Ohio, 277 East Town Street,
Columbus, Ohio 43215. ) T

Funding Policy:

The Ohioc Revised Code provides PERS statutory authority for
employee and employer contributicns. The required,
actuarially determined, contribution rates for plan members
and Campus Partners was 8.50% and 13.31% of covered payroll,
respectively. Campus Partners' contributions, which represent
100% of the required contributions, for the vyear ended June
30, 1939 and each of the preceding two years, are as follows:

1899 $39,957
1998 , 38,3386
1987 32,815

In addition to the retirement benefits described above, PERS
provides post-retirement health care benefits.



4.

wn

CAMPUS PARTNERS FOR COMMUNMITY
URBAN REDEVELOPMENT, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended June 30, 1953 and 1998

Retirement Plan - Continued

PERS provides comprehensive health care benefits to retirees
with 10 or more years of qualifying service credit and offers
coverage to their dependents on a deduction basis. Coverage
includes hospitalization, wmedical expenses, prescription
drugs, and reimbursement of monthly Medicare premiums. PERS
determines the amount, if any, of the associated health care
cost that will be absorbed by PERS. Under Chio law, medical
cosgts paid from the funds of PERS are included on the employer
contribution rate. PERS currently allocates 4.29% of covered
payroll to fund the health care program for retirants.

Pavable to Q8U

Campus Partners has an unpaid liability to OSU resulting from
$70,000 in consulting expenses paid by OSU on behalf of Campus
Partners in 19%5. Conseguently, an agreement between Campus
Partners and OSU was reached where Campus Partners will pay
0SU back in four annual installments of $17,500, beginning
figcal vyear 1997. The scheduled maturity for the unpaid
portion of this liability is as follows:

2000 . $17,500

Total . o $17.500

-10-



CAMPUS PARTNERS FOR COMMUNITY
URBAN REDEVELOPMENT, INC.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Years Ended June 30, 1999 and 1598

YEAR 2000 DISCLOSURE

The vyear 2000 issue 1is the result of shortcomings in many
electronic data-processing systems and other equipment to process
dates, especially years, that may adversely affect Campus Partners'
operations as early as fiscal year 1995.

Campus Partners has identified the following system necessary to
conducting operations.

General ic mputers

Campus Partners has identified five coffice computers that are used
for various word processing, spreadsheet and bockkeeping tasks.
These systems have or our will be remediated and validated before
the end of the vear. Since these efforts are being completed by
staff, any expenditures to complete this process will not be
material.

General Accounting and Payroll

Campus Partners uses an outside accounting firm to prepare its
monthly financial statements and The Ohio State University to
process and pay its payroll. These organizations are responsible
for remediating these systems. '

Because of the unprecedented nature of the Year 2000 igsue, its
effects and the success of related remediation efforts will not be
fully determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Management
cannot assure that Campus Partners will be Year 2000 ready, that
remediation efforts will be succegsful in whole or in part, or that
parties with whom Campus Partners does business will be year 2000
ready.

-11-
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